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e creating value for our customers and delivering quality
services at world-class standard; and
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e delivering value to our shareholders through maximising
market share and returns.
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Heart and Harmony
2LERE MEHAD

We strive for perfection through service from the heart
and work harmoniously together by complementing and
supplementing each other.
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Can-do attitude and Commitment to quality
LEBR BE A

We uphold a can-do attitude with integrity and are committed
to delivering quality that will earn the respect and loyalty of our
stakeholders.
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Chairman’s Statement
F MRS

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer; Dr. Wilfred WONG Ying Wai
FEFRTEHAAS ERBEE

Overview

| am pleased to report the annual results of Hsin Chong Construction Group
Ltd. (the “"Company” or “Hsin Chong”) and its subsidiaries (collectively “the
Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2014. The year 2014 saw the Company
celebrating not only the auspicious occasion of our 75th anniversary, but also
another year of record-breaking financial results in terms of turnover, EBITDA and
profit attributable to shareholders.

During the year, the Company continued to actively develop its business to
become an integrated and diversified construction group that provides property-
related services and seizes opportunities in different markets. We continued
to expand our property portfolio and strive to become a leading brand in the
Chinese mainland’s real estate market.

Despite fewer new jobs from the government because of the prolonged debates
in the Legislative Council, our construction business reached new heights in terms
of outstanding works on hand of over HK$18.7 billion when two new contracts
were awarded to the Company after the year end. These two contracts were a
building construction contract for residential development at Ho Man Tin and a
foundation contract for the Hong Kong Ocean Park Marriott Hotel. The contract
sum of one of the projects was the largest single contract sum ever awarded to
the Group. As to new business development, we have diversified ourselves into
the curtain wall business.

We began to reap benefits from our two property development projects in Tieling
and Beijing in the PRC as these projects contributed turnover and improved
EBITDA of the Group. Our strategy of developing the property market in the PRC
has proved to be successful. Subsequent to the year end, we have completed
a very substantial acquisition of a property development project in Foshan,
Guangdong Province. It is expected that these projects would contribute to the
financial results of the Group in the years to come.

*  for identification purposes only
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Financial Results

In 2014, the Company has delivered shareholder value through sustainable
growth and performance, with record-breaking achievements: (a) a record-high
turnover of HK$14.01 billion; (b) gross profit margin increased to 7.0% because
of the shift to higher value business, and the continued focus on productivity and
cost management; (c) profits attributable to shareholders increased to HK$388
million, representing a growth of 110% over the same period last year mainly
due to our improved financial results from our core construction and property
management businesses and the surplus of revaluation of our PRC properties; and
(d) EBITDA was HK$672 million because of the surplus of revaluation of our PRC
properties.

During the year, new orders of HK$4.4 billion were awarded and the value of
outstanding work order was over HK$14.6 billion. Subsequent to the year end,
new orders of HK$4.1 billion have been awarded. As a result, the outstanding
contract value on hand was HK$18.7 billion, a milestone achieved by the
Company.

Business Review

Our construction business has lived up to its established reputation for quality,
reliability and integrity, meeting the many stringent targets for safety levels and
quality standards whilst achieving business growth. Consistent with our tradition,
the Group’s Building Division continues to be the major contributor to the Group’s
financial results. During 2014, new work orders of HK$4.4 billion were awarded
and the value of outstanding work order were over HK$14.6 billion. Subsequent
to the year end, HK$4.1 billion new orders have been awarded and resulted in
the outstanding contract value of HK$18.7 billion on hand. Our growth in 2014
stemmed from the division’s well-diversified portfolio of contracts, ranging from
the government, public institutions to prestigious private clients. In particular, we
currently undertake five public housing projects situated in Anderson Road, Hung
Shui Kiu, Tung Chung, Au Tau and Kai Tak for the Hong Kong Housing Authority.
We are also honoured to have the chance to participate in building the new Tsuen
Wan Adventist Hospital which covers an extensive scope of works in the 27-storey
block, comprising general and specialist outpatient departments, operating
theatres, specialty centres, various clinical departments, an auditorium and parking
facilities.

The year 2014 also saw the success of the Company in its diversification into
civil engineering since 2009. We were awarded new orders of HK$986 million in
the year and had an outstanding workload of HK$2.7 billion at the end of the
year. This division has now become the second pillar of the Group. Riding on the
well-established working relationship with MTR, the Civil Engineering Division
is currently managing six contracts for MTR, in our own capacity or as a joint
venture partner. Contracts included the Express Rail Link West Kowloon Terminus
Station South, the Shatin to Central Link Sung Wong Toi and To Kwa Wan
Stations and Tunnels which incorporates two new stations and 1.6 kilometres
of dual connecting tunnels, as part of the current expansion of MTR services
throughout Hong Kong. On the technical front, Hsin Chong has become the
pioneer in the use of the rotator and wedge method for pile removal in Hong
Kong. Our exceptional performance in the Express Rail Link Nam Cheong Property
Foundation Removal/Reprovisioning project led to the award of a further MTR
project Advance Works for North-South Line for Shatin to Central Link which uses
the same pile removal technology.
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Chairman’s Statement
TRHE

Business Review (continued)

Our efforts on the Shatin to Central Link project earned recognition at MTR’s
Quiality, Safety, Environmental and Stakeholder Engagement Awards. Among
122 competitors, Samsung — Hsin Chong Joint Venture was announced the
“Best Contractor” and won four other prizes: the “Grand Safety Award”, “Gold
Safety Award”, “Lowest Reportable Accident Frequency Rate Award” and
“Silver Stakeholder Engagement Award”. Each one commended Hsin Chong's
outstanding performance. In addition, our project team won MTR's Grand Safety
Award 2014, singling out Hsin Chong's exceptional management measures,
including its appropriate training and facilities with respect to promoting work
safety and thus protecting frontline workers.

In 2014, our Macau Construction team continued to provide quality services
for two major gaming concessionaries, Venetian and Galaxy with which we
have established firm relationship. We are now able to provide a full range of
contracting services from building hotel resorts and casinos, university building to
wastewater treatment plant. Subsequent to the year end, the Group has further
extended its business to Henggin, a special economic region near Macau. As in
the past, Hsin Chong continues to play its influential role in the development of
the construction industry in Macau.

The Electrical and Mechanical Division was awarded new orders of HK$741
million in the year and had an outstanding workload of HK$1.4 billion at the
end of the year. Teaming up with the Building Division and the ISP Division in
the new Tsuen Wan Adventist Hospital project, this Division was responsible for
building services installation, including MVAC, electrical and fire services as well as
plumbing and drainage systems of this hospital.

During the year, Hsin Chong began to tap into the new business of curtain
walling, cladding and related products by forming a new joint venture company
with a Taiwanese company who has extensive experience and strong track record
in Taiwan and the Chinese mainland in this business. It is expected that the
synergy between the two reputable companies will generate good results in light
of the Hong Kong market's increasing demand and potential.

Our investments in the property development projects in Tieling and Beijing
(which we acquired in 2011 and 2013 respectively) began to bear fruit and
contributed excellent results to the Group in 2014. The Property Development
and Investment Division contributed an EBITDA of HK$375 million and achieved
a turnover of HK$122 million, an increase of 144% as compared with the same
period last year. In particular, the mall of New Times Plaza generated rental income
of HK$53 million and the sale of SOHO units contributed over HK$54 million of
revenue to the Group.
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Business Review (continued)

Our Property Management Service Business, and Interior and Special Project
Business ("“ISP Business”), both from our listed subsidiary, Synergis Holdings
Limited (“Synergis”), also generated outstanding results during the year. In
particular, Property Management Service Business contributed an EBITDA of
HK$30 million, an increase by 11% as compared last year. The ISP Business
remained the engine and driving force for Synergis’s growth, and delivered HK$69
million gross profit, representing a growth of 25% as compared with that of last
year.

Dividends

After giving due consideration to the results reported, the reserves of the
Company and the working capital requirement of the Group, the Board
recommended the payment of a final dividend of 2.2 HK cents per share (2013:
2.0 HK cents per share) for the year ended 31 December 2014. Subject to
shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming 2015 annual general meeting (the
"2015 AGM") of the Company, the proposed final dividend will be paid on or
around Thursday, 11 June 2015 to shareholders whose names appear on the
register of members of the Company on Tuesday, 2 June 2015 (Hong Kong time).

Together with the interim dividend of 1.0 HK cent per share (2013: 2.2 HK cents
per share) already paid, total dividends for the financial year will amount to 3.2
HK cents per share (2013: 4.2 HK cents per share), representing a payout ratio of
63% (2013: 43%) on the earnings for the financial year.

Outlook

2015 saw a promising start for Hsin Chong as we have won building and civil
engineering contracts valued at about HK$4.1 billion, one of which represents
the largest ever single contract in the history of Hsin Chong. With these major
new job wins, our group’s turnover will significantly increase, and our position as
a large-scale construction group will strengthen. In the years to come, the Group
will continue to expand its business through a more diversified portfolio, covering
building construction, civil engineering, electrical and mechanical engineering,
project and construction management, interiors and special projects, property
development and asset management services.

Undertaking large-scale construction projects come along with challenges.
Furthermore, in 2014, the Hong Kong's construction industry was affected by
the prolonged debates in the Legislative Council that resulted in serious delays
in approving public works. If the problem becomes less serious in 2015, lots of
contracts may be awarded over a short period of time. To meet these challenges,
the Group will have to prudently control its costs and cashflow, manage its
financial aspects and resource allocations, so that attractive returns on our projects
can be delivered.

*  for identification purposes only
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Chairman’s Statement
TRHRE

Outlook (continued)

As to property development, one of the Group's key projects is La Viva in Tieling,
Shenyang. Residential units at La Viva (Phase 1) in Tieling will be ready for sale in
the second half of 2015. Another project is the property development in Foshan,
Guangdong Province, which the Group successfully acquired in January 2015.
This project covering 1,925,057 square metres is located in Foshan’s urbanising
Sanshui District and is close to Guangzhou's Huadu District.

The Group will draw on its experience at La Viva to plan and develop the
new Foshan project. We will create possible brand synergy in developing and
managing large-scale combined property development projects in the future.
Together with the La Viva project, this new Foshan acquisition gives the Group a
valuable land bank in both northern and southern China. Phased development
of commercial and residential properties at these locations will help position
the Group to steadily develop a long-term source of revenue for its property
development and investment business. Hsin Chong will persist in soliciting new
opportunities in the Chinese mainland’s highly promising property market to
become a fully integrated property developer and investor.

Since its establishment more than 75 years ago, Hsin Chong has grown with
Hong Kong and taken part in numerous large-scale construction projects,
standing witness to and ushering in significant changes over the years. The
Group's rich history is closely tied to that of Hong Kong's as it has participated
in many landmark projects and achieved an outstanding track record. With a full
range of services and a committed workforce, we have laid cornerstones for Hong
Kong's flourishing development. Hsin Chong will continue to firmly stand by this
tradition.

La Viva ElitE R
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Outlook (continued)

The Company will continue to seize opportunities in all markets and keep growing
its construction business. With the construction industry in Hong Kong and
Macau enjoying a golden era and the Mainland primed for new opportunities,
Hsin Chong is on the cusp of another defining period of growth, and is positioned
to scale unprecedented heights.

Appreciation

Our results are a reflection of the quality and commitment of our people across
the Group and business lines, from our senior management to our site staff. The
enthusiasm and loyalty of our colleagues resemble that of a family. On behalf
of the Board, | would like to thank all of my Hsin Chong colleagues for their
continued contribution and commitment to our clients, our consumers and our
values.

I would also like to extend my utmost gratitude to our shareholders, business
partners, clients and suppliers for their continued support and confidence in us.

Wilfred WONG Ying Wai
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 19 March 2015
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BB M AT

Review of Business and Prospects

Financial Overview

In 2014, Hsin Chong has delivered shareholder value through sustainable growth
and performance. Profit attributable to shareholders was HK$388 million,
representing growth of 110% over the last year.

RBOERR AR
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Performance highlights (in HK$ million) 2014 2013 Change
EBREE(BBasT) )
Turnover BET 14,010 11,506 +22%
Turnover — excl. NSC* BETF - FEIENSC 9,038 9,148 -1%
Gross profit EF 633 577 +10%
Gross margin (excl. NSC¥) EFFE (FEIENSC) 7.0% 6.3%  +0.7ppE D
Fair value gain/(loss) on investment BREMEZOREKRS (E5HE)

properties, net of tax (FRiRE) 301 (18) N/ATTS 38 FB
EBITDA EBITDA 672 301 +123%
Net finance costs MERERE (42) (17) —147%
Profit attributable to shareholders B REAL BT 388 185 +110%
Net margin (excl. NSC¥) B AE (REBIENSC) 4.3% 20%  +23ppE D
(in HK cents) (L)
Basic earnings per share BREXET 13.6 12.0
Interim dividend REER 1.0 2.2
Final dividend KIS 2.2 2.0

# Nominated subcontractors” works of Macau Galaxy Resort Phase 2 project (“NSC")

. Turnover increased by 22 % (decreased by 1% if NSC are excluded).
o Gross profit improved by 10%.

o Profit attributable to shareholders recorded a year-on-year growth of 110%,
mainly due to our improved financial results from our core construction and
property management businesses and the surplus of revaluation of our PRC
properties.

With the strong order book over the last few years and our good transformational
opportunities across all business segments, we delivered gross profit of HK$633
million for the year (2013: HK$577 million), an increase of 10% vyear to year.
With the sustainable level of turnover, gross profit margin was driven up by 0.7
pp to 7.0% over the last year. Improved gross profit margin not only reflected the
shift to higher value business and the continued focus on productivity and cost
management, it also demonstrates our disciplined execution of both traditional
core business of construction services and property management services, and
new business endeavor of property development and investment business.
Following the acquisition of the investment property — New Times Plaza situated
in Beijing in late 2013, substantial interest expenses were incurred to finance the
acquisition. Total net interests of HK$42 million were incurred. With the surplus
of revaluation of our PRC properties, our EBITDA was HK$672 million (2013:
HK$301 million) and achieved a new record for the Group.
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Review of Business and Prospects (continued)
Business Overview

Following the acquisition of a property development project, La Viva in Shenyang
in 2011 and a commercial property in Beijing in 2013, 2014 was a year benefited
from the Group's successful transformation of our assets portfolio.

While we await the properties to deliver significant revenue contribution when
La Viva launches its presale later in 2015, Hsin Chong continued to achieve new

records in financial results, driven by a number of dynamic forces.

Turnover - excl. NSC

B (TEFENSQ)
HK$ billion
A ET
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEN® AT

Review of Business and Prospects (continued) RKGOBERAER (2
Business Overview (continued) EHEE (F)
Change
(in HK$ million) 2014 2013 Amount %
(B¥EBET) S5
Turnover BEH
Construction — excl. NSC EiE— T EFENSC 8,068 8,307 (239) -3%
Property & Facility Management E IS i AR 848 791 57 +7%
Property Development & Investment — #)¥ 2 E MR E 122 50 72 +144%
9,038 9,148 (110) -1%
Construction — NSC 33 —NSC 4,972 2,358 2,614 +111%
14,010 11,506 2,504 +22%
Gross Profit EF
Construction B 509 423 86 +20%
Property & Facility Management eI AR 101 117 (16) -14%
Property Development & Investment ~ #7%# 2% E MIRE 23 37 (14) -38%
633 577 56 +10%
EBITDA EBITDA
Construction 2 352 294 58 +20%
Property & Facility Management L EYNE g R 30 27 3 +11%
Property Development & Investment ~ #) %2 E MR E 375 52 323 +621%
Corporate 1T (85) (72) (13) -18%
672 301 371 +123%
GP Margin (excl. NSC) EFE (FEIENSO
Construction i 6.3% 5.1%
Property & Facility Management % 5% e B IR 11.9% 14.8%
Property Development & Investment 47 ¥ 2 E MR E 18.9% 74.0%
(i) Construction (i) #&BE

Our core Construction business has lived up to its distinguished reputation
for quality, reliability and integrity, meeting many stringent targets for safety
levels and quality standards whilst achieving business growth. During 2014
and up to the date of this report, new contracts valued over HK$8.5 billion
were awarded. With this strong order book, the Construction business
achieved new records with its latest outstanding works on hand reaching
over HK$18 billion and delivered a new record level of EBITDA of HK$352
million.
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Review of Business and Prospects (continued)

Business Overview (continued)

(i) Property Development & Investment
La Viva, situated in Tieling new town, Shenyang, China, represents a new
style of suburban living that offers total quality proposition, including
residential, entertainment, education, community facilities, tourist attractions
and more. Phase 1 development, comprises residential, commercial and
entertainment facilities with GFA over 400,000 square metres, will be
completed in mid-2015. The sale launch will be tied to the planned opening
of the outlets and water park in the second half of 2015.

Following the acquisition of La Viva project, the Group completed another
very substantial property acquisition of New Times Plaza, situated in Beijing,
in 2013. The property, comprising a 6-storey shopping mall and 168
SOHO units with a total gross floor area of over 69,000 square metres,
diversifies the Group’s income stream and improves the Group’s property
asset portfolio base. Through the repositioning of tenants portfolio after
acquisition, the occupancy rate in both the mall and the residential tower
have picked up favorably and it demonstrates our ability to provide an
effective platform in which the tenants can flourish, enhance value for our
shareholders.

(iii) Property and facility management
The property and facility management business of Synergis Holdings
Limited achieved a new record revenue of HK$848 million during 2014, as
it continues to expand into related business in Hong Kong and entered the
high margin asset management business in Chinese Mainland, especially
with the Group's enriched properties portfolio.

Construction Business Review

In the past few years, Hsin Chong has developed its competitive edge in a
wide range of building construction contracts from Residential and Commercial
Buildings to Data Centre, University buildings and campuses, Hotels and Hospitals.
The successful execution and delivery of (i) Data Centres including HSBC Data
Centre at Shatin, Wonder 8 Data Centre, China Mobile Global Network Centre;
(ii) Public Housing projects at Shatin 4C and Ex-Shatin Married Quarter; (iii)
University Buildings and Campuses for Chinese University of Hong Kong, The
Hong Kong University of Science and Technology, Hong Kong Baptist University
and City University of Hong Kong; (iv) Hotels including Sands Hotel, Venetian
Resort and Sands Cotai Central; and (v) Hospitals including Prince Wales Hospital.

Allies to the solid foundation in building construction business, Hsin Chong has
extended the business arm to Civil Engineering business and gained recognition
through the award of 6 MTR contracts with our own capacity or joint venture
partners. All of our joint venture partners are the renowned world-class
contractors like Laing O" Rouke Construction Hong Kong Limited, China Railway
Construction Corporation Limited and Samsung C&T Corporation. Today, Hsin
Chong is one of the leading contractors in Hong Kong.

* for identification purposes only
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEER WL

Review of Business and Prospects (continued)

Construction Business Review (continued)

“Our order book has grown healthily and steadily over the last 3 years
with its outstanding value of contracts on hand exceeded HK$18 billion.”

New Orders (excl. NSC)
FBIREHN (REFENSC)

HK$ billion 15
BEHET

REOBREMNS (2)

BEXBEE (7

[BX=F HEFENIESNE—HERERERE
o RFHEEEM KR EDER 13087 )

2014~

A Included new orders awarded
subsequent to year end

2011 2012 2013
I Building Construction [ Civil Engineering
BFEE TARTRE
I Interior & Special Projects W Electrical & Mechanical
ENEMRAFKRIER HE TR

Outstanding Workload (excl. NSC)
FHEATERESHEE (REIENSC)

BEFEHRRAENTIZAN

+7% 18.7*

2014~

A Included new orders awarded
subsequent to year end

HK$ billion 20
BT 17.5
15
10
5
0
2011 2012 2013
I Building Construction [ Civil Engineering
BFRE N
I Interior & Special Projects W Electrical & Mechanical
EREMRISHRIER E

During 2014, new work order of HK$4.4 billion were awarded and the
outstanding value of work order were over HK$14.6 billion at the end of the year.
Subsequent to the year end, HK$4.1 billion new orders have been awarded and
resulted in the outstanding contract value of HK$18.7 billion™ on hand, which
achieved a new milestone. The new orders awarded during 2014 included:

In Hong Kong:

- MTR contract of Advance Works for North-South Line for Shatin Central
Link

—  Building contracts at Wong Chuk Hang Street and Tang Lung Street

*  Excluding the workdone executed in 2015
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Review of Business and Prospects (continued)

Construction Business Review (continued)

—  Site Formation contracts for residential development at Ho Man Tin and
commercial development at Hysan Avenue

- Renovation contracts for CDW Building, Lee Gardens One and Butterfly
Plaza

- MVAC contracts for New World Centre and Chu Hai College
In Macau:

—  Galaxy contracts including Jack-in Piling Work, Link Bridge Foundation work
and Construction work

—  Renovation contract for Macau Taipa Hotel

Subsequent to the year end and up to the date of this report, the Group has
secured two new contracts worth HK$4.1 billion, including a Building construction
contract for residential development at Ho Man Tin and a Foundation contract for
the Hong Kong Ocean Park Marriott Hotel.

The Group continues to maintain a well-diversified portfolio of construction
contracts from the Government, Hong Kong Housing Authority, MTR and
prestigious private clients.

“Our well-diversified portfolio included construction contracts from
government, public institutions and prestigious private clients including
Macau gaming concessionaries.”

Outstanding Workload (excl. NSC)
FERTEHEHEE (FEFENSC)

HK$ billion
BRI

42%
7.9
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEN® AT

Review of Business and Prospects (continued)

Construction Business Review (continued)

Including the new orders awarded subsequent to year end, the outstanding value
of contracts exceeding HK$18 billion (HK$19 billion if including NSC). Our orders
on hand are from a wide spectrum of clients includes:

Public sector — Government & Public Institutions
—  Water Supplies Department and Drainage Services Department;

Hong Kong Housing Authority: 5 public housing projects in Anderson Road,
Hung Shui Kiu, Tung Chung, Au Tau and Kai Tak;

—  The MTR: Express Rail Link contracts, namely, Nam Cheong foundation
works, Huanggang to Mai Po Tunnels, West Kowloon Terminus of Express
Rail Link; superstructure works of Wong Chuk Hang depot of South Island
Line and two railway stations and Tunnels of the Shatin Central Link;
Advance Work of the Shatin Central Link; and

—  The Adventist Hospital.

Private clients
—  Macau Gaming: Venetian Resort and Casino and Galaxy Resort and Casino.

—  Other prestigious private clients such as Kerry Properties, New World and
Hysan Group.

With the average delivery time of the construction contracts of 2 to 3 years, our
current outstanding orders on hand would secure our revenue in the coming 2 to
3 years. The well-diversified clients’ portfolio would ensure the stable and timely
revenue stream which is the critical factor for a construction business with annual
turnover of over HK$8 billion.

EBGOBEREAIR ()

BiEEXLE (&)

ARFEAREENTIIESGY FERTKAOER
BE B 18018 T (fiMist NSC @ A/B #1902 7T) » FFIHY
FHAHTIRRETABENES  81F:

DNEBI-BERDEHE
— KBEBERRBE:

- EBAFREZE® URRERE KB RA M
BERRENEEAEFERRIAR

— RBEAREBERESEALN HBHSUMMETE 2
KBRS BRESHEHE LAY mESR
EMMERGECERN LETRE: RO GH W E
B s MR DR RHBTH TR R

—  BEEb-

BAEF

— RPISRARL : BB AR BN RIRES IR
B RIS o

- HONRAARFPUREER HEARFEEE

4

BEER N THRNEE2E3FHE AFBERA RS
A K AHRFE R PIARIQEIFHWRA - BEZ T B PHE
B A RERAZTE A S B BV M » L Th 5 4R i KRR R IR D
BeofE Tz BEXRH L AREE-

Construction performance highlight (in HK$ million) 2014 2013 Change
BEXBERNE (S¥%EET) 20145 20134 23
Turnover BEHE 13,040 10,665 +22%
Turnover — excl. NSC BEH-FTHIENSC 8,068 8,307 -3%
Gross profit EF 509 423 +20%
Gross profit margin — excl. NSC EFE-FEIENSC 6.3% 5.1% +1.2ppB P 2
General and administrative expenses ~ —#R R {TIBAZ (179) (142) —26%
Operating profit EEER 338 283 +19%
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Review of Business and Prospects (continued)
Construction Business Review (continued)

Turnover - excl. NSC
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEN® AT

Review of Business and Prospects (continued)

Construction Business Review (continued)

In the context of the market conditions facing our industry in Hong Kong, our
Construction business has demonstrated strong performance in replenishing its
order book, increasing revenue and generating profit. In spite of the increasing
competition due to the lower number of available project opportunities in 2014,
our gross profit grew 20% to HK$509 million, to which Building division was the
major contributor. The good performance resulted from the division continuing
to uphold its principles of quality, safety, reliability and integrity. In 2014, with
the Group's business expands, Hsin Chong is honoured to earn widespread
recognition and numerous awards for our efforts in Health, Safety, Quality and
Environmental Protection.

o “Best Contractor”, “Grand Safety Award”, “Gold Safety Award”, "Lowest
Reportable Accident Frequency Rate Award” and “Silver Stakeholder
Engagement Award” in MTR's Projects Quality, Safety, Environmental and
Stakeholder Engagement Awards

. Grand Award in “Innovative Environmental Award”

o Gold Award in “Health and Welfare Category — Innovative Safety Initiative
Award”

o Gold Award in “Green Management Award for project management”

o Bronze Award in “Work Stress Management Best Practice Award”

o Bronze Award in “Environmental, Health and Safety (EHS) Award”

o Merit in “Operational Device Category — Innovative Safety Initiative Award”
o Merit in “Prevention of Pneumoconiosis Best Practices Award”

o Merit in “Considerate Contractors Site Award”

o Merit in “Outstanding Environmental Management and Performance
Award”

Gross margin have improved to 6.3% (2013: 5.1%). It has benefited from strong
order book of the prior years. With the strategic wins of a mega-sized residential
development projects subsequent to the year end, we are confident that the
financial performance would be further improved by closely cost monitoring.

Our Macau construction team continued to provide services for the Venetian,
Galaxy projects and other construction projects. In Macau, the team is now able
to provide full range of contracting services from building Hotel resorts, University
Building to Waste Water Treatment Plant and delivers a steady return to the Group
in the year. Subsequent to the year end, Hsin Chong has extended our business
to Henggin, Chinese Mainland to look for opportunities in the special economic
region with high potential. We are then optimistic that, through our strong
presence in the region coupled with the reputation generated from the proven
track records, the Group expects benefits from the region in 2015 and beyond.
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Review of Business and Prospects (continued)

Construction Business Review (continued)

Since 2009, the Group has focused resources to develop the Civil Engineering
and Interiors & Special Projects (“ISP”) divisions with a view to diversifying our
portfolio to different types of construction businesses and avoiding over reliance
on the dynamics of building sector. Now, we are well-equipped to manage market
fluctuations and able to deliver profit-generating revenue. Following strategic
partnerships with Laing O'Rourke and China Railways, our Civil Engineering
division has secured Express Rail Link contract No. 810B — West Kowloon Terminus
Station South and Express Rail Link contract No. 826 — Huanggang to Mai Po
Tunnels. In 2013, joint ventured with another world-class contractor — Samsung
C&T Corporation, was awarded a Shatin Central Link contract to build the Tunnel
and Stations of Sung Wong Toi & To Kwa Wan. In 2014, the division contributed
gross profit of $97 million, representing a growth rate of 8%. The division now
becomes the second pillar of the Group.

The Civil Engineering Division continues to build on the success of landmark
projects such as Stonecutters Bridge and Sha Tin New Town Stage Il, Road T3. In
addition to a number of contracts for foundations works and government utilities,
we are also currently managing six contracts for MTR as part of the current
expansion of MTR services throughout Hong Kong. Of particular significance are
the Express Rail Link West Kowloon Terminus Station South and Shatin to Central
Link Sung Wong Toi and To Kwa Wan Stations and Tunnels which incorporates
two new stations and 1.6 kilometres of dual connecting tunnels.

Another challenging project is Express Rail Link Nam Cheong Property Foundation
Removal/Reprovisioning which involved the removal of over 300 existing piles and
saw Hsin Chong pioneer the rotator and wedge method of pile removal in Hong
Kong. Our exceptional performance on this project led to the award of a further
MTR project, Advance Works for North-South Line for Shatin Central Link, which
also involved pile removal. The experience and expertise that Hsin Chong has
amassed in undertaking these technically demanding projects has positioned it as
Hong Kong's market leader in pile removal.

ISP division, a quality alterations and additions general contractor, sustained a
strong record financial performance since establishment. The focused resources
resulted from re-organisation in 2012 would align the ISP’s renovation and
alteration and additions businesses with Synergis’ repairs and maintenance
business. During the year, the division delivered HK$69 million gross profit,
representing a growth of 25% comparing to last year and 97% over the last
three years. With the skilled and experienced staff and excellent track records, it is
expected to create synergies. We are confident that the capability of ISP division to
explore opportunities with expanded clientele from both ISP division and Synergis
would benefit Hsin Chong in the coming years.

At present, Hsin Chong has successfully diversified our construction business
from Building Construction to other opportunities like Civil Engineering and ISP.
The segment gross margins were aligned with the industry average and some of
them were even above our fellow competitors. It was evidenced with the growth
dynamic in gross profit. For the construction and engineering business, effective
cost management and efficiencies in project delivery have played a significant role
in sustaining gross margin throughout the period. We understand that a strong
gross margin result is of importance as it is a key indicator of performance and
earnings quality in our business.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEN® AT

Review of Business and Prospects (continued) RIEIBERAETR(
Property Development & Investment Business Review MEBRRRREE ﬁ@ﬁf
Performance highlight (in HK$ million) 2014 2013 Change
ERmE(E¥E&ET) 20144 20134 o)
Turnover BxH
HK properties BBEME 21 43 -51%
PRC properties R 101 7 +1,343%
122 50 +144%
Gross profit EF
HK properties VR /UES 14 34 -59%
PRC properties B 2 9 3 +200%
23 37 -38%
Gross profit margin EFE
HK properties BRMEFE 67% 79% 12 ppBE 2 Bh
PRC properties ek S 9% 43% 34 ppEDE
Fair value gain/(loss) LREBRT(EH)
HK properties BEYE (8) (18) +56%
PRC properties ek S 412 = N/AZT 3 FR
404 (18) N/A 7 F

“Hsin Chong property segment is contributing a brilliant financial
performance in FY2014”

Following the acquisition and investment in previous 3 years, the property
segment is contributing a brilliant financial performance in 2014. For the year of
2014, the business segment has contributed EBITDA of HK$375 million (2013:
HK$52 million). Comparing to the last year, as the 20-year freely assignable
Master Lease of a property located at 3 Lockhart Road expired in August 2014,
rental contribution from that property in 2014 was then significantly reduced. The
decrement was covered by the rental and related income generated by Beijing
New Times Plaza through the growth of our properties portfolio in Chinese
Mainland.

Particularly, the growth of properties value has contributed HK$404 million of fair
value gain (2013: fair value loss of HK$18 million) on investment properties to
the Group. Contributing factors included an increase of rental and related income
generated from New Times Plaza and the accelerated construction works of
commercial development of La Viva.

HSIN CHONG CONSTRUCTION GROUP LTD. ANNUAL REPORT 2014 18

[EFE YRR EBR2014F1 FF 17T EBAIFR ]

BEE=—FHRERIEER  MEDBR2014F 815 28
HIRRKAE © 20144F » YD %5 SSEIEBITDA (T3 B3 8 K2 8 45 Al
FH) BB #3758 7T (2013 : B#E5,2008 7)) < IREFLE
B AR B35 20 A] 5 e R E#EMR2014F8 A
fEim KB R ENTE S UA KRR L o L5 B A AY
R FEREYPOBBHAFPASNNRESRAEE
H & RAEEKARBRE T EEWERDARA -

VEEEERANERTRILEMER LBEWEEE4.04
Bt Q013F AR EEEEK1,8008 L) - AT ER

ZEEFFERYPLOELNES RABKRAENERE
H¥MHAA BN AENRETIZINE-



Review of Business and Prospects (continued)

Property Development & Investment Business Review (continued)

“Hsin Chong has steady expansion of land bank for long-term sustainable
development”

To support its sustainable development, the Group has been looking for large-
scale development projects from time to time. Subsequent to year end, the Group
completed a very substantial acquisition of land parcels with a gross site area of
1.9 million square meters in Foshan city, Guangdong Province on 8 January 2015.
Hsin Chong has now accumulated land bank with over 5 million developable
square meters. Our developable land bank consists of 60% (2013: 65%) of low/
mid-high rise buildings, 29% (2013: 35%) of commercial development and 11%
(2013: nil) of low-density residential buildings. The property development business
is now geared to kick off its dynamic growth path. We believe that, under
the current urbanisation policy in the Chinese Mainland, La Viva and Foshan
properties provides the Group with a valuable land bank in both the Northern and
Southern part of China, and will evolve into a good source of revenue stream for
the Group's property development and investment business.

Land Bank
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Review of Business and Prospects (continued)
Property Development & Investment Business Review (continued)

(i)

La Viva

La Viva is located in Tieling New Town in Liaoning Province. It covers an
area of 180 hectares and a total gross floor area of approximately 3 million
square meters, of which about 2 million square meters are for residential
units and about 1 million square meters are for commercial properties.
Upon completion, it will provide over 20,000 residential units. It includes
numerous facilities such as retail, entertainment, tourist attractions,
residential, international school, hotel and other MICE facilities. The project
will be developed over 6 to 10 years in 4 phases. Tourism real estate and
urbanisation are the two driving engines behind the development concept
of La Viva.

The Tieling government has already moved their offices to Tieling New Town
and so have many of the businesses and residents from Tieling old town
and other districts of Tieling. La Viva is only 5-minute drive away from this
new hub. With this close proximity, our plan is to develop a large mixed-use
community to make La Viva a tourism hotspot as well as the place for living.

Residential development

La Viva's phase 1 residential development is designed in an Art Deco style. It
comprises of 16 high-rise residential towers, 22 low-rise residential towers,
and yields a total saleable area of 340,000 square meters. Upon completion,
there will be a total of 3,100 units available for sale, with size ranging from
40 to 210 square meters per unit, on average, 110 square meters per unit.
The residential sales launch will be tied with the phase opening of the
commercial development in the second half of 2015.

La Viva Lifestyle center £ R & & Fhib
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Review of Business and Prospects (continued)
Property Development & Investment Business Review (continued)

Commercial development

As for the commercial development of La Viva, Aqua Wave Water Park, one
of the key components of the unparalleled La Viva experience, is coming
along smoothly. Created by the world renowned Canadian planning and
design firm, it will be the first round water recreation facility in China’s
booming northeast region. The first phase of commercial development also
consists of retail outlets with operation aimed to start in the summer of
2015. The total GFA of outlets and water park approximates to 186,000
square meters. The Water Park offers highly innovative rides, China’s first
snorkeling pool and the first man-made surfing rides, etc. The outlet also
provides a wide selection of restaurants, the first movie-themed hotel in the
region, and the first regional shopping destination with a mix of different
intriguing European architectural designs; therefore, La Viva is not only a
spot of weekend retreats, but also a great shopping and entertainment
convenience for residents of La Viva. The valuation of investment properties
under development of retail outlet in La Viva was HK$ 1,198 million.

Water Park 7k 45
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Review of Business and Prospects (continued)
Property Development & Investment Business Review (continued)

(ii)

New Times Plaza

The property is a commercial development with a GFA of 69,540 square
meters, comprising 15 stories above-ground and 3 stories of basement. The
shopping mall and car park occupy nine floors of the property (from 3rd
floor of the basement to 6th floor). A total of 168 units of SOHO (Small
Office, Home Office) are located on the 7th to 15th floor of the property
with a total GFA of 13,742 square meters.

As of the date of this report, the occupancy rate of the shopping mall is
approximately 88%. We intend to revamp the trade mix over the coming
year to further strengthen the mall’s retail offering and meet the demands
of the large residential population living nearby. To further strengthen
the mall’s retail offerings, the Group had a full-fledged Garfield-themed
campaign from September to October 2014 displaying a six-metre
version of the beloved cartoon character and 70 other Garfield characters
throughout the mall and its open piazza. Featuring thrilling performances
and fun-filled events the celebration sparked strong enthusiasm among
customers and residents in the area. Based on the aforesaid plan, we
envisage the rental income from the mall would offer the Group a stable
source of regular income. The mall has generated property rental and
related income of HK$46.8 million (post-acquisition in 2013: HK$7.2 million)
for the year ended 31 December 2014.

In the second half of 2014, the Group launched the sale of SOHO units
which has contributed HK$54.3 million (2013: Nil) of revenue to the Group.
The aggregated contracted sales area was around 1,200 square meters,
with an average selling price of approximately RMB42,500 per square meter.

New Times Plaza $i S E B0
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Review of Business and Prospects (continued) RKHGOBERAER (8
Property Development & Investment Business Review (continued) MERRRREEHFLOE (&Z)
(iii) Foshan (iii) &L

Subsequent to the year end, the Group has completed a very substantial
acquisition of property project in Foshan on 8 January 2015. The project
is located in Sanshui District, Foshan City, Guangdong Province and covers
an aggregate site area of 1.9 million square meters and gross floor area
of 1.9 million square meters, of which about 1.5 million square meters
are for residential units and about 0.4 million square meters are for
commercial properties. It is a mixed-use development located in the Greater
Guangzhou-Foshan-Zhaoging economic region, and it is approximately 45
minutes and 20 minutes away from Guangzhou and Foshan, respectively.
The scenic site is surrounded with natural lakes and an abundance of
greenery.

The residential component is comprised of low density residential buildings,
low rise and mid and high rise residential apartments. The retail component
will be helmed by a large-scale themed retail and entertainment. Phase 1
of development plan will represent 10-15% of the total gross floor area.
It includes the existing retail outlet mall of 99,000 square meters, low rise
residential apartments and community facilities. Phase 1 will be rolled out
within the next 2 years and the existing retail outlet mall is intended to start
the operation toward the end of 2015.

Retail outlet mall Z &£

“Hsin Chong is expanding its property portfolio and striving to
become a leading brand in the China’s real estate market”

Urbanisation is being pursued at an unprecedented pace in China. The
property markets in the second and third tier cities have become the focus
of the Group's development activities. Under the Group's long-range
expansion plans, the management has been regularly evaluating various
large-scale property development projects. The Group will continue to
evaluate and act on opportunities to further grow its property portfolio and
strive to become a leading brand in the Mainland’s real estate market.
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Review of Business and Prospects (continued)

Synergis Property Management Business Review

The Property and Facility Management business maintained its superb
performance as a leading independent property manager in Hong Kong in the
year. The revenue of this business segment is stable and contributed EBITDA of
HK$30 million, increase by 10% over the last year.

Our property management portfolio has expanded with the award of new private
contracts such as Smart A (£24)) , Man Kee Mansion (% X/ ) , Chun Wo
Commercial Centre (R M2 KE ) , Hillgrove (L), Cloudview Mansion
(=), Honley Court (FEFIALr) , Serene Villa (28%5) and Park Mansions
(BFIBARE) . Moreover, the division also secured several facility management
contracts from the Government, public organisations and Hong Kong Housing
Authority (HKHA):

o Kwai Chung Shopping Centre, and Carparks (HKHA);

e  Control of Estate in both Kowloon East, Kowloon West and Hong Kong
Regions (HKHA);

. HKHA Headquarters Building Block 1 and 2 (HKHA);

e the Mid-Levels Escalator and Walkway System Management Contract in
Central (the Government);

e Customer Service Centre and Backend Accountancy Services to the newly-
established West Island Extension Line (MTR);

e Security Service Contract for Le Prestige (MTR); and

e Taxi Passenger Queue Management & Anti-touting Operation Services in the
Airport (Hong Kong Airport Authority).

Looking forward

Culminating an eventful year in which La Viva unveiled its lifestyle centre and
residential clubhouse while moving closer to phase one completion of its
residential development and the opening of its commercial outlet and water
world complex, Hsin Chong won the “Influencing China Awards — Leading
Enterprises of Industries Award” from Wen Wei Po on 4 December 2014. The
honour recognises the Group’s outstanding achievements in the Construction and
Property industry in Hong Kong and the Chinese Mainland.

2014 was a challenging year. With lower volumes of available government
projects due to filibuster rally in the Legislative Council, the consistent growth of
obtaining new orders was inevitably affected. Fortunately, the market outlook for
construction business in 2015 and the coming years is still strong. Government
keeps spending on infrastructure and other construction works, one of which is
the third runway at Chek Lap Kok Airport. In order to consolidate Hong Kong
as an aviation hub, the Government has just endorsed the third runway plan.
Construction work is expected to start next year. Construction cost of the third
runway and its peripheral facilities is estimated to be HK$141.5 billion. Together
with the approximately HK$170 billion to HK$240 billion worth of projected
construction work per annum planned for the coming 10 years in public and
private sectors, the construction industry sees a great prospect ahead and we, as
one of the major industry player, is certainly going to benefit from it.
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Review of Business and Prospects (continued)

Looking forward (continued)

Hsin Chong’s construction business is looking to continue to strengthen its
position in infrastructure, building on recent successes in building up the capacity
and capabilities of our Civil Engineering Division, so as to consolidate our position
as a major player in this sector. At the same time, we will work to maintain our
market share of building work undertaken by our well-established and successful
Building Division, focusing on our key strength of delivering complex projects such
as upcoming mega-sized Government projects of development in West Kowloon,
Kowloon East Police Headquarter and new MTR routes.

In addition to Hong Kong, we will work to expand our operations in Macau,
having positioned ourselves to take up opportunities presented by the continuing
substantial growth of the major leisure and gaming facilities in Macau over
the next few years and the planned increase in spending on infrastructure and
building projects by the Macau Government. We will also monitor potential
opportunities in Henggin, Chinese Mainland on a selective and prudent basis.

Whilst a strong market outlook presents opportunities, we are aware that it
also presents challenges in competing for industry resources with high demands
and managing the costs in doing so. To meet these challenges in respect of
our operations and management of staff, we are putting in place measures to
improve efficiencies and effectiveness, including investment in the increased use
and application of IT systems where analysis has identified that this will be of
substantial benefit. The construction industry also faces high demand for materials
and skilled tradesmen. Materials prices are dictated largely by macroeconomic
factors and we continually monitor price and economic trends so as to capture
benefits and/or cap inflationary risks by strategic bulk purchasing. The supply
of skilled tradesmen in Hong Kong is limited and it would be very difficult to
increase in the short term. Given this, we will work very closely with key trade
subcontractors to maintain and further develop our relationships to ensure that
Hsin Chong is an employer of choice for them, thus enabling us to resource our
projects at a competitive cost.

Through improved efficiency, strict cost control, strategic purchasing and close
working relationships with our suppliers and subcontractors, we are confident
that we will be able to make the most out of the opportunities that the strong
construction market presents to us.

For the property business in the Chinese Mainland, the economic situation
remains complex and evolving. Over the past 2 years, the country’s development
has entered into a new era, from rapid growth through heavy investment and
demographic dividends to a moderate growth through increased business
and economic efficiency and regulatory streamlining and consolidation. The
property market is undergoing a similar transformation. Property development
is not just about developing property, but about creating value through building
environment. In the coming years, the market growth pace would slow down but
increasing emphasis should be placed on innovative designs, making the most of
the existing space and contributing to the local communities through well thought
development. Our signature property development project, La Viva has developed
immensely over the past year. The Group's strategy in property development
of building community received widespread appreciation. Our La Viva Lifestyle
Centre, completed in 2014, now showcases this enjoyable and harmonious
lifestyle destination. The World first class water park, will complete in 2015, meets
globally-recognised benchmarks in terms of environmental sensitivity, facilities and
safety. It will present a highly desirable water entertainment experience for all. We
are building destination and experience.
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Review of Business and Prospects (continued)

Looking forward (continued)

Construction of La Viva phase one is progressing on schedule. Residential units
will be ready for sale in 2015. In 2014, we were awarded the Certificate for
quality construction of the main structure conferred by the Tieling Construction
Project Quality Management Association. It recognised Hsin Chong's outstanding
building technology and stringent quality control. With the lifting of House
Purchase Restriction Order and the lowering of interest rates, the property market
will definitely be reinvigorated in the coming years. The management believe that
La Viva's residential development would generate long term stable revenue for the
Group.

In the future, the Group will continue to seek to develop other projects in due
time, and strive to become a leading brand in the Chinese Mainland’s real estate
market. Subsequent to the year end, the Group successfully completed a very
substantial acquisition of a mega sized property development project in Foshan
in January 2015. With the successful experience in La Viva, we are confident that
our spirit of creating value will always animate our mission and be passed along in
the dynamic years ahead.

Financial Position

Consolidated Net Assets

FEEERE
HK$ million
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Review of Business and Prospects (continued) REEERES ()
Financial Position (continued) R (42)
Property Property &
Development & Facility
Construction Investment Management Total
Summary of Financial Position HEARKE MERRR MER
(in HK$ million) (BEEET) #ig A BHEER - H
Current Assets mENEE
Properties under development BRI = 4,287 = 4,287
Receivable and others JRE MK BR TR % E At 3,168 684 601 4,453
Bank and Cash balances RIT RIS AR 714 90 91 895
3,882 5,061 692 9,635
Current Liabilities mEA R
Bank loans — due within 1 year* BITER—1FRE|H* (481) (1,294) (139) (1,914)
Notes B - (155) = (155)
Payables FETBRAR (3,056) (790) (452) (4,298)
(3,537) (2,239) (591) (6,367)
Non-current Assets/(Liabilities) ERBEE(AR)
Leasehold land and building HE L REF - 506 - 506
Investment properties "B - 2,804 3 2,807
Intangibles BmIZERE 8 23 99 130
Bank loans — due after 1 year* IRITER — 1F& 5+ (172) (1,242) (108) (1,522)
Net deferred tax liabilities R IEBEFE (5) (609) (14) (628)
Others Hih 68 22 7 97
(101) 1,504 (13) 1,390
Net Assets HERE 244 4,326 88 4,658
#  Classified according to repayment schedule. Please refer note 13 to the consolidated — *  RIREFEERDIE - FEHIRE MFHREM T3 -
financial statements
2014 2013
Gearing BfRHEE
Net debt to tangible net assets FABHEMEEFELE 60% 39%
Current ratio IR 1.4 1.6
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Review of Business and Prospects (continued)

Financial Position (continued)

Funding Highlights

e On 27 January 2014, HK$156.3 million of notes were placed (with
subscription warrants attached). The funds so raised after expenses have
been utilised to finance the development cost of the La Viva project. On 27
January 2015, the entire balance of notes was repaid.

o Subsequent to year end and up to the date of this report, a total number
of 857,449,996 shares of ordinary shares at HK$1.00 per share under the
Rights Issue and a total number of 1,472,960,000 shares of ordinary shares
at HK$1.00 per share under New Placing were issued and allotted.

Interest on the Group's bank borrowings are mainly charged at a spread to
HIBOR, ranged from 1.6% to 8.2% (2013: from 1.6% to 8.2%). With regard to
the current portfolio of businesses, the management expects that the Group's
financial requirements will be met by a combination of issuance of new equity
shares and bank borrowings. Hsin Chong would continue to manage our financial
position and maintain sufficient working capital and liquidity to take advantage of
any business opportunities and prepare for economic or operational challenges.

Pledge of assets

As at 31 December 2014, the Group pledged its investment property, leasehold
land and building, properties under development, stocks of properties and bank
balances with carrying amounts of HK$1,606 million (2013: HK$1,524 million),
HK$506 million (2013: HK$399 million), HK$230 million (2013: HK$232 million),
HK$631 million (2013: HK$691 million) and HK$30 million (2013: HK$4 million),
respectively, and its equity interest in certain subsidiaries, as collaterals to various
banks to secure its banking facilities.

Exposure to fluctuations in exchange rates and related hedges

The Group operates in Hong Kong, Macau and the PRC with most of the
transactions denominated and settled in local currencies. Foreign exchange risk
exposure arising from the Group's operation in Macau and the PRC is monitored
by proper synchronisation of receipts and payments in different operating
currencies. As at 31 December 2014, the Group does not use any derivative
financial instruments to hedge its exposure to foreign exchange risk (2013: nil).

Commitments

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had capital commitments in respect
of contracted but not provided for capital expenditures on properties under
development amounted to HK$2,362 million (2013: HK$ 1,549 million).

Contingent liabilities

The Group had no significant contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2014 and
2013.
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Human Capital Investment
Advocating “Social Responsibility”
The Group put strong emphasis on social responsibility.

The Group has been continuously awarded the Caring Company Logo by the
Hong Kong Council of Social Services since 2002 and is awarded the 10 Years Plus
Caring Company Logo. From 2012, the Group has been awarded the HKQAA-
HSBC CSR Advocate Mark jointly by Hong Kong Quality Assurance Agency
("HKQAA") and the Hong Kong and Shanghai Banking Corporation (“HSBC")
for our commitment to “Social Responsibility”. To continue to embrace Corporate
Social Responsibility (“CSR”) in the Group’s operation and promote a favourable
business environment that fosters sustainable development while harnessing
genuine long-term business values, it encourages staff to participate in a wide
range of company organized charitable activities and voluntary services actively,
including Walk for Millions; Orbis Moonwalkers; blood donation day; home repair
and maintenance services for the elderly; and home visits to live-alone elderly.

Human Resources

Staff Training and Organization Development

As at 31 December 2014, the Group employed a total of 8,604 full time
staff, which included staff in construction, property development, property
management and related services. They are employed in Hong Kong, Macau, and
Chinese Mainland.

The Group regards its staff as one of its key assets and invests significant effort
and attention to the selection, training and personal development of our staff.
The Group was awarded as “Manpower Developer” in April 2013 in the “ERB
Manpower Developer Award Scheme” launched by the Employees Retraining
Board in recognition of our continuous efforts and outstanding performance in
the development of our workforce.

The Group is committed to developing its staff through the provision of training
and development opportunities, which aims to enhance staff productivity and
facilitate them to build their career path. In September 2014, the “Hsin Chong
Training Center” was established to provide comprehensive training programmes
including various talks and workshops delivered by senior management staff
and professors from different universities. Over 20 types of training courses were
conducted providing over 3,000 attendance hours of training for more than
1,000 staff during the year ended 31 December 2014. Moreover, the Group's
training programmes are designed and tailor-made to increase the knowledge of
its staff and fill skill gaps identified during performance appraisals. Furthermore,
the enhancement of Learning Management System (“LMS") facilitates staff
a user-friendly approach for online enrollment and course revision. Its overall
training objectives are to enhance the personal productivity of its staff and to
identify their individual interests in order to prepare their future roles and enable
them to make greater contributions to the success of the Group business. Besides
formal training programmes, the Group also provides comprehensive and relevant
training and self-learning opportunities to staff such as on-the-job training and
educational sponsorships.
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Human Resources (continued)

Staff Training and Organization Development (continued)

Regular in-house seminars and site visits have been organized, for all levels of
staff, to increase their technical and corporate knowledge. These trainees acquired
essential business knowledge and management skills through well planned job
rotations within the Group's core business units and corporate offices.

For the building and construction business, developing young engineers and
supervisory staff is an essential requirement. The Group has joined the Industrial
Attachment Programmes in 2014 for providing training to final year higher
diploma students before they obtain their academic qualification. Trainings have
been provided to both university and non-university graduated young engineers.
In addition, the Group also recruits secondary school graduates who are interested
in the construction field as apprentice by providing them on-the-job training
and releasing them from work to take designated courses for completing their
apprenticeship. Besides, the Group has joined the Contractor Cooperative Training
Scheme in March 2014 for recruiting and providing training to leveling staff in
the industry. A graduate trainee club was formed few years ago to encourage
fellowship among all our trainees. Social and training programmes were organized
regularly to improve staff commitment and sense of belonging within the Group.
Senior management staff were also trained to take up the role of mentorship to
further help the development programmes of the young engineers. A number
of in-house staff development programmes for various staff disciplines have also
been established. The Group has been making effort and having contribution to
train the youngsters to become technically competent and professionally qualified
in the construction industry.

Every year, a number of recruitment talks for fresh graduated engineers are held
in various universities in Hong Kong for implanting new blood to the construction
field. Promotion and salary reviews will be conducted every year to ensure
alignment with industry norms and retain good performers. These are important
tools to retain talent in HK's expanding construction business with limitations in
the talent pool of suitable, experienced and qualified people.

Employees and Remuneration Policies

The Group provides competitive remuneration packages that are determined with
reference to prevailing salary levels in the market and individual performance.
Discretionary bonuses are granted to staff based on their individual performance
as well as the Group's business performance. The Group has a wide range
of insurance coverage, including medical insurance coverage to all staff, life
insurance and travel insurance to staff.
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Human Resources (continued)

Employees and Remuneration Policies (continued)

Besides offering competitive remuneration packages, the Group is committed
to promoting family-friendly employment policies and practices, including the
implementation of Five Day Work Week and a series of family-friendly activities,
such as Autumn BBQ cum Family Fun Day, to create a pro-family culture and
environment. In June 2014, the Group was awarded the “Family-Friendly
Employers Award” by the Family Council, recognizing the Group’s efforts
in promoting and supporting a culture of loving families in the community.
Moreover, the “HCCG Social Club” leaded by the management was established
in May 2014 to enhance team spirits and encourage staff from different
departments to join company events together. It provides staff the opportunities
to "play hard” and pursue the hobbies after work which advocates the proper
attitude of healthy lifestyle.

Wilfred WONG Ying Wai
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 19 March 2015
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Biographies of Directors
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Dr. Wilfred WONG Ying Wai
IR@WL A

Dr. Wilfred WONG Ying Wai
SBS, JB MPA, BSocSc (aged 62)

Dr. Wilfred WONG Ying Wai (“Dr. WONG") was appointed as
an Executive Director and Executive Deputy Chairman of the
Board in December 2007, re-designated as the Chairman of
the Board and appointed as the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company with effect from 1 July 2012. He is also a member of
the Remuneration Committee, the Nomination Committee and
the Executive Committee, and a director of various subsidiaries
of the Company.

Dr. WONG is also an executive director of Synergis and the
chairman of the board of directors of Synergis. He is deemed to
be one of the substantial shareholders of the Company through
Neo Summit Limited and Summit View Holdings Limited under
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws
of Hong Kong).

Dr. WONG joined the administrative officer grade of the
Hong Kong Government in 1975 and served in a number of
key positions including Deputy Secretary for the Civil Service
and Deputy Director — General of Industry. Dr. WONG joined
the private sector in 1992 and since then, he had held top
management positions in a number of Hong Kong listed
companies in property development and construction business
sectors including K. Wah International Holdings Limited,
Henderson China Holdings Limited and the Shui On Group.

Dr. WONG started his political career at the national level
when he was appointed as a member of The Basic Law
Consultative Committee (1985-1990) by the Central People’s
Government. He was subsequently appointed by The National
People’s Congress of the People’s Republic of China (“NPC")
as a member of the Preliminary Working Committee for the
Hong Kong Special Administrative Region (the “HKSAR")
Preparatory Committee in 1993 and a member of the HKSAR
Preparatory Committee in 1995, both bodies were responsible
for the transitional policies and arrangements relating to the
establishment of the HKSAR Government in 1997. Dr. WONG
was a Deputy to the NPC during the period from 1997 to
2013.

*for identification purposes only
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Dr. WONG's public service continues through his participation
in a number of councils and committees in Hong Kong. He
is currently the chairman of Hong Kong Arts Development
Council; the chairman of Standing Commission on Civil Service
Salaries and Conditions of Service; the chairman of The Hong
Kong International Film Festival Society Limited; the chairman of
Hong Kong Baptist University Foundation; the chairman of the
Pacific Basin Economic Council Limited; the chairman of Hong
Kong Institute for Public Administration. He was appointed as
the vice-chairman of Hong Kong Film Development Council in
April 2013. He was the chairman of the Court and Council of
Hong Kong Baptist University during the period from 2007 to
2012.

For his distinguished public service, Dr. WONG was awarded
the Silver Bauhinia Star by the Government of the HKSAR
in 2007. Dr. WONG was conferred the degree of Doctor of
Humanities honoris causa from Hong Kong Baptist University
in November 2013, recognising his outstanding professional
achievements as well as his remarkable contributions to society.
He was educated at Harvard University (MPA), University of
Oxford, The University of Hong Kong (BSocSc) and The Chinese
University of Hong Kong.

Dr. WONG is currently an independent non-executive director
of Xinyi Glass Holdings Limited, which is listed on the main
board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”).
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Mr. Joseph CHOI Kin Hung
ERBEE k

Mr. Joseph CHOI Kin Hung
BSc, CEng, FHKIE, FHKIHT, MICE, RPE (aged 67)

Mr. Joseph CHOI Kin Hung (“Mr. CHOI") was appointed as
an Executive Director with effect from 22 March 2013. He is
also a member of the Executive Committee and a director of a
number of subsidiaries of the Company.

Mr. CHOI joined the Group in August 2009 as the assistant
managing director and was subsequently promoted to
managing director of the construction business in July 2012.
He oversees the overall construction business of the Group. He
has over 44 years of multi-dimensional and multi-functional
experience across contracting and client organisations in
Hong Kong, Chinese Mainland, Taiwan, Macau and overseas.
Before joining the Group, he was the general manager of the
Kowloon-Canton Railway Corporation and MTR Corporation
Limited responsible for the design and construction of various
new railway lines. He brings with him invaluable experience in
construction, property development and project management
at most senior level.

Mr. CHOI graduated from the University of Aston in
Birmingham, United Kingdom with a degree of Bachelor of
Science in Civil Engineering. He is a Fellow of the Hong Kong
Institution of Engineers (“HKIE”) and was elected as the
vice president of HKIE in June 2013. He was also appointed
as an ex-officio member of both Administration Board and
Accreditation Board, and as the chairman of Qualification
& Membership Board of HKIE in July 2014. He was further
appointed as a director of The Joint Professional Centre Limited
to represent HKIE in April 2014. Mr. CHOI is also a Fellow of
The Hong Kong Institution of Highways and Transportation; a
Member of the Institution of Civil Engineers, UK; a Chartered
Engineer, UK; and a Registered Professional Engineer, Hong
Kong. Mr. CHOI is a director of Engineering Forum Limited
and a member of Engineers Registration Board. He is also
a member of Departmental Advisory Committee for the
Department of Civil and Environmental Engineering, The Hong
Kong Polytechnic University; a council member of Hong Kong
Contractor Association; and a council member of The Hong
Kong Institution of Highways and Transportation.
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Mr. ZHOU Wei
(aged 61)

Mr. ZHOU Wei ("Mr. ZHOU") was appointed as an Executive
Director with effect from 9 May 2014. He is also a member of
the Executive Committee.

Mr. ZHOU obtained a degree from the School of Public Finance
of Liaoning Institute of Finance & Economics (currently known
as “Dongbei University of Finance & Economics”) in 1978.
Prior to joining the Company, Mr. ZHOU served as a Senior
Accountant in the Government Offices Administration of the
State Coundil ( EIF%P 4B EEEIER) . Mr. ZHOU previously
occupied the senior management positions in various private
companies and was responsible for overseeing financial and
overall management of those companies. Mr. ZHOU possesses
extensive experience in finance and corporate management in
Hong Kong and China with prominent business relationships.
He was one of the vendors in the sale of the New Times Plaza
to the Company as disclosed in the circular of the Company of
30 May 2013.
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Mr. Clifford King CHIU
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Mr. Clifford King CHIU
MBA, BSc (aged 56)

Mr. Clifford King CHIU (“Mr. CHIU") was appointed as a
Non-executive Director with effect from 2 April 2014. He is
also a member of the Audit Committee and the Remuneration
Committee.

Mr. CHIU is a public company director and senior advisor to
private financial firms. A retired partner at Kohlberg Kravis
Roberts & Co. who led capital raising and investor relations for
the Asia Pacific region. Mr. CHIU is a member of the Market
Development Committee of Financial Services Development
Council, Hong Kong. He is a director of the Cambium Learning
Group, a company listed on the NASDAQ, USA, as well as a
senior advisor to Neuberger Berman Group and Angelo Gordon
& Co in the U.S. and Hong Kong. He previously served as a
managing director of JP Morgan Asset Management and of
Salomon Smith Barney/Citigroup. Mr. CHIU is a member of the
executive committee of St. James Settlement, a member of
the investment committees of West Kowloon Cultural District
Authority and Seton Healthcare Family and a partner/mentor
of technology incubator the Capital Factory, as well as on the
global advisory board of the University of Chicago Booth School
of Business and the Weingarten Learning Resources Center of
the University of Pennsylvania. He is a member of the Clinton
Global Initiative.

Mr. CHIU holds a degree of Bachelor of Science in Economics
from the Wharton School of the University of Pennsylvania
and a Master of Business Administration from the University of
Chicago Booth School of Business.
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Mr. ZHANG Xiaoying
(aged 59)

Mr. ZHANG Xiaoying (“Mr. ZHANG") was appointed as a Non-
executive Director with effect from 30 May 2014.

Mr. ZHANG, joined the timber head office of KEZ#ELE
E BB Aa (Tewoo Group Co., Ltd.*) (“Tewoo Group”)
(formerly known as Tianjin Administration Bureau of Materials
and Tianjin Material & Equipment Group Corporation, being
a substantial shareholder of the Company) in November 1975
and had held various positions including head of operation
division, deputy general manager and general manager etc. He
has been engaged in real estate development since 1999 and
is currently board chairman of KE¥EEEHREBR AR
(Tianjin Property Development Co., Ltd.*) (being a subsidiary
of Tewoo Group), mainly responsible for the overall operation
and development of projects, all-round guidance on the design,
construction and management of projects. With over a decade
of industry experience, Mr. ZHANG headed a number of large
real estate development projects in Tianjin and the Mainland
China, and the major projects include Tianjin Milan Century
Garden, Tianjin Mingjia Mansion etc., with a total development
area of over 1,600,000 square metres. Mr. ZHANG serves as
the person-in-charge of large state-owned enterprises for a
long time and has abundant experience in corporate operation
management and diversified customer resources, and gains
high recognition in domestic real estate development, project
operation, etc.

Mr. ZHANG graduated from Party School of CPC Tianjin
Municipal Committee with a bachelor degree majoring in
economics management and holds the qualifications of senior
economist, senior engineer, senior occupation manager and
senior appraiser in the real estate industry.

* for identification purposes only
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Mr. YAN lJie
(aged 51)

Mr. YAN Jie (“Mr. YAN") was appointed as a Non-executive
Director with effect from 30 May 2014.

Mr. YAN, joined Tewoo Group (formerly known as Tianjin
Administration Bureau of Materials and Tianjin Material &
Equipment Group Corporation, being a substantial shareholder
of the Company) in October 1983, and had held positions
in the finance department, audit department and assets
department. Since August 2001, he has served as the head
of corporate development department of Tewoo Group. Mr.
YAN has extensive management experience in finance, audit,
investment and strategic planning and has presided over or
participated in a number of domestic and overseas substantial
merger & acquisition and reorganization projects. Mr. YAN is
an executive director of Tewoo Investment Co., Limited and
is also a director of various subsidiaries of Tewoo Group. He
is a director of Palabora Mining Company Limited (listed in
Johannesburg Stock Exchange, South Africa, and delisted in
2014) in August 2013.

Mr. YAN graduated from Party School of the Central
Committee of CPC with a post-graduate degree majoring in
economic management, and holds professional qualifications of
accountant, senior economist and senior occupation manager.
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Dr. Joseph CHOW Ming Kuen
OBE, JB RPE, FHKIE, FICE, FiStructt, FCIT, MIHT
(aged 73)

Dr. Joseph CHOW Ming Kuen (“Dr. CHOW") was appointed
as an Independent Non-executive Director with effect from
17 June 2013. He is also the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee and a member of the Audit Committee.

Dr. CHOW is a Chartered Civil and Structural Engineer. After
graduating from The University of Hong Kong, he has nearly
52 years of experience in the planning, design and construction
of many major engineering projects in the UK, Middle East,
Chinese Mainland and Hong Kong. Dr. CHOW has been active
in professional and community services. He serves as Honorary
Senior Superintendent of the Hong Kong Auxiliary Police Force.
He was formerly the chairman of the Hong Kong Construction
Workers Registration Authority, the president of the Hong Kong
Institution of Engineers, the chairman of Hong Kong Engineers’
Registration Board, Hong Kong Examinations and Assessment
Authority, Pamela Youde Nethersole Eastern Hospital Governing
Committee as well as a member of the Hong Kong Housing
Authority and Hospital Authority. Dr. CHOW also served as
a Deputy of the Shanghai CPPCC for 20 years from 1988 to
2008.

Dr. CHOW founded his own consultancy, JMK Consulting
Engineers in 1992, and although retired from it in 2003, is
still its non-executive chairman. He is an independent non-
executive director of Chevalier International Holdings Limited,
Harbour Centre Development Limited, Road King Infrastructure
Limited and Build King Holdings Limited, all of these companies
are listed in Hong Kong. He was also an independent non-
executive chairman of the board of PYI Corporation Limited
and a non-executive director of Wheelock Properties Limited
(formerly a listed public company).
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Mr. CHENG Sui Sang
BImEkE

N

Mr. CHENG Sui Sang
MBA, BEc, CPA (aged 71)

Mr. CHENG Sui Sang (“Mr. CHENG") was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director with effect from 1 January
2014. He is also the chairman of the Audit Committee and a
member of the Nomination Committee.

Mr. CHENG has extensive experiences in banking, finance and
investment fields. He is an associate member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. CHENG was
a director of Cosmopolitan International Holdings Limited, a
company listed in the Stock Exchange, from August 2006 to
June 2014 and a director of Chi Cheung Investment Company,
Limited (now known as LT Holdings Limited), a company
listed in the Stock Exchange, from 1997 to 2000. He has held
senior management positions in companies in Hong Kong
and overseas, as well as several companies listed in the Stock
Exchange. He has also been involved in private consulting
working in the PRC and Hong Kong. He holds a Bachelor's
degree in Economics and a Master's degree in Business
Administration.

* for identification purposes only
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Mr. GAO Jingyuan
(aged 62)

Mr. GAO lJingyuan (“"Mr. GAO") was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director and a member of the
Remuneration Committee with effect from 9 May 2014.

Mr. GAO obtained a degree in History from Beijing Normal
University in 1985. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. GAO
served in the Chinese People’s Liberation Army as a platoon
leader at the Logistic and Political Department of Kunming
Military Region. He held various positions in the Ministry
of Posts and Telecommunications, namely secretary of the
Committee, director of the Administration Department, officer
of the Services Centre as well as an assistant inspector (at the
rank of Deputy Director-General) of the Education Department.
Mr. GAO had served as deputy secretary of All China Federation
of Returned Overseas Chinese (FFE2RFREFHAS)
and as director of its Economics Department. He occupied the
senior management positions in several private companies and
had been responsible for overseeing their financial and overall
management. Mr. GAO possesses extensive experience in
finance and management in both public and private sectors in
China with prominent business relationships.
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Ms. LEE Jai Ying

FEELL -

Ms. LEE Jai Ying
(aged 58)

Ms. LEE Jai Ying (“Ms. LEE") was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director and the chairman of the Nomination
Committee with effect from 9 May 2014.

Ms. LEE obtained a master's degree of Medicine from Jilin
University. She has over thirty years’ experience in corporate
management. She is the chairman of Han Sheng Tang
Herbal Technologies Co., Limited, specializing in research
and manufacturing of traditional Chinese medicine. She is a
Justice of the Peace in Hong Kong and a member of the 9th
to 12th National Committee of the Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference.
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Business Division

Mr. Keith John BUCKLEY (“Mr. BUCKLEY"), BSc (Civil), CEng, MICE, MHKIE, aged
66, is a director of Hsin Chong Construction Company Limited (“HCC") and Hsin
Chong Construction (Asia) Limited (“HCA"), and a director of certain subsidiaries
of the Company. Mr. BUCKLEY is the Executive Project Director of the construction
management business of the Group in Macau. He joined the Group in 2003
and has over 46 years of experience in the field of building construction and civil
engineering.

Mr. Cyras CHIN Chi Keung (“Mr. CHIN"), BSc (Hons), MSc, MHKIE, RPE, aged 56, is a
director of HCC and HCA, and a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company.
Mr. CHIN is responsible for the overall management of the Building Division in
Hong Kong. He joined the Group in 1994 and has over 32 years of experience
in the field of structural design and project management. Mr. CHIN is a Vice
President of the Hong Kong Construction Association and a member of the
Mandatory Provident Fund Industry Schemes Committee.

Mr. Phillip Kenneth CLARKE (“Mr. CLARKE"), MRICS, aged 55, is the commercial
director of Hsin Chong Construction (Macau) Limited, Hsin Chong Engineering
(Macau) Limited and Ever Apex Construction (Macau) Company Limited, the
Company'’s subsidiaries in Macau. Mr. CLARKE joined the Group in 2004 and has
over 34 years of experience in providing commercial and technical support in the
construction field.

Mr. Alan Clive EVANS (“Mr. EVANS"), MA, FRICS, ACIArb, RPS (QS), aged 53, is a
director of HCC and HCA, and a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company.
Mr. EVANS is responsible for overseeing all commercial, legal, insurance and
procurement matters for the whole construction business. He joined the Group in
2011 as Group Commercial Manager and has more than 31 years of property and
construction management experience with major corporations and international
consultants in the UK, Qatar, Macau and Hong Kong.

Mr. Joseph FUNG Cho Ning (“Mr. FUNG"), BSc (Eng), CEng, RPE, FIMECHE, MCIBSE,
MHKIE, aged 62, is the managing director of Hsin Chong Aster Building Services
Limited ("HC Aster”), the electrical and mechanical engineering specialists of
the Group, and a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. FUNG has
the primary responsibility in managing the business of HC Aster. He joined the
Group in 2003 and has over 39 years of experience in the engineering field as
consultant, client’s representative and contractor in Hong Kong, United Kingdom
and Australia. Prior to joining the Group, for over 17 years, Mr. FUNG was
engaged in the general management of companies in Australia and Hong Kong
before acting as the general manager of Jardine and Cathay Pacific group of
companies.

Ms. Karin LAU Shu Ya (“Ms. LAU"), MBA, 88A, aged 41, joined the Group as
Director of Commercial Development of Hsin Chong Property Development
Limited (“HCPDL") in 2011 and was promoted to Assistant Managing Director of
HCPDL in January 2014. She is now actively involved in the property development
projects in Tieling and Beijing and is in charge of the commercial team overseeing
all commercial and sales and marketing matters. Ms. LAU has over 16 years of
experience in both real estate and finance. Prior to joining the Group, Ms. LAU has
worked for leading developers such as Swire Properties Limited and Shui On Land
Limited in both Hong Kong and China. She has extensive property development
and management experience and has worked in strategy, business development,
branding, sales and marketing with a focus in mixed-used development. Of her
finance experience, Ms. LAU has worked for the corporate finance division of The
Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited on various merger and
acquisition, corporate advisory and initial public offering assignments with a focus
in finance and real estate industries.
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Business Division (continued)

Mr. Paul LEE Kai Hung (“Mr. Paul LEE"), BEng, MASc, PEng, MCSCE, CEng, MICE, RPE,
MHKIE, aged 58, is a director of HCC, HCA and the managing director of HCCG
Building and Civil Engineering (Macau) Limited. Mr. Paul LEE was appointed as the
assistant managing director of HCC on 1 January 2013 and is responsible for the
Hong Kong Civil Division; Macau Civil and Building Construction Business; Group
Health, Safety, Environment and Quality; and Plant Department. He joined the
Group in 2010 and has more than 35 years of experience in civil engineering and
building construction. Mr. Paul LEE is a registered professional engineer. Prior to
joining the Group, Mr. Paul LEE was a senior executive with a leading Hong Kong
contractor.

Mr. James LEE Kok Foo (“Mr. James LEE"), BEng, MHKIE, aged 63, is a director of
HCC and HCA, and a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. James
LEE is responsible for the business development for the Building Division including
Design and Build Projects. He is also the Head of Building Services and Railway
Systems Department overseeing business development and contracting works.
He joined the Group in 1981 and has over 41 years of experience in the field of
electrical and mechanical engineering and building construction management.

Ms. Fanny LEE Wing Lan (“Ms. LEE"), A4, HKIA, LEED AP®, aged 52, is a director
of Planning and Design of HCPDL. She joined the Group in 2011 and has over
26 years of professional architectural design and management experience in
large-scale mixed use developments in the United States of America and Asia,
including 18 years of China project experience. During her tenure as Senior
Associate Principal at the renowned international design firm of Kohn Pederson
Fox, Ms. LEE was involved in various landmark developments in China for
prominent developers including the 480-meter International Commerce Centre
in Hong Kong, mixed-use commercial developments in the Shanghai Xintiandi
precinct and the large scale residential and commercial mixed use master plan in
Zhenru, Shanghai. From 2008 to 2009, as managing director — China of Aedas
Ltd., one of the largest architectural practices globally, Ms. LEE was responsible
for managing its China operation. Ms. LEE is a licensed architect in the State of
California in the United States of America and in Hong Kong, and is a LEED AP®.
She is a past president of the Hong Kong Chapter of the American Institute of
Architects and a member of the executive committee of the North Asia Council of
the Urban Land Institute.

Mr. Richard Anthony MYRANS (“Mr. MYRANS"), BEng, CEng, FICE, MiStructf,
MHKIE, aged 58, is a director of HCC and HCA, and a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. MYRANS s a director (Civil Engineering) and is
responsible for the civil engineering business of the Group within Hong Kong.
He joined the Group in 2008 and has 36 years experience in the field of civil
engineering.

Mr. Augustine TANG Man Yee (“Mr. TANG"), MSc, MCIOB, MAIB, MHKICM,
aged 57, is a director of HCC, HCCG Building and Civil Engineering (Macau)
Limited and Ever Work Construction Limited. Mr. TANG is responsible for the civil
engineering and building in Macau. He joined the Group in 1976 and has over 38
years of experience in the field of building construction and project management
of the mega construction projects in Hong Kong, Beijing, Shenzhen and Macau.
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Business Division (continued)

Mr. YAM Kong (“Mr. YAM"), RPE, FHKIE, FIET, AIRSE, aged 61, is a Deputy Managing
Director of HCPDL. He joined the Group in 2008 and has over 37 years of
experience in the transportation industry mainly in railway and metro systems.
He is a registered professional engineer. Before joining the Group, Mr. YAM has
been in executive positions of consulting companies responsible for managing
the consultancy operation as well as exploring investment opportunities for
transportation infrastructure projects in China and overseas. Mr. YAM also worked
in many different countries including Canada, UK, Australia, Far East countries and
the Chinese Mainland.

Corporate Services

Mr. Thomas PANG Pui Yin (“Mr. PANG"), aged 53, was appointed as Chief
Financial Officer of the Group in November 2014. Mr. PANG is responsible for
all financial, accounting and corporate finance matters of the Group. Mr. PANG
possesses over 29 years of experience in the areas of capital markets, accounting
& finance, and corporate management covering a number of industrial sectors
such as real estate investment and management, oil and gas, financial advisory,
investment management and securities market regulation. Before joining the
Group, Mr. PANG held senior positions including Chief Executive Officer and Chief
Financial Officer of a real estate investment fund as well as a number of Hong
Kong listed companies.

Mr. PANG qualified as a Chartered Accountant in England and Wales in 1988
while working in the London office of a big 4 accounting firm. He is a member of
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants with exposure in the United
Kingdom, Australia, New Zealand, Hong Kong, mainland China and Dubai. Mr.
PANG graduated from the University of Oxford, England with a Master’s degree
and also obtained a Master’s degree from the International School of Advanced
Studies, University of Trieste, Italy.

Mr. LUI Chun Pong (“Mr. LUI"), BA, MAcc, LLM, MBA (Executive), FCPA, FCCA, ATIHK,
CTA (HK), ACS, ACIS, aged 46, joined the Group in 2010 as Group Financial
Controller and was appointed as Finance Director of HCC in January 2014. Mr.
LUl is responsible for overseeing the finance and accounting operations, budget
preparation, group financial control and cashflow management. He has over 24
years of experience in corporate accounting, financing, tax planning and company
secretarial practice.

Ms. Victoria TAM Yin Ping ("Ms. TAM"), MSc, MBA, M.LH.RM. (HK), MHKIoD,
FinstLM, aged 53, is the Group Human Resources Director of the Group overseeing
all human resources and development matters in Hong Kong, Macau, Chinese
Mainland and overseas. Apart from playing the strategic partner role in human
resources and development matters, she is also responsible for monitoring the
provision of Office Administration Services to the Group. Before joining the Group
in 2012, Ms. TAM has over 25 years of solid human resources management
and administration experience gained from the construction and property
development industries. Apart from a wealth of human resources strategic
management experience, Ms. TAM is also strong in system management and
documentation control accumulated from years of quality system management
role.
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Project Directors

Mr. Benjamin CHOW Tai Wang (“Mr. Benjamin CHOW"), Bsc, aged 62, was
promoted as an assistant director of HCC in 2015 and is the head of civil projects
operations. He is responsible for project management, tendering and business
development. Mr. Benjamin CHOW joined the Group in 2002. He has over 37
years of experience in foundation, site formation, infrastructure, structural steel,
road & drainage, marine works, demolition, building and contracting business.

Mr. CHOI Man Fai (“Mr. CHOI"), BSc, FHKIE, FCIOB, FHKICM, MICE, MRICS, RPE, aged
53, is a senior project director of HCC. He is responsible for managing all aspects
of the construction operations in projects under his control including the MTRC
Shatin to Central Link Contract No. SCL1109 — Sung Wong Toi and To Kwa Wan
Stations and Tunnels. Mr. CHOI joined the Group in 2009. He has over 27 years
of experience in the managing and administering of both Government-funded
and privately-sponsored infrastructure projects comprising civil, building and
foundation jobs.

Mr. Wayne CHAN Wai Kei ("Mr. CHAN"), BSc (Arch), MIHEEM, ASHRAE, aged 59,
is a project director of HC Aster. He is responsible for Building Services project
management, tender preparation and business development. Mr. CHAN joined
the Group in 2005. He has over 35 years of experience in the managing and
administering of both public and private sector E & M projects.

Mr. Chris CHAU Chi Wai (“Mr. Chris CHAU"), BSc (Hons), MHKIE, RPE, aged 53, is
a project director of HCC. He is responsible for construction projects, including
redevelopment of Hong Kong Sports Institute and Shek Mun HSBC Data Centre.
Mr. Chris CHAU joined the Group in 2007. He has 31 years of experience in the
construction industry.

Mr. Frankie LAM Kam Keung (“Mr. LAM"), BSc (Eng), MA (Arb & DR), CEng, MICE,
RPE, MHKIE, MCSCEHKB, aged 46, is a project director of HCC. He is primarily
responsible for project management as well as tender preparation and business
development. Mr. LAM joined the Group in 1994. He has over 23 years of
experience in both consulting and contracting business on a wide spectrum of
projects including infrastructure, site formation, roads & drainage, foundation,
deep excavation, geotechnical and ground investigation field works. He is also
appointed as the Authorized Signatory under the Buildings Ordinance (Chapter
123) supervising site formation and foundation works.

Mr. Christopher TANG Sik Ming (“Mr. TANG"), BSc (Hons), MCIOB, MHKIE, MASCE,
MHKICM, MCMI, RPE, MAS/, aged 60, is a project director of HCC. He is responsible
for the construction management of various projects: Sai Wan Terrace, Tsuen Wan
Adventist Hospital, Hong Kong Housing Authority’s housing developments at
Anderson Road and Tung Chung, and HKUST, etc. Mr. TANG joined the Group in
2011. He has over 36 years of experience in building construction management
and administration.

Mr. Simon YIU Chi Kin ("Mr. YIU"), BSc, MSc, MHKIE, MHKICM, MCIOB, MRICS,
aged 46, is a project director of HCC. He is responsible for construction project
management and training programme of young engineers in the Hong Kong
Buildings Division. Mr. YIU joined the Group in August 1991 as Graduate Building
Engineer. He has over 24 years of experience in building project planning and
programming, cost control, contract administration and overall construction
management.
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Corporate governance is the system by which the Company is directed and
controlled. The Board is fully aware of its importance to the shareholders and has
developed a rigorous system of checks and balances which allows management
to respond to the strategic directions approved by the Board. The Board believes
that a well balanced corporate governance system enables the Company to
achieve business excellence and fulfill the Company’s mission.

Corporate Code of Conduct

Since 1995, the Company has published and distributed its Corporate Code of
Conduct to all staff to educate and reinforce the Company’s commitment to the
highest standards of business ethics and the seriousness with which the Board
treats such matters. The Corporate Code of Conduct is a living document that
will be periodically updated to incorporate comments and suggestions from the
Independent Commission Against Corruption and the other regulating authorities
in Hong Kong.

Corporate Governance Code

The Company has applied the principals in the code provisions and certain
recommended best practices set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the "CG
Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
(the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). During the financial year ended 31 December 2014, the Company
has complied with all code provisions of the CG Code, except those deviations as
mentioned herein below.

Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors

The Board has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing
Rules (as amended from time to time by the Stock Exchange) as its own code of
conduct for regulating securities transactions by Directors. Having made specific
enquiry of all Directors, all Directors confirmed that they have complied with the
required standard set out in the Model Code throughout the financial year ended
31 December 2014.

The Board has further adopted the Model Code as the written guidelines for
regulating securities transactions by the senior management (whose names
appear in this annual report) and certain employees of the Group (collectively,
the “Relevant Employees”). The Board believes that the Relevant Employees may,
by virtue of their positions, likely be in possession of unpublished price sensitive
information of the Group.
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Board of Directors

Composition

As at 19 March 2015, the Board comprised ten Directors, including three
Executive Directors, three Non-executive Directors and four Independent Non-
executive Directors.

The names of the Directors are set out below:

Executive Directors

Dr. Wilfred WONG Ying Wai (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Joseph CHOI Kin Hung

Mr. ZHOU Wei (appointed with effect from 9 May 2014)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Clifford King CHIU (appointed with effect from 2 April 2014)
Mr. ZHANG Xiaoying (appointed with effect from 30 May 2014)
Mr. YAN Jie (appointed with effect from 30 May 2014)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Dr. Joseph CHOW Ming Kuen

Mr. CHENG Sui Sang

Mr. GAO Jingyuan (appointed with effect from 9 May 2014)
Ms. LEE Jai Ying (appointed with effect from 9 May 2014)

An updated list of Directors identifying their roles and functions is available on
the websites of the Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk) and the Company
(www.hsinchong.com).

Coming from diverse business and professional backgrounds, including real
estate development, property development, construction, finance, and finance
related work, members of the Board possess a balance of skills, expertise and
experience appropriate for the requirements of the business of the Group which
helps promote its success and benefits its management. Save as disclosed in the
Biographies of Directors set out on pages 32 to 42 of this annual report, there is
no relationship among the members of the Board.

The Company has four Independent Non-executive Directors representing more
than one-third of the total number of Board members and is in compliance
with the requirement under Rule 3.10 of the Listing Rules. The views of the
Independent Non-executive Directors carry weight in the Board's decisions, and
their participation helps the Board exercise judgment, make decisions and act
objectively in the interests of the Company and its shareholders as a whole.

Each of the Independent Non-executive Directors has given to the Company an
annual confirmation of independence in compliance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. The Company considers that all the Independent Non-executive Directors
are and have remained independent. Mr. CHENG Sui Sang, chairman of the Audit
Committee, has the appropriate accounting and financial management expertise
required under Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules.

Members of the Board, including the names of all the Independent Non-executive

Directors, are expressly identified in all corporate communications which disclose
the names of the directors of the Company.
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Board of Directors (continued)

Functions

The Board has an ultimate oversight of the Group's activities. Its primary functions
are to set and direct the Company’s strategy and to monitor and measure
the management’s performance. It is accountable for the overall strategic
development of the Group with the objective to enhance shareholder value.
Material matters are reserved for the Board’s considerations or decisions which
include, among other things, overall strategy of the Group, business plans, annual
budgets, significant capital expenditure, interim and annual results and reports,
dividend policy and payments, material acquisitions, disposals or investment
proposals, directors’ appointments, re-appointments or removal, and other
material transactions.

The Board has delegated certain of its responsibilities to the Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee and Executive Committee. It
has also delegated the day-to-day operations of the Group’s business to the senior
management. Delegation of duties to the Board committees and daily business
operations to the management are discussed on pages 55 to 63 of this report.

Board Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code provides that the roles of chairman and
chief executive should be separate and should not be performed by the same
individual. Dr. Wilfred WONG Ying Wai is both the Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer of the Company. The Company considers that this dual role is essential at
this time, in order to continue to oversee the existing construction and property
and facility management businesses, whilst at the same time to manage the
strategic development of and significant additional capital commitments to, the
property development and investment business.

With the support from the Executive Directors and the Company Secretary, the
Board chairman ensures that all Directors are properly briefed on issues arising
from Board meetings and receive adequate, complete and reliable information on
a timely manner.

Appointment, Re-election and Removal of Directors

The Board has assumed the responsibility to consider the appointment, re-election
and removal of the Directors. The Board set up a Nomination Committee in 2011
to recommend the appointment, re-election and removal of the Directors.

All the Non-executive and Independent Non-executive Directors have entered into
letters of appointment with the Company for a term of two years subject to the
requirements of the Listing Rules and the bye-laws of the Company ("Bye-laws”),
including the requirement of retirement by rotation and re-election or standing for
re-election at annual general meetings of the Company at least once every three
years. The term is renewable upon expiry.

Any new director to be appointed by the Company shall be provided with
information on duties and obligations of director, relevant regulatory requirements
and the Group's business affairs. All Directors appointed to fill a casual vacancy
would be subject to election by shareholders at the first general meeting of the
Company after appointment.
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Board of Directors (continued)

Appointment, Re-election and Removal of Directors (continued)

Code provision A.4.2 of the CG Code provides that all directors appointed to fill
a casual vacancy should be subject to election by shareholders at the first general
meeting after appointment. (i) Mr. ZHOU Wei was appointed by the Board as an
Executive Director with effect from 9 May 2014; (i) Mr. GAO Jingyuan and Ms.
LEE Jai Ying were appointed by the Board as Independent Non-executive Directors
with effect from 9 May 2014; and (jii) Mr. ZHANG Xiaoying and Mr. YAN Jie were
appointed by the Board as Non-executive Directors with effect from 30 May 2014.
Due to an inadvertent oversight, the abovementioned Directors were not put
forward for re-election at the special general meeting held by the Company on
27 November 2014. These directors were subsequently re-elected at the special
general meeting held by the Company on 25 February 2015.

Board Meetings

Regular Board meetings are held at least four times a year at approximately
quarterly intervals. Tentative dates of regular Board meetings for next year are
scheduled approaching the end of each calendar year in order to facilitate the
Directors to plan for attendance of the meetings. Additional Board meetings will
be convened, as and when required, to deal with ad hoc issues. Any Director who
is not able to present physically may participate at any Board meeting through
electronic means of communication, such as conference telephone or other similar
communication equipment, in accordance with the Bye-laws.

Board Proceedings

Notice convening each regular Board meeting is sent at least 14 days in advance,
and reasonable notice is given for other Board meetings. The Company Secretary
assists the Board chairman to prepare the meeting notice and agenda. Each
Director may include any item in the agenda. The agenda, accompanied by
meeting papers with sufficient and reliable information, are sent to each Director
not less than three days before the date of a Board meeting to enable the
Directors to make informed decisions on the matters to be discussed, except
where a Board meeting is convened on a very urgent basis to consider any urgent
ad hoc matter.

The Company Secretary is responsible for taking minutes of the Board meetings,
drafts and final versions of which will be circulated to Directors for comments
and records, respectively, and in both cases, within a reasonable time after each
meeting. Minutes recorded in sufficient detail the matters considered by the
Board at the meeting and decisions reached, including any concerns raised by the
Directors or dissenting view (if any) expressed. Minutes of Board meetings are kept
by the Company Secretary and open for inspection to any Director on request.
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Board of Directors (continued)

Board Proceedings (continued)

All Directors have access to the Company Secretary who is responsible for
ensuring that the Board procedures are complied with and all applicable rules
and regulations are followed. Directors have full and timely access to all relevant
information, including reports from the Board committees and reports from the
management. They are also provided with updates on the latest developments of
the Listing Rules and other relevant legal and regulatory changes and matters of
relevance to the Directors in discharging their duties as and when appropriate.

To assist the Directors to discharge their duties, the Board has adopted written
procedures in case any Director wishes to seek independent professional advice at
the Company's expenses.

Board approval is also given by circulation of resolution in writing pursuant to
the Bye-laws on urgent matter which requires decision in a tight timeframe and
hence convening a Board meeting is difficult or not practicable. In case where a
resolution in writing is circulated, sufficient information and explanatory materials
will also be provided to the Directors at the same time. During the year ended 31
December 2014, 17 sets of resolutions in writing were circulated to the Directors
for approval and duly passed by the Directors. These written resolutions were
tabled for the Directors’ review at the next following Board meeting so that
Directors were given the opportunity to raise any further comment (if any) on the
relevant matters.

If a substantial shareholder or a Director has a conflict of interest in a matter
(including material transaction with connected persons) which the Board
determines to be material, the Board will hold a meeting (as long as time is
allowed to convene a Board meeting) to consider the relevant matter first before
any subsequent approval is given by way of circulation of resolution in writing.

Appropriate insurance covering directors’ and officers’ liabilities has been arranged
to protect the Directors and officers of the Group.
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Govemance Report

Board of Directors (continued)

Attendances of Meetings

Eight Board meetings, two Audit Committee meetings, two Remuneration
Committee meetings, three Nomination Committee meetings and two general
meetings were held during the year ended 31 December 2014. Attendances of

these meetings by Directors are set out below:

EET(»

- Jorld ok
HZE2014F12A3MA L FEARBITSAEZTCSH W
REZZECER MATHEZESEE 3NIERES
SEHREMABRERAE - T ASESHEZESR 2B
o

Meetings attended/Eligible to attend

HE/ RERHESH
Audit  Remuneration Nomination General

Board Committee Committee Committee Meetings
Name of Directors XM E¥g EREREe FHZERE REZRE BREXE
Executive Directors HITEE
Wilfred WONG Ying Wai FHE 8/8 n/a 2 33 2

(Chairman and Chief Executive Officer) (EEFITHAER)
Catherine CHU' BE 23 na na n/a 0N
Joseph CHOI Kin Hung S 8/8 n/a n/a n/a 20
ZHOU We? Eled 5/6 n/a n/a na 12
Non-executive Directors HHTEE
Kenneth CHU Ting Kin' Nl 03 0/1 n/a n/a 0/1
Clifford King CHIU? %3 i 1 1/ n/a 2
ZHANG Xiaoying* o/ 5/5 n/a n/a n/a 1n
YAN Jig* BES 5/5 n/a n/a na 1n
Indlependent Non-executive Directors BUHNTEE
Jeffrey LAM Kin Fung? g s 2 n/a 171 2 n/a
Abraham SHEK Lai Himé AEHe 2 n/a 171 2 0/1
Joseph CHOW Ming Kuen [E R 4/8 22 1N n/a 12
CHENG Sui Sang’ iy 718 212 n/a 17N 212
GAO Jingyuan? BRE 6/6 n/a 1N n/a 22
LEE Jai Ying? PEa 4/6 n/a n/a 11 2
Notes B 5
1 Dr. Catherine CHU and Dr. Kenneth CHU Ting Kin resigned as an Executive Director and a 1 KRBT RARBETESRIFENTERTRIERNITES
Non-executive Director respectively with effect from 26 May 2014. 2014526 A -

2 Mr. ZHOU Wei was appointed as an Executive Director, and Mr. GAO Jingyuan and Ms. LEE
Jai Ying were appointed as Independent Non-executive Directors respectively with effect
from 9 May 2014.

3 Mr. Clifford King CHIU was appointed as a Non-executive Director with effect from 2 April
2014.

4 Mr. ZHANG Xiaoying and Mr. YAN Jie were appointed as Non-executive Directors respectively
with effect from 30 May 2014.

5 Mr. Jeffrey LAM Kin Fung resigned as an Independent Non-executive Director with effect
from 10 May 2014.

6 Mr. Abraham SHEK Lai Him retired as an Independent Non-executive Director at the Annual
General Meeting held on 12 May 2014.

7 Mr. CHENG Sui Sang was appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director with effect
from 1 January 2014.

n/a:  not applicable &
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Board of Directors (continued)

Attendances of Meetings (continued)

During the year under review, the Chairman of the Board also held a meeting
with the Non-executive Directors (including Independent Non-executive Directors)
without the presence of the Executive Directors.

Code provision A.6.7 of the CG Code provides that independent non-executive
directors and other non-executive directors should attend general meetings and
develop a balanced understanding of the views of shareholders. Save for (i) one
Independent Non-executive Director and one Non-executive Director who were
not able to attend the annual general meeting held on 12 May 2014, and (ii)
one Independent Non-executive Director who was not able to attend the special
general meeting held on 27 November 2014, due to their own other important
business engagements, all Non-executive Directors (including Independent Non-
executive Directors) attended the annual general meeting and the special general
meeting on 12 May 2014 and 27 November 2014 respectively.

Directors’ Training and Professional Development

Every Director keeps abreast of responsibilities as a director of the Company
and of the conduct, business activities and development of the Company. The
Company provides all members of the Board with monthly updates on the
Group's performance and financial position.

Directors are aware of the requirement under code provision A.6.5 of the CG
Code regarding continuous professional development. During the year, the
Company provided reading materials to the Directors for self-study. In addition,
the Directors have attended external courses, conferences or luncheons organized
by various organizations.
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Board of Directors (continued) EFE®n)

Directors’ Training and Professional Development (continued) EFBINRBERE (&)

Directors also reviewed the monthly business and financial updates and other EEEMBESEIEH S AEKMUBEOEHELRIA
reading materials provided to them concerning latest developments in corporate N Efth 5 B (b 3556 % 48 FIMRRAHI & i%ﬁ??ﬁ?‘@ﬁ’]
governance practices and relevant legal and regulatory developments. A record BIEER - BIZELETRIFZEXRREIARD MREHA

of the Directors’ participation in various professional development programs is ~ WEZBFIRTF - R IEEFIREN é%ﬁ’\\%&immi
kept by the company secretarial department. A summary of training received by 128318 It FEFTESEIIEENT :

the Directors for the year ended 31 December 2014 is according to the records

provided by the Directors as follows:

Reading newspapers,
journals and

updates relating

to the economy,

Giving talks or general business,
attending seminars/ accounting, laws,
conferences/forums  rules and regulations, etc.

R 48 7 -
1 E R
25 E®
BITWMESHE RAREREFTEZ
Name of Directors EElA WEe Gl RiE RE -HHERSEHEMR
Wilfred WONG Ying Wai FHEE
(Chairman and Chief Executive Officer) — (F/EF# 1T #E#) v v
Catherine CHU' KEA v 4
Barry John BUTTIFANT? 22 4 v
Joseph CHOI Kin Hung =N 4 v
ZHOU Wei? Eles v v
Kenneth CHU Ting Kin' PN v v
Clifford King CHIU? %94 v v
ZHANG Xiaoying® SRS v 4
YAN Jie® S 4 v
Jeffrey LAM Kin Fung® MR 46 4 4
Abraham SHEK Lai Him’ ArEEHR v v
Joseph CHOW Ming Kuen JEI R v v
CHENG Sui Sang? B3, 8 v 4
GAO lJingyuan? =R v 4
LEE Jai Ying? FRE’ v v
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Board of Directors (continued)

Directors’ Training and Professional Development (continued)
! Dr. Catherine CHU and Dr. Kenneth CHU Ting Kin resigned as an Executive Director and a
Non-executive Director respectively with effect from 26 May 2014.

2 Dr. Barry John BUTTIFANT resigned as an Executive Director with effect from 18 February
2014.

3 Mr. ZHOU Wei was appointed as an Executive Director, and Mr. GAO Jingyuan and Ms. LEE
Jai Ying were appointed as Independent Non-executive Directors respectively with effect
from 9 May 2014.

4 Mr. Clifford King CHIU was appointed as a Non-executive Director with effect from 2 April
2014.

> Mr. ZHANG Xiaoying and Mr. YAN Jie were appointed as Non-executive Directors respectively
with effect from 30 May 2014.

6 Mr. Jeffrey LAM Kin Fung resigned as an Independent Non-executive Director with effect
from 10 May 2014.

7 Mr. Abraham SHEK Lai Him retired as an Independent Non-executive Director at the Annual
General Meeting held on 12 May 2014.

8 Mr. CHENG Sui Sang was appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director with effect
from 1 January 2014.

Board Committees

The Board committees, namely, the Executive Committee, the Audit Committee,
the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee were established
pursuant to the Bye-laws, each of which is to assist in the execution of the Board's
responsibilities and to oversee particular aspect of the Group'’s affairs. Each Board
committee is provided with sufficient resources to discharge its duties properly,
and holds meetings in accordance with the Bye-laws, its specific written terms of
reference and, where applicable, the proceedings of Board meeting.

Executive Committee

The Executive Committee comprised three members, namely, Dr. Wilfred WONG
Ying Wai, Mr. Joseph CHOI Kin Hung and Mr. ZHOU Wei (appointed as a member
with effect from 9 May 2014).

The authority and duties of the Executive Committee are set out in its specific
written terms of reference. Its primary duties are to approve banking matters,
issue of shares under any share option schemes of the Company, and
administrative issues of routine nature (excluding notifiable transactions), with a
view to assisting the Board to discharge partially its executive functions.

The Executive Committee shall meet as and when required depending on business
and operation needs. Members' attendances would depend on the importance
of the matters to be transacted. During the year ended 31 December 2014, the
Executive Committee held 22 meetings to discharge their duties.
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Board Committees (continued)

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprised Mr. CHENG Sui Sang (Independent Non-
executive Director) as chairman, Dr. Joseph CHOW Ming Kuen (Independent Non-
executive Director) and Mr. Clifford King CHIU (Non-executive Director appointed
as a member with effect from 26 May 2014) as members. None of the Audit
Committee members is or has been a former partner of the existing auditing firm
engaged by the Company for the past one year.

The Audit Committee is primarily responsible for conducting an independent and
objective review of the financial reporting process, internal controls and audit
function with emphasis on:

() appraise the quality of the audit effort of the Company’s internal and
external auditors;

(i) serve as an independent and objective party to review the financial
information presented by management to shareholders, regulators and the
general public;

(i) ascertain the adequacy of the Company’s system of internal control which
management and the Board have established; and

(iv) serve as useful channel of communication between the Board and the
external and internal auditors on matters relating to and arising out of the
external and internal audit.

The authority and duties of the Audit Committee are set out in its specific written
terms of reference. Full text of the terms of reference of the Audit Committee is
available on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The principal duties of the Audit Committee include, among other things,
recommending to the Board on the appointment, re-appointment or removal
of the Company's external auditor and on its remuneration; reviewing the
Company's interim and annual financial statements and other financial reports;
and reviewing the Company’s financial reporting system, internal control
procedures (including monitoring the effectiveness of the internal audit function)
and risk management systems. The Audit Committee has explicit authority to
investigate any activity within its duties and responsibilities and the authority
to obtain outside legal or other independent professional advice if it considers
necessary.

The Audit Committee meets at least twice a year. During the year ended 31

December 2014, two committee meetings were held. Attendances of the
meetings have been disclosed on page 52 of this report.
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Board Committees (continued)

Audit Committee (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Audit Committee members have
reviewed (i) the audit strategy memorandum from the external auditor; (i) with
the participation of the internal and external auditors and the management,
reviewed the internal control system of the Group; and (iii) with the participation
of the internal and external auditors and the management, the interim and
annual results and the related financial statements of the Company with a view
to ensuring that these financial statements were prepared in accordance with
the accounting principles and standards generally accepted in Hong Kong. The
Audit Committee has also considered the reports from the external auditor on the
scope and findings of its independent review of the interim and annual financial
statements.

There is no disagreement between the Board and the Audit Committee’s view on
re-appointment of external auditor, and they both have agreed to recommend the
re-appointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers as the Company’s external auditor for
the ensuing year at the 2015 annual general meeting of the Company.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprised Dr. Joseph CHOW Ming Kuen
(Independent Non-executive Director appointed as a member with effect from
12 May 2014) as chairman, Dr. Wilfred WONG Ying Wai, Mr. Clifford King CHIU
(Non-executive Director appointed as a member with effect from 12 May 2014)
and Mr. GAO lJingyuan (Independent Non-executive Director appointed as a
member with effect from 9 May 2014) as members.

The authority and duties of the Remuneration Committee are set out in its specific
written terms of reference. Full text of the terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee is available on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The Remuneration Committee is primarily responsible for reviewing the
remuneration policy of the Group and the remuneration packages of the Directors
and senior management of the Company. Its duties are summarised below:

(i) make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s remuneration
policy and structure for all Directors and senior management and on
the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for developing
remuneration policy;

(i) review and approve the management’s remuneration proposals with
reference to the Board's corporate goals and objectives;

(iii)  make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of
individual Executive Directors and senior management;

(iv)  make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of Non-executive
Directors;

(v)  consider salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment and
responsibilities, and employment conditions elsewhere in the Group;
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Board Committees (continued)

Remuneration Committee (continued)

(vi)  review and approve compensation payable to Executive Directors and senior
management for any loss or termination of office or appointment to ensure
that it is consistent with contractual terms and is otherwise fair and not
excessive;

(vi) review and approve compensation arrangement, relating to dismissal or
removal of Directors for misconduct to ensure that they are consistent with
contractual terms and are otherwise reasonable and appropriate;

(viii) delegate such of its powers the committee deems appropriate to the
management; and

(ix) ensure that no Director or any of his associates is involved in deciding his
own remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee shall meet at least once a year. During the year
ended 31 December 2014, two committee meetings were held. Attendances of
the meetings have been disclosed on page 52 of in this report.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Remuneration Committee
members had (i) reviewed the bonus distribution of the Executive Directors and
the senior management for the year ended 31 December 2013; (ii) reviewed
the bonus structure of the Executive Directors and the senior management; (iii)
reviewed the salaries of Executive Directors and senior management; (iv) reviewed
the Director’s fees for the financial year ending 31 December 2015; and (v)
recommended the aforesaid matters to the Board for approval.

Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, the remuneration of the senior
management by band for the year ended 31 December 2014 is set out below:—

EFEERETZZAS® »
FHZERE (2)
(vi) Mﬁ&ﬁt)&l‘ﬂ%ﬂﬁ%%&%’Eﬁ/\%?ﬁﬁ%‘%‘ii
RIEBBS SR EEMAIHHEE URERZEREE
,\.:.,Z IR —BU BARGEESOGR B0 BENAE
NEEE  TERZ:

Vi) BERHEREETRAREMREXREEHESRM
)*/F&E’JEA’W;?T% IARELR 7% 5 2 HR B S KGR — B
EAREEASNGER B ARRETREARES:

(vii) ZEFATHERRABENENTERRE: X

(i) ERUBEEXHEMNBEAZHRETHERS 25
B -

@3 NEZE2014%128

FMZBERASFRIBIT X
Bggm-gacHFERr/R

NAEFERN HBITRAZ
EEAZ}K#E%%5 E?}zﬁé

HE2014F12A31HLEFER  FEESKEE ()M
WITESEREEERAES ﬁ&imwiuﬂmami
BZIEAER R (VATESAREEEABZTE
%%ﬁﬁﬁa:m%m&ﬁﬁ%?&%@%EAEZ%ﬁ
EH T (WILEE2015F12B31B LT BFECZES
WEERBF kit Ll EEREE SR HES A
/E"

RIELEERTHERASE UTHESEERABRE
FE2014F 12 A3 B I FERFEN4E R

Number of individuals

Within the band of 2Bl B o3 AB
Upto HK$ 1,000,000 75 %51,000,0007T 8 A T 1
HK$1,000,001 to HK$2,000,000 751,000,001 7T 78 #2,000,0007T 7
HK$2,000,001 to HK$3,000,000 7#5%2,000,0017T £ 78 #3,000,0005T 5
HK$3,000,001 to HK$4,000,000 7#5%3,000,0017T £ 7% #4,000,0007C 6
HK$4,000,001 to HK$5,000,000 754,000,001 7T 278 #5,000,0007C 2
HK$5,000,001 to HK$6,000,000 755,000,001 7T 2 7% #6,000,0007C 1
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Board Committees (continued)

Remuneration Policy of the Group

The Group comprises Synergis, a non wholly-owned subsidiary whose shares
are listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange. Owing to its separate
listing status and different nature of its business, Synergis’ remuneration review
process is managed separately and is responsible for setting its own human
resources policies to reward staff of Synergis and its subsidiaries (collectively, the
"“Synergis Group”). However, the key functions and accountabilities of the two
remuneration committees for both companies are similar. The human resources
policies adopted by Synergis for the year ended 31 December 2014 are disclosed
in its annual report for the year 2014.

The Group sets its remuneration policy by making reference to the prevailing
market conditions and a performance-based reward system. It is to ensure
that the Group is able to attract, retain and motivate executives of the highest
caliber, essential to the successful leadership and effective management of the
Group. The performance measures are balanced between financial and industrial
comparatives. The components of remuneration package consisted of base
salary, allowances, benefits-in-kind, fringe benefits including medical insurance
and contributions to pension funds, as well as incentives like discretionary bonus,
participation in a share option scheme and long-term rewards.

The remuneration packages of the directors are recommended by the
respective remuneration committees and determined by the respective boards
of directors except that no director or any of his associates is allowed to
make recommendation on or to determine his own remuneration package.
Director’s remuneration is determined by reference to each director’s duties and
responsibilities in the Group as well as the overall performance of the respective
company and the Group and the prevailing market situation and competitiveness
in the industry.

The remuneration packages of the senior management are determined by the
remuneration committees and approved by the boards by reference to their
respective responsibilities and accountability, target achievements, business results
and market competitiveness of the Group. The remuneration packages of the
managerial and support staff are determined by the senior management of the
respective company.

Incentive bonus scheme for each major business segment is set up for senior
management staff and employees with significant contributions to the business
objectives. The scheme is business result oriented and performance based. Share
options are granted to the directors, senior management and other employees
based on individual performance and overall contributions to the Group. The
number and terms of share options granted to each grantee are proposed by the
respective executive directors (except for options granted to themselves), reviewed
by respective remuneration committees and approved by respective boards of
directors.

The Group has sought to make the remuneration policy more transparent and
well communicated to its staff. Details of the remuneration payable to each
Director for the year ended 31 December 2014 are set out in note 9 to the
consolidated financial statements of this annual report.
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Board Committees (continued)

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee comprised Ms. LEE Jai Ying (Independent Non-
executive Director appointed as a member with effect from 9 May 2014) as
chairman, Dr. Wilfred WONG Ying Wai and Mr. CHENG Sui Sang (Independent
Non-executive Director appointed as a member with effect from 12 May 2014) as
members.

The authority and duties of the Nomination Committee are set out in its specific
written terms of reference. Full text of the terms of reference of the Nomination
Committee is available on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The Nomination Committee is primarily responsible for formulating nomination
policy and leading the process of identifying and nominating suitable candidates.
Its duties are summarised below:

(i) review the structure, size and diversity (including without limitation, gender,
age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity, skills, knowledge,
professional experience and length of service) of the Board at least annually;
and make recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Group’s corporate strategy;

(i) identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board members and select
or make recommendations to the Board on the selection of individuals
nominated for directorships;

(i) identify and nominate candidates to fill casual vacancies of directors for the
Board’s approval;

(iv) taking into account the Group's corporate strategy and mix of skills,
knowledge, experience and diversity needed in the future, to make
recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-appointment of
directors and succession planning for directors, in particular the chairman
and the chief executive;

(v)  assess the independence of independent non-executive directors and review
the independent non-executive directors’ annual confirmations on their
independence; and make disclosure of its review results in the Corporate
Governance Report;

(vi) regularly review the time required from a director to perform his/her
responsibilities and report to the Board of their findings; and

(vii) review the Board Diversity Policy, as appropriate; and review the measurable
objectives that the Board had set for implementing the Board Diversity
Policy, and the progress on achieving the objectives; and make disclosure of
its review results in the Corporate Governance Report annually.

The Nomination Committee shall meet at least once a year. During the year ended

31 December 2014, three committee meetings were held. Attendances of the
meetings have been disclosed on page 52 of this report.
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Board Committees (continued)

Nomination Committee (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Nomination Committee members
have reviewed and considered that the structure, size, diversity and composition
of the Board are appropriate, made recommendations to the Board for approving
the change of Board members and assessed the independence of Independent
Non-executive Directors.

The “Board Diversity Policy” sets out the approach to achieve diversity of the
Board. It is believed that a truly diverse board will include and make good use of
differences in the skills, background, experience, knowledge, expertise and other
qualities of members of the board. These differences will be taken into account in
determining the optimum composition of the Board. The Nomination Committee
will review the Board composition by considering the benefits of all aspects of
diversity, including but not limited to those described above. The “Board Diversity
Policy” shall be reviewed by the Nomination Committee, as appropriate, to ensure
its effectiveness.

Corporate Governance Functions
The Board is responsible for determining the policy for the corporate governance
of the Company and performing the corporate governance duties as below:

(i) develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on corporate
governance;

(i) review and monitor the training and continuous professional development
of Directors and senior management;

(i) review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on compliance
with all legal and regulatory requirements;

(iv)  develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance manual
(if any) applicable to the employees and Directors; and

(v)  review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure
requirements in the Corporate Governance Report.

Delegation to Management

Management Committee

The monitoring of business operations and implementation of business plans and
strategies adopted by the Board are performed by senior executives led primarily
by the Executive Committee. The Management Committee for the Group's
operations comprising all the Executive Directors and key senior executives
was established to oversee the achievement of the Group’s operations. The
Management Committee holds regular meetings to review and discuss the
Group's performance against budget, business strategy, operational issues, and
matters relating to corporate services including human resources, corporate
communications, and information technology. Other management meetings
are also held regularly to review and discuss the day-to-day operations and
performance of individual business divisions.
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Delegation to Management (continued)

Tender Procedures for Construction Related Business

The directors of the respective business divisions are responsible for reviewing
business opportunities and their associated risks; formulating viable business
models; and deciding the strategy and tactic towards each opportunity. These
directors or the managing director of the construction division, working together
with the estimator, the bid manager or other persons with relevant expertise
continuously review, discuss and approve the various business proposals
submitted.

Policy for Financial Risk Management

The Group adopted a policy statement on authorisation and approval of financial
transactions, involving the assessment, booking and monitoring of financial
instruments to hedge exposures to financial risks and in particular, liquidity risk,
currency risk and interest rate risk, with a view to further strengthening the
financial risk management.

Internal Audit

The Group has separate internal audit functions for its principal property,
construction and construction related operations, and for its subsidiary property
management and interior fitting out operations, forming part of its ongoing
effort to focus on greater efficiency and to quickly respond to the management'’s
concern for the likely problem areas due to their different business nature.
Internal audit adopts a risk and control based audit approach. The work plans of
internal audit are reviewed and approved by the respective Audit Committees.
Examination of the processes, practices and procedures of internal controls for
business operations and corporate functions of the Group are performed on a
regular basis. Internal audit reports containing findings and recommendations for
improvements are submitted to the respective Audit Committees for review. The
internal audit function provides an independent assurance to the Board and the
executive management on the adequacy and effectiveness of internal controls for
the Group on an on-going basis.

Risk Management

The risk management committee was set up to assess and manage market risks,
financial risks, and operational risks of the Company. The committee members
comprise Chief Executive Officer of the Company, an Executive Director and
senior management staff from both finance and operation departments. Risk
information is reviewed and assessed from time to time during the committee
meetings.

Internal Control

The Board has the overall responsibility for the Group’s internal control system and
the assessment and management of risk. In meeting its responsibility, the Board
has defined a management structure with limits of authority that helps achieve
the business objectives; safeguard assets against unauthorised use or disposition;
ensure the maintenance of proper accounting records for the provision of reliable
financial information; and ensure compliance with relevant legislation and
regulations. Such management structure is regularly reviewed to accommodate
the refined business objectives and changing market conditions. The Board also
aims at increasing the risk awareness across the Group's business operations and
hence has put in place policies and procedures that provide a framework for the
identification and management of risk.
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Internal Control (continued)

Divisional and functional directors are responsible for overseeing their own
business operations and administrative functions respectively. Proper authorisation
procedures are put in place for the approval of significant projects and major
capital investments. Budgets must be approved before adoption and will be
reviewed and monitored regularly. Proper controls are in place for recording
complete, accurate and timely accounting and management information.

During the year under review, the Board has conducted a review of the
effectiveness of the internal control system of the Group through discussion with
the Audit Committee on audit findings and control issues. These procedures
provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material errors, losses and
fraud, and manage rather than eliminate risks of failure in the Group's operational
systems and in the achievement of the Group's business objectives.

The Board has also considered the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and
experience, training programmes and budget of the Group’s accounting and
financial reporting function.

Integrity Committee

The Integrity Committee was established for the purpose of examining integrity-
related matters. Currently, the Integrity Committee is chaired by Mr. Joseph CHOI
Kin Hung, an Executive Director, and members of this committee come from
various departments and operating divisions, including Human Resources, Finance
& Accounts, Internal Audit, Commercial, and Project Administration. The Integrity
Committee reports directly to the Audit Committee. The authority and duties of
the Integrity Committee are set out in its specific written terms of reference as
well as the policies, procedures and guidelines relating to integrity issues.

Directors’ Responsibility for Financial Reporting

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the consolidated
financial statements which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Company and the Group on a going concern basis. With the support of the
accounting and finance functions led by Chief Financial Officer and the financial
controller of the Group, the Directors have ensured that the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2014 are prepared in accordance
with appropriate accounting policies applied consistently save for those new and
amended accounting standards as disclosed in the notes to the consolidated
financial statements.

In preparing the interim and annual financial statements, announcements and
other financial disclosures required under the Listing Rules, the Directors aim
at presenting a balanced, clear and understandable assessment of the Group's
position and prospects. Financial information put before the Board for approval by
management is accompanied by sufficient explanation to enable the Directors to
make an informed assessment.

The independent auditor’s report, which contains the statement of the external

auditor about its reporting responsibilities on the Company's financial statements,
is set out on pages 96 to 97 of this annual report.
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Auditor's Remuneration

The fees paid/payable to PricewaterhouseCoopers, the Company’'s external
auditor, for services rendered for the year ended 31 December 2014 are set out as
follows:

£ By EH BN &
HE2014F12A31 AILFE - AR RISMELBEHE LR
MERHEEHARGZBBEEN LA BRARIIMT

Services rendered Fees paid/payable
FRr i B R %5 Bft EHEA
HK$'000
BT T
Audit services Bz R 5,212
Non-audit services: FEBEAZIRTS -
— service in connection with a very substantial acquisition in —ARANEPEYFERIAR S
relation to acquisition of property development projects in B BBAWIEEIEN R
the PRC 6,693
— others —HAh 928

Company Secretary

The Company Secretary is responsible for facilitating the Board process, as well as
communications among Board members. The Company Secretary complied with
all the qualifications under the Listing Rules.

Shareholders’ Rights, Investor Relations and

Communications with Shareholders

In addition to publishing interim and annual reports, announcements, circulars,
and press releases, updates on the Group's developments are also provided on the
Company'’s website stated below which is updated on a timely manner.

Comments, suggestions and enquiries from shareholders or investors to the Board
are welcome through the following channels to the Company:

(i) by post to the Company’s Hong Kong principal place of business at Hsin
Chong Center, 107-109 Wai Yip Street, Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong

(i) by facsimile transmission to (852) 2516 6596
(iii) by telephone at (852) 2579 8238
(iv) by email at info@hcg.com.hk

(v)  on the Company's website at www.hsinchong.com under “IR Contact” of
“Investor Relations”
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Shareholders’ Rights, Investor Relations and
Communications with Shareholders (continued)

An annual general meeting is deemed as a forum for shareholders to
communicate directly with the Board members. Notice of 20 clear business days
together with detailed agenda is given to shareholders for the annual general
meeting of the Company and ten clear business days for all special general
meetings of the Company. Separate resolution is proposed at an annual general
meeting on each substantially separate issue, including the election of each
individual director.

In accordance with the Bye-laws, any shareholder holding not less than one-
tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at a
general meeting shall have the right, by written requisition served to the Board or
the Company Secretary, to require a special general meeting to be convened by
the Board for transaction of any business specified in such requisition. Any vote
of shareholders at a general meeting must be taken by poll. The chairman of
meeting will explain the poll voting procedures at the relevant general meeting.

There were changes to the Bye-laws of the Company during the year. In the
special general meeting held on 27 November 2014, the shareholders of the
Company approved the amendments to the Bye-laws of the Company regarding
the increase of the authorized share capital of the Company and creation of
convertible preference shares.

Continuous Corporate Governance Enhancement

The Board is committed to continuous corporate governance enhancement
including giving closer attention to any regulatory changes with a view to
maintaining a corporate culture built on ethics and integrity and increasing
shareholder value as a whole.
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Corporate Social Responsibility Report
rEHEEERSE

Introduction

Hsin Chong Construction Group Ltd. is committed to ethical and responsible
management in all facets of its steadily expanding business. In 2014, the
Company continued its focus on corporate social responsibility with both
management and staff dedicated to constant improvement in all key areas.

Corporate governance, safety and health, and caring for the environment, for our
people and for the community are the key principles of the Group’s Corporate
Social Responsibility (“CSR”) Policy. The CSR Policy demonstrates the Group's
commitment to sustainable business practices and formalizes its efforts to
bring its activities into line with ISO 26000, the international standard on social
responsibility.

For the past 12 years, Hsin Chong has been declared a Caring Company by
the Hong Kong Council of Social Service. In November, the Group was again
awarded the CSR Advocate Mark by HKQAA under its CSR Advocate Index
assessment process, once again improving on the previous year's score. The Index
provides quantitative metrics for companies to improve CSR performance and
enhance CSR disclosure and stakeholder communication. The Advocate Mark is in
recognition of the Group's commitment and dedication to CSR.

Workplace Safety and Health
The Group is committed to providing a safe and healthy working environment for
its employees, stakeholders and subcontractors.

In 2014, Hsin Chong received certification as an International Safe Workplace
under the framework of the World Health Organization Safe Community
Initiative. This initiative aims to apply the best practices of proven injury prevention
programmes to protect the safety and health of employees and any person
affected by the activities in a workplace environment.

Regular monitoring of the work environment and facilities provided for staff
is undertaken to ensure that employees enjoy a safe and healthy working
environment. In-house health and safety professionals conduct regular checks of
all company workplaces for any possible safety issues and audits and testing are
conducted to ensure that the workplace does not harbour any health threats.
Modern amenities are provided to ensure a user-friendly work environment.

The Group implements and properly manages an Occupational Health and Safety
System which has been certified to OHSAS 18001 Standards. The prime objective
is not only to achieve full compliance with relevant statutory and contractual
requirements, but also to adopt viable and progressive practices initiated by the
construction industry. Responsible suppliers, service providers and subcontractors
are selected on the basis of their willingness to work in line with the Group's
concept of managing health, safety and quality at work.

In 2014, Hsin Chong collaborated with external experts to run in-house safety
workshops covering issues of particular relevance to our site operations. These
workshops covered topics such as crane and rigging safety and temporary
works safety and were attended by frontline supervisors as well as many young
engineers who are the managers of the future.
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Workplace Safety and Health (continued)

In addition to providing training in occupational health and safety, the Group
renders support to staff and subcontractors in discharging their daily duties and
responsibilities. Construction Safety Supervisor Courses are conducted bi-monthly
in order to meet the demand for safety professionals at the project sites. A Safety
Practice Handbook, which includes the safety rules and regulations for different
trades as well as guidelines on various safety aspects, is widely distributed in order
to raise staff awareness of safety issues.

Occupational health and safety is the Group's top priority, and the Company
will continue to be vigilant in policing health and safety issues and proactive in
improving its already impressive health and safety record.

Caring for the Environment

The Group recognizes the importance of protecting the Earth against modern
ecological challenges and is constantly improving its management practices so
as to minimize negative environmental impacts, reduce waste and maximize
efficiencies. The Group’s Environmental Management System, which has been
certified to comply with ISO 14001 International Standards, is implemented across
all its projects and is constantly undergoing refinement and improvement in line
with latest international trends.

At the Group, a number of emissions reduction and energy saving green initiatives
are being carried out on various project sites. A thorough and comprehensive
environmental management system is established on sites throughout the design
and construction stage, ranging from project planning, procurement and materials
usage, on-site construction and management of subcontractors to materials
recycling and reuse. Some major environmental measures implemented on the
construction sites include the use of solar energy and low energy appliances as
well as a range of recycling initiatives. In addition, subcontractors and suppliers are
encouraged to sign on to our green initiatives and partner with us in creating a
better environment.

The Group is currently implementing an energy management system in
accordance with the requirements of ISO 50001. This international standard
will assist in the efficient use of energy as well as helping in efforts to conserve
resources and tackle climate change. Implementation of ISO 50001 will make it
easier to integrate energy management into the Group’s business practices and
its overall efforts to improve quality and environmental management. Progress on
implementation is well advanced and it is planned to apply for certification of our
energy management system in 2015.

An environmental and safety initiative which enjoys widespread support is the
in-house Health, Safety & Environmental Performance Award Scheme, which
enhances the Group's competitive edge by rewarding continuous improvement
in occupational safety and health, environmental protection and hygiene on
project sites. Participating projects are assessed monthly with the awards process
providing a gentle reminder of the need to remain focused on sound health,
safety and environmental practices.
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Caring for and Development of People
The Group, staffed by a total of 8,604 full time employees, believes a vibrant and
sustainable organization relies on a strong, stable and dedicated workforce.

To further strengthen the Group's corporate core values and functionalities and
to develop a continuous improvement culture, the Group has in place a Human
Resources Steering Committee comprising the Chairman, Managing Director,
Group HR Director and Division Heads. The objectives of the Steering Committee
are to provide effective recruitment planning and an optimal reward programme
through resources management as well as an effective performance review system
and talents pipeline for succession planning. A Training Committee has also been
formed to develop a comprehensive training system and a quality workforce and
to foster a learning culture within the organization. Full curricula for both technical
and management training programmes have been set up for the Group's
workforce.

Vocational training is also of high importance to the Group and it actively
promotes and assists employees with furthering their education and vocational
training. The Group offers structured training schemes for trainees and
apprentices. These schemes provide comprehensive and systematic training in
both ‘on the job" and ‘in-class’ environments. With guidance from personal tutors
and supervisors, it enables young graduates to be well trained and developed
within their particular professional discipline.

Caring for the staff was further augmented over the year with regular company
excursions, staff events and welcoming functions for new staff. In addition, a
series of talks and classes ranging from advice on medical insurance and MPF to
Chinese medicine and healthy lifestyle were organized to assist staff in organizing
their affairs and in fostering a positive work-life balance. Organizational support is
given to company sports teams, an initiative that inspires teamwork and a healthy
lifestyle.

Fair Operating Practices

The Group upholds fair operating practices in its contracting with subcontractors
and suppliers through a fair and efficient procurement system, adopting
competitive tendering and subcontractors’ performance monitoring and
reporting. Accessibility and transparency is enhanced in this respect by the
provision on the company website of an open invitation to prospective
subcontractors and suppliers to apply for inclusion on the Group's approved lists.
This provides an open route for registering an interest which can be monitored to
ensure progress and communication and feedback as appropriate.

A review of subcontract and supply contract terms and conditions is currently
in progress with the objective of ensuring fair operating practices between the
Group and its subcontractors and suppliers enabling the development of effective
and strong partnerships. The review also covers the potential enhancement of
social, ethical, environmental and gender equality criteria in subcontracts and
supply contracts.
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Anti-Corruption

To support the Group's commitment to ethical practices, integrity and good
corporate governance, the Group has established an Integrity Committee. The
Committee is responsible for examining integrity-related matters and provides
an open channel for staff to report suspected cases of unethical or corrupt
practices with regards to the operations and work processes of the Group as
well as inappropriate behaviour which might affect the Group’s reputation. The
Committee investigates all cases and takes any necessary action.

The Integrity Committee is chaired by an Executive Director, with members of the
Committee coming from various departments such as Human Resources, Internal
Audit, Accounts, Commercial, Administration and Operation. It reports directly to
the Audit Committee. Members of staff can report in confidence, any integrity-
related issue, knowing that their action will be kept strictly confidential.

Community Involvement

The Group continues to invest in the local community by supporting community
projects and charitable services through donations and sponsorships to both
charities and industry-related and professional bodies, as well as organizing
volunteer services to care for the needy and underprivileged.

Over the past year, the Group has supported and provided sponsorship for many
worthwhile community initiatives such as Baptist University Foundation, Project
HOME and the Neighbourhood Advice Action Council as well as support for the
development of new headquarters for Hong Kong Red Cross. Another initiative
has been the collaboration with Hong Kong International Film Festival to bring
screenings of classic Cantonese films to student groups to promote local culture
among Hong Kong's younger generation.

The Group has supported employees in their participation in a number of activities
designed to provide support and comfort to less fortunate members of society.
These activities included providing volunteer services for severely disabled hospital
patients, performing household repairs for Elderly Centre residents and engaging
in charitable organizations’ fund raising activities.
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Directors’ Report
EFEEHRE

The Board have pleasure in presenting their report and the consolidated financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) for the
year ended 31 December 2014 to the shareholders.

Principal Activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The principal activities
of the Company's subsidiaries are building construction, civil engineering,
electrical and mechanical installation, interiors and special projects, property
development and investment, and provision of property and facility management
services. The provision of interiors and special projects, and property and facility
management services are undertaken by Synergis, a non wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company and the shares of which are listed on the main board of the
Stock Exchange. Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out
in note 44 to the consolidated financial statements and particulars of its joint
operations are set out in note 20 to the consolidated financial statements.

Segment Information
Details of segment information are set out in note 5 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2014 are set out in
the consolidated income statement on page 98; the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income on page 99 and the state of affairs of the Group
and of the Company as at 31 December 2014 are set out in the consolidated
balance sheet and Company balance sheet on pages 100 to 101 and page 102
respectively.

The Board has resolved to recommend the payment of a final dividend of 2.2 HK
cents per share for the year ended 31 December 2014 (2.0 HK cents per share
for the year ended 31 December 2013). Subject to shareholders’ approval at the
forthcoming 2015 annual general meeting of the Company, the proposed final
dividend will be paid on or around Thursday, 11 June 2015 to shareholders of the
Company whose names appear on the register of members of the Company on
Tuesday, 2 June 2015 (Hong Kong time).

Together with the interim dividend of 1.0 HK cent per share (2013: 2.2 HK cents
per share) already paid, total dividends for the financial year will amount to 3.2
HK cents per share (2013: 4.2 HK cents per share), representing a payout ratio of
63% (2013: 43%) on the earnings for the financial year.
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Results and Appropriations (continued)

For the purpose of ascertaining shareholders’ entitlement to the proposed final
dividend, the register of members of the Company will be closed from Friday, 29
May 2015 to Tuesday, 2 June 2015, both day inclusive (Hong Kong time), during
which period no transfer of shares of the Company will be registered. In order
to qualify for the proposed final dividend (subject to members’ approval at the
2015 annual general meeting), all share transfer documents accompanied by the
relevant share certificates must be lodged for registration with the Company’s
Hong Kong branch share registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on Thursday, 28 May 2015
(Hong Kong time).

Reserves

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and of the Company during
the year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on page
105 and in note 35 to the consolidated financial statements respectively.

Five-Year Financial Summary

A summary of the operating results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last 4 financial years and for the year ended 31 December 2014 is set
out on page 186. This summary does not form part of the consolidated financial
statements.

Property, Plant and Equipment
Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group during
the year are set out in note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.

Major Properties

A summary of the properties of the Group held for investment/own use/sale and
properties under development as at 31 December 2014 is set out on pages 194
to 195.

Share Capital
Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the year are set
out in note 34 to the consolidated financial statements.

Distributable Reserves

Distributable reserves of the Company as at 31 December 2014, calculated
under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), amounted to
HK$708,130,000 (2013: HK$741,654,000).

Pre-emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-laws although there
is no restriction against such rights under the laws of Bermuda.
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Directors
The Directors during the year ended 31 December 2014 and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive Directors

Dr. Wilfred WONG Ying Wai (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Joseph CHOI Kin Hung

Mr. ZHOU Wei (appointed with effect from 9 May 2014)

Dr. Barry John BUTTIFANT (resigned with effect from 18 February 2014)
Dr. Catherine CHU (resigned with effect from 26 May 2014)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Clifford King CHIU (appointed with effect from 2 April 2014)
Mr. ZHANG Xiaoying (appointed with effect from 30 May 2014)
Mr. YAN Jie (appointed with effect from 30 May 2014)

Dr. Kenneth CHU Ting Kin (resigned with effect from 26 May 2014)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Dr. Joseph CHOW Ming Kuen

Mr. CHENG Sui Sang (appointed with effect from 1 January 2014)

Mr. GAO Jingyuan (appointed with effect from 9 May 2014)

Ms. LEE Jai Ying (appointed with effect from 9 May 2014)

Hon. Jeffrey LAM Kin Fung (resigned with effect from 10 May 2014)

Hon. Abraham SHEK Lai Him (retired at the annual general meeting held on
12 May 2014)

The brief biographical details of the Directors who are in office as at the date of
this report are set out on pages 32 to 42 of this annual report.

In accordance with bye-law 98(A) of the Bye-laws, Dr. Wilfred WONG Ying Wai,
Mr. Joseph CHOI Kin Hung, Dr. Joseph CHOW Ming Kuen and Mr. CHENG Sui
Sang shall retire by rotation but, being eligible, have offered themselves for re-
election at the forthcoming 2015 annual general meeting. Save for the aforesaid,
the other remaining directors of the Company would continue in office.

The Company has received from each Independent Non-executive Director
an annual confirmation of his/her independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules, and considers that all the Independent Non-executive Directors are
independent in accordance with the terms of the independence guidelines set out
in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Directors’ Service Contracts

None of the Directors offering themselves for re-election at the 2015 annual
general meeting of the Company has entered into a service contract with the
Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not terminable within one year
without payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

Directors’ Interests in Contracts

There were no contracts of significance in relation to the Group's business to
which the Company, or any of its subsidiaries, fellow subsidiaries or holding
companies was a party and in which a Director had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of or at any time during the year.
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Directors’ Emoluments
Details of directors” emoluments are set out in note 9 to the consolidated financial
statements.

EERTHRARRETLAFIREANEZEZ
B HERMRESFPRACHEZRKE

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and Short
Positions in the Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures of the Company and its Associated
Corporations

As at 31 December 2014 and 19 March 2015, the interests and short positions
of the Directors and chief executive of the Company and their associates in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFO")) as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 352 of the SFO, or otherwise required to be notified to

R2014F 12 A31H X2015F3 8198 AR RIS EE 1T
RABE R & 2 B8 AR AR RIS E AR EE (E &
RFBH KB GOIEXVER) 2B - RGN RES P
BRIBEES KAEED ([B5HREEED]) F352(&48 R
RETEFE 2 ERMRtt s Em AR SRR LR
BIPR &%+ Fr &k B AR 4E~F A BB AN AN A 7] K Bt 22 B 2 4

the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code contained in  # MOA B 40T~
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules, were as follows:
Long positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company REFLEIRGRIEFARGZITFE
As at 31 December 2014 As at 19 March 2015
R2014%128310 R2015%3A 198
Approximate Approximate
percentage of percentage of
Number of interest in Number of interest in
Number of  underlying theissued | Numberof  underlying the issued
Name of Directors Capacity shares held  shares held Total  share capital | sharesheld  shares held Total  share capital
HERTT HERTT
BEZ  RRECER Brz#a BEZ  RRECER REzia
1§31 & BirEAE BiEAE # #BNESH BiEAE BiHEHAE # #BnESL
(Note 1) (Note 2) (Note 1) (Note 2)
(PzET) (MzE2) (MzE1) (MzE2)
Wilfred WONG Ying Wai  Beneficial owner 20,000,000 5,000,000 25,000,000 0.87% 26,000,000 5,000,000 31,000,000 0.60%
THR EanfEA
Interest of controlled 1,400,303,789 - 1,400,303,789 4899% | 1,466,858,789 - 1,466,858,789 2827%
corporations (Note 3) (Note 3)
RmEEER (FEE3) (PE3)
Joseph CHOI Kin Hung Beneficial owner - 1,334,000 1,334,000 0.05% - 1,334,000 1,334,000 0.03%
2% ERERA
ZHOU Wei Beneficial owner 48,932,000 - 48932000 1.71% 48,932,000 - 48932000 0.94%
B EafAA
Clifford King CHIU Beneficial owner 700,000 - 700,000 0.02% 910,000 - 910,000 0.02%
L8 EafimA
73 201453} FTELESEBRAR
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Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and Short
Positions in the Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures of the Company and its Associated
Corporations (continued)

Long positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company

(continued)
Notes:

1 As at 31 December 2014 and 19 March 2015, the interests in the underlying shares held
by the Directors represented share options granted pursuant to the share option scheme
adopted by the Company on 22 May 2008. Details of share options granted were set out

EERTHRAEARRETLAFTIREANEZEZ
B3 HRBRNREFIRACESRRR

(%)

RELERGRIFRGZIFE (&)

B -

1 EHZE2014F12A318 2201563198 E=#HE 2 AERH 2

IR B AN FIR200845 A2 A R 2 RIGETEIE 2
R R 2 SRR B H YT

below:
Number of Exercise price

Name of Directors Date of grant share options per share Exercisable period
BHA M fT{Es
(dd/mm/yyyy) 14 (dd/mm/yyyy)
EEgf (8B %) BAERRERA fTER (B/R/ %)
Wilfred WONG Ying Wai 23/05/2008 5,000,000 213 01/01/2009 - 22/05/2018

FHE
Joseph CHOI Kin Hung 04/12/2009 1,334,0000 1.02 04/12/2010 - 03/12/2019

i. Options were vested in equal portions on 1 January 2009 and 2010 respectively, and
became exercisable for a period from the respective dates and ending on 22 May
2018.

ii. Options were vested in three portions on 4 December 2010, 2011 and 2012
respectively, and became exercisable for a period from the respective dates and
ending on 3 December 2019.

2 There were 2,858,166,655 and 5,188,576,651 shares of the Company in issue as at 31
December 2014 and 19 March 2015 respectively.

3. 475,816,993 Shares are held by Neo Summit, which is owned by (a) Pinnacle State Real
Estate Limited as to 28.89%; (b) Summit View Holdings Limited (“Summit View") as to
13.33%; () Jones Capital Investments Limited as to 28.89%; and (d) Becl World Holding Ltd
as to 28.89%. Pinnacle State Real Estate Limited is indirectly wholly-owned by Dr. Wilfred
WONG Ying Wai. Jones Capital Investments Limited is wholly-owned by Ms. MA Kwing,
Pony ("Ms. MA"). As such, Neo Summit is deemed to be a controlled corporation of Dr.
Wilfred WONG Ying Wai and Ms. MA under the SFO.

As at 31 December 2014, Summit View held 924,486,796 Shares which comprised (i)
221,850,000 Shares and (i) 702,636,796 Rights Shares underwritten by Summit View
pursuant to the Underwriting Agreement as disclosed in the prospectus of 9 December 2014
of the Company. Summit View is owned as to 50% by Dr. Wilfred WONG Ying Wai and
50% by Ms. MA. As such, Summit View is deemed to be a controlled corporation of Dr.
Wilfred WONG Ying Wai and Ms. MA under the SFO.

On 8 January 2015, the said 702,636,796 Shares and 66,555,000 nil-paid Rights Shares
were allotted to Summit View.
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Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and Short
Positions in the Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures of the Company and its Associated

Corporations (continued)

Long positions in the shares and underlying shares of the associated
corporations of the Company

As at 31 December 2014 and 19 March 2015, Dr. Wilfred WONG Ying Wai had
the following interests in Synergis:

Directors’ Report
EEEHE

ESRITHARRELFREHABEZEZ
B3 HRBRMREFPRACESRHRR

(&)

RERFEREBZRERIEARNZIFE

MA2014%12 A318 &2015F3 /8198 THEEB+RHE
BRI TS

Number of Number of Approximate
ordinary share options percentage of
Name of Director Capacity shares held  outstanding Total shareholding
R RITEZ {5 B
EREgR 13 HiERREE IR iES B &t BSL
(Note 1) (Note 2)
(PfF&ET) (Pfi&E2)
Wilfred WONG Ying Wai Beneficial owner 14,420,000 3,200,000 17,620,000 5.25%
FHE EnfAA

Interests of controlled corporation 57,846,436 - 57,846,436 17.22%

A B R (Note 3)

(Pf5E3)

Notes: B3

(1) As at 31 December 2014 and 19 March 2015, the interests in the underlying shares of
Synergis represented share options granted pursuant to Old Option Scheme (terminated by
the ordinary resolution passed at the annual general meeting of Synergis on 17 June 2013)
and New Option Scheme. Details of share option granted are set out below:

(1) EHZE2014%12A31HK%2015F3 198 - R EEERRN 2
ERIERIE EBREL 2 (M2013F6 5 17REFESERNME
BAFAE LU RREREL) RITERET SR L 2 B
Bz BREZFBNT:

Number of Exercise price
share options of per share Exercisable period
Name of Director Synergis held (HK$) (dd/mm/yyyy)
FAEHMEEREZ BETEERE TER
EEnR MEEE®E (%7T) (B/RA/%)
Wilfred WONG Ying Wai 2,000,000 0.820 25/09/2010 — 24/09/2015
FHRE 1,200,000® 0.952 27/05/2014 — 27/05/2019

# Options were vested in equal portions on 25 September 2010, 2011, 2012, 2013
and 2014 respectively, and became exercisable for a period from the respective dates
and ending on 24 September 2015.

e Options were or to be vested in equal portions on 27 May 2014, 2015, 2016, 2017
and 2018 respectively, and became or become exercisable for a period from the
respective dates and ending on 27 May 2019.

(2)  There were 335,890,000 and 335,950,000 ordinary shares of Synergis in issue as at 31
December 2014 and 19 March 2015 respectively.

(3)  Synergis is owned by Summit View as to 57,846,436 ordinary shares. Summit View is owned
as to 50% by Dr. Wilfred Wong Ying Wai and 50% by Ms. Ma Kwing, Pony. As such,
Summit View is deemed to be a controlled corporation of Dr. Wilfred Wong Ying Wai and
Ms. Ma Kwing, Pony under the SFO.
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Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and Short
Positions in the Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures of the Company and its Associated
Corporations (continued)

Long positions in the shares and underlying shares of the associated
corporations of the Company (continued)

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2014 and 19 March 2015, none
of the Directors and chief executive of the Company or their associates had any
interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
Section 352 of the SFO or otherwise required to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Model Code.

Share Option Schemes

2008 Option Scheme

A share option scheme was adopted by the shareholders of the Company
on 22 May 2008 (the “2008 Option Scheme”). Pursuant to the 2008 Option
Scheme, the directors may, at their absolute discretion, make an offer to grant
share options to eligible persons (as defined in the rules of the 2008 Option
Scheme) who might include, inter alia, any employee, executive director, non-
executive director and independent non-executive director of the Company or its
subsidiaries. A summary of the rules of the 2008 Option Scheme is set out below:

(1) Summary of the 2008 Option Scheme
(a) Purpose of the 2008 Option Scheme

The purpose of the 2008 Option Scheme is to provide an Eligible
Person (as defined below) with the opportunity to acquire equity
securities in the Company, thus enabling them to participate in the
prosperity of the Company and/or its subsidiaries and/or any invested
entity (which refers to any entity in which the Company or any of
its subsidiaries holds any equity interest) (“Invested Entity”) and
consequently such opportunity is an incentive for such Eligible Person
to contribute further to the success of the Company and/or its any
subsidiary and/or any Invested Entity.

(b) Participants of the 2008 Option Scheme
The Board (or a duly authorised committee thereof) shall, at its
absolute discretion, make an offer to grant option to any person
("Eligible Person”) belonging to any of the following classes of
participants to subscribe for the shares of the Company (the
“Shares”):

(i) any employee (whether full time or part time) of the Company,
any of its subsidiary or any Invested Entity, including any
executive director of the Company, its subsidiary or any Invested
Entity and for the avoidance of doubt, including any employee
employed or to be employed by the Company, any of its
subsidiary or any Invested Entity in The People’s Republic of
China;
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Share Option Schemes (continued)
2008 Option Scheme (continued)
(1) Summary of the 2008 Option Scheme (continued)

(b)

(©

(d)

(e)

Participants of the 2008 Option Scheme (continued)

(i) any non-executive director (including any independent non-
executive director) of the Company, any of its subsidiary or any
Invested Entity; or

(i) the trustee of any trust pre-approved by the Board, the
beneficiary (or in case of discretionary trust, the discretionary
objects) of which includes any of the persons mentioned in
subparagraphs (i) and (i) above.

Maximum number of Shares available for issue under the 2008
Option Scheme

As at 19 March 2015, the total number of shares available for issue
was 25,004,000 shares, representing 0.48% of the total issued share
capital of the Company.

Maximum entitlement of each Eligible Person under the 2008
Option Scheme

No option may be granted to any one Eligible Person in any 12-month
period which, if exercised in full, would result in the total number
of Shares already issued to such Eligible Person under all the options
previously granted to him/her which have been exercised and, issuable
to him/her under all the options previously granted to him/her which
are for the time being subsisting and unexercised, exceeding 1% of
the total number of issued Shares on the last date of such 12-month
period unless approval by the shareholders in a general meeting with
such Eligible Person and his/her associates abstaining from voting has
been obtained.

Period for and consideration payable upon acceptance of an
option

An offer for the grant of option must be accepted within the time
period specified in the relevant offer letter. A sum of HK$10.00 is
payable as consideration upon acceptance of the offer. Such amount
shall in no circumstances be refundable.
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Share Option Schemes (continued)
2008 Option Scheme (continued)
(1) Summary of the 2008 Option Scheme (continued)

()

(@)

(h)

HSIN CHONG CONSTRUCTION GROUP LTD. ANNUAL REPORT 2014

Basic of determining the subscription price

The subscription price for Shares shall be a price to be determined by
the Board and notified to each grantee but shall not be less than the
highest of:

()  the nominal value of a Share;

(i) the average of the closing prices of the Shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five business
days immediately preceding the offer date, which must be a
business day; and

(i) the closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotation sheet on the offer date, which must be a
business day,

provided that in the event of fractional prices, the subscription price
shall be rounded upwards to the nearest whole cent.

Minimum period for holding an option before exercise

There is no minimum holding period for which an option must be
held before exercise pursuant to the 2008 Option Scheme. The
commencement date of the period during which an option may be
exercised shall be determined by the Board and specified in the offer
letter in respect of the option.

Remaining life

The 2008 Option Scheme shall remain in effect for a period of 10
years commencing from 22 May 2008, its date of adoption, unless
otherwise terminated in accordance with the rules of the 2008 Option
Scheme.
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EEgRT

Share Option Schemes (continued) soRHERTE ()
2008 Option Scheme (continued) 20085 ;2R E51B (45)
(20 Movements under the 2008 Option Scheme (2) 2008FEIRESTEIT 2B 5
Details of movements in the share options under the 2008 Option Scheme, R2008F R EI TR IEZEHRR TR
and the options outstanding as at the beginning and the year ended 31 BHZE2014F12 A3 BIEFFE 2 RITHERRIEFFFEWN
December 2014 are as follows: T
Number of Number
share of share
options . . options
held as at Changes during the period held as at Exercise
1 January MRz 2 31 December price
Name of participants Date of grant 2014 Granted Exercised Lapsed Cancelled 2014 per share Exercisable period
#2014% #2014
1R18 12A31A
L1 -4
BRALHE BHAH RREnA & i £ HH  REEBE  SRTER e
(dd/mmAyyyy) (HK$) (dd/mm/yyyy)
(B/R/%) (B%) (B/R/%)
Directors
EF
Wilfred WONG Ying Wai 23/05/2008 5,000,000 - = = = 5,000,000 213 01/01/2009 - 22/05/2018
THR
Joseph CHOI Kin Hung 04/12/2009 1,334,000% - = - = 1,334,000 1.02 04/12/2010 - 03/12/2019
Ex-directors
HEE
Catherine CHU” 04/12/2009 2,000,000? - - (2,000,000) - - 1.02 04/12/2011 - 03/12/2019
%%@U)
Barry John BUTTIFANT® 23/05/2008 1,200,000 - - (1,200,000) - - 213 01/01/2009 - 22/05/2018
WAL 26/04/2011 2,000,000 - - (2,000,000) - = 1.70 26/04/2012 - 25/04/2021
Kenneth CHU Ting Kin® 23/05/2008 1,000,000 - - (1,000,000) - - 213 01/01/2009 - 22/05/2018
;E;‘Eﬁrfgm
Jeffrey LAM Kin Fung® 23/05/2008 1,000,000 = = (1,000,000) = = 213 01/01/2009 - 22/05/2018
M{gg(g)
Abraham SHEK Lai Him®® 23/05/2008 1,000,000 - - (1,000,000) - - 213 01/01/2009 - 22/05/2018
E%ﬁmm
Alexander MAK Kwai Wing™ 04/12/2009 1,000,000 - - (1,000,000) - - 1.02 04/12/2010 - 03/12/2019
P3¢l
Employees (in aggregate) 23/05/2008 14,000,000 - - - - 14,000,000 213 01/01/2009 - 22/05/2018
&R (&) 04/12/2009 3,922,000 - - (1,002,000) - 2,920,000 1.02 04/12/2010 - 03/12/2019
01/0922011 2,750,000 - - (500,000) - 2,250,000 1.29 300092011 - 31/08/2021
36,206,000 - - (10,702,000) - 25,504,000
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Share Option Schemes (continued)
2008 Option Scheme (continued)
(2) Movements under the 2008 Option Scheme (continued)

Notes:

m

Options were vested in equal portions on 1 January 2009 and 2010 respectively, and
became exercisable for a period from the respective dates and ending on 22 May
2018.

Options were vested in equal portions on 4 December 2011 and 2012 respectively,
and became exercisable for a period from the respective dates and ending on 3
December 2019.

Options were vested in equal portions on 26 April 2012 and 2013 respectively, and
became exercisable for a period from the respective dates and ending on 25 April
2021.

Options were vested in three portions on 4 December 2010, 2011 and 2012
respectively, and became exercisable for a period from the respective dates and
ending on 3 December 2019.

Options were vested in three portions on 1 January 2009, 2010 and 2011
respectively, and became exercisable for a period from the respective dates and
ending on 22 May 2018.

Options were vested in four portions on 30 September 2011, 2012, 2013 and 2014
respectively, and became exercisable for a period from the respective dates and
ending on 31 August 2021.

Dr. Catherine CHU and Dr. Kenneth CHU Ting Kin resigned as an Executive Director
and a Non-executive Director respectively with effect from 26 May 2014.

Dr. Barry John BUTTIFANT resigned as an Executive Director with effect from 18
February 2014.

Mr. Jeffrey LAM Kin Fung resigned as an Independent Non-executive Director with
effect from 10 May 2014.

Mr. Abraham SHEK Lai Him retired as an Independent Non-executive Director at the
Annual General Meeting held on 12 May 2014.

Mr. Alexander MAK Kwai Wing resigned as an Independent Non-executive Director
with effect from 24 December 2013.

Synergis Share Option Schemes

At the annual general meeting of Synergis, a non wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, held on 17 June 2013, its shareholders approved the adoption
of a new share option scheme (“New Option Scheme”) and the termination of
the share option scheme, which was adopted on 19 September 2003 (the “Old
Option Scheme”). Share options granted under the Old Option Scheme remain
effective. Details of the Old Option Scheme and New Option Scheme as required
to be disclosed under Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules are set out below:

(1) Summary of the Old Option Scheme

(a)

HSIN CHONG CONSTRUCTION GROUP LTD. ANNUAL REPORT 2014

Purpose of the Old Option Scheme

The Old Option Scheme was set up for the purpose of recognising and
motivating the contribution of the Eligible Persons (as defined below)
to Synergis and/or any of its subsidiaries and/or any Invested Entity (as
defined below).

80

REREsE (o
200852 RR1ES & (2)

(2) 20

ks

m

(10)

()

085 BRI BT 2 BB (4)

RAEHE D BIFA20094F K 2010F 1 A1 B RASHEREB
WRE B BEARE201895H228 IEERRIA] 1716 -

RAHED BIRA20114F K%2012F 12 B4R ERA S HEFE -
WHKE B BERZE2019912A38 ILERRIA] 1716 -

RAHED BIA20124F K2013F4 A26 AR S HEFE -
WRE B BEARE202194A258 [EERRIA] 1746 -

RS BIFR2010%F 20114 K2012F 12 48 2 =
B YRE B BERE2019F12A38 ILEMA 717
fiEe

R HE 5 B FA20094F ~ 20106 2201141 B1BIE=3H
RE O UNEE B ERE2018F5A228 LM A 717
fiEe

RIAED BIFA20114F - 20124F ~ 20134 22014495308
RO GRE  WHRE B B ERZE202148A318 1EHRH
A FATE

SnBETRASBELEDRBHINTES RIERT
EE H2014F5A26 B AR -

ERABLEFTRTES  H2014F28 188 AR -
MR A D BB IEMITESE - BH2014F5H 100 &8

BEHREEDN20145F5 A12B BT 2 BRRAFASRE
B EHITESE-

HEREEEHFEBLIERNITES  H20135F12A24H

SEEHERED

R013F6 A17THRITZHEE R (KRR ZIIEEENE
NEDRREAFERE L ERREHERS B ERE
STEI (T3EERERT 8| ) AR IEFA20034F9 A 198 1140 ~ B8
PEAEETE ([EBETE]) - REEEREAEEREZ
BREDAEX-RELIMRAFEI7TEETREESHRERR
B BRI B 2 FBEE T

(1) BEREHEZHE

(a)

ERERESE BN

ERRErE s ERY ABAERAL (E
BEATXORMEER R,/ REEFHE R
R/ SEMREERE CEREL TXOELER:-



Synergis Share Option Schemes (continued)
(1) Summary of the Old Option Scheme (continued)
(b) Participants of the Old Option Scheme
Eligible persons entitled to participate in the Old Option Scheme (the
“Eligible Persons”) include:

@

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

any employee (whether full-time or part-time) of Synergis,
any of its subsidiaries, or any entity in which Synergis or
any of its subsidiaries held an equity interest (the “Invested
Entity”); including any executive director of Synergis, any of its
subsidiaries or any Invested Entity and any employee employed
or to be employed by Synergis, any of its subsidiaries or any
Invested Entity, whether in Hong Kong or in The People’s
Republic of China;

any non-executive director (including any independent non-
executive director) of Synergis, any of its subsidiaries or any
Invested Entity;

any shareholder of Synergis, any of its subsidiaries or any
Invested Entity or any holder of any securities issued by Synergis,
any of its subsidiaries or any Invested Entity who had, in the
opinion of the board, made contribution to the business growth
of Synergis, any of its subsidiaries or any Invested Entity;

any person or entity that provided research, development or
other technological support to Synergis, any of its subsidiaries or
any Invested Entity;

any supplier of goods and/or services to Synergis, any of its
subsidiaries or any Invested Entity;

any business collaborator, business consultant, joint venture
or business partner, or technical, financial, legal and other
professional advisers engaged by Synergis, any of its subsidiaries
or any Invested Entity;

any associate (as defined under the Listing Rules) of the directors
or the substantial shareholders of Synergis, any of its subsidiaries
or any Invested Entity who had, in the opinion of the board,
made contribution to the business growth of Synergis, any of its
subsidiaries or any Invested Entity; or

the trustee of any trust pre-approved by the board, the
beneficiary (or in case of discretionary trust, the discretionary
objects) of which included any of the abovementioned persons,

and, for the purposes of the Old Option Scheme, the options might be
granted to any company wholly-owned by one or more of the above
Eligible Persons.
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Synergis Share Option Schemes (continued)
(1) Summary of the Old Option Scheme (continued)

(9

d

(e)

HSIN CHONG CONSTRUCTION GROUP LTD. ANNUAL REPORT 2014

Maximum number of shares available for issue under the
Old Option Scheme

As at 19 March 2015, the total number of shares available for issue
was 7,720,000 shares, representing 2.30% of the total issued share
capital of Synergis.

Maximum entitlement of each Eligible Person under the Old
Option Scheme

No option might be granted to any one Eligible Person in any
12-month period which, if exercised in full, would result in the total
number of shares already issued to such Eligible Person under all the
options previously granted to him/her which had been exercised and,
issuable to him/her under all the options previously granted to him/her
which were for the time being subsisting and unexercised, exceeding
1% of the share capital of Synergis in issue on the last date of such
12-month period unless being approved by the shareholders of
Synergis in a general meeting.

Where any proposed grant of option to a substantial shareholder or
an independent non-executive director of Synergis, or any of their
respective associates (as defined in the Listing Rules), would result in
the shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of all options already
granted (including options exercised, cancelled and outstanding)
and to be granted to such person in the 12-month period up to and
including the date of the proposed grant:

(i)  representing in aggregate over 0.1% of the total number of
shares in issue for the time being; and

(i) the aggregate value of which, based on the closing price of the
shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets
on the date of the proposed grant, was in excess of HK$5.0
million,

such proposed grant of option should be subject to prior approval
of the shareholders of Synergis at a general meeting in which all
connected persons for the time being of Synergis (if any) (except
where any connected person intended to vote against the proposed
grant of option and his/her intention to do so had been stated in the
circular) should abstain from voting at such general meeting and at
which any vote taken should be taken on a poll.

Period for and payment on acceptance of an option

An offer for grant of an option must be accepted by an Eligible Person
(and by no other person except the Eligible Person) in respect of all
the Shares for which the offer is made. Acceptance should be made
by such Eligible Person by signing and returning the duplicate of the
offer letter together with the payment of a consideration of HK$1.00
for such grant to Synergis within the time period specified in the offer
letter.
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Synergis Share Option Schemes (continued)
(1) Summary of the Old Option Scheme (continued)

()

C)]

(h)

The basis of determining the subscription price

The subscription price in respect of any option granted under the
Old Option Scheme should be a price determined by the board and
notified to each grantee and should not be less than the highest of (i)
the nominal value of a share; (ii) the average of the closing prices of
the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for
the five business days immediately preceding the date on which an
offer for grant of an option (the “Offer Date”) was made to an Eligible
Person; and (iii) the closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange's daily quotation sheet on the Offer Date which must be a
business day, provided that the subscription price should be rounded
upwards to the nearest whole cent.

Minimum period for holding an option before exercise
There was no minimum holding period for which an option must
be held before exercise pursuant to the Old Option Scheme. The
commencement date of an option period should be specified by the
board in the relevant offer letter.

Remaining life
The Old Option Scheme was terminated pursuant to resolutions
passed by the shareholders on 17 June 2013.

(2) Summary of the New Option Scheme

(a)

(b)

Purpose of the New Option Scheme

The New Option Scheme is set up for the purpose of recognising and
motivating the contribution of the Eligible Persons (as defined below)
to Synergis and/or any of its subsidiaries and/or any Invested Entity (as
defined below).

Participants of the New Option Scheme
Eligible persons entitled to participate in the New Option Scheme (the
"“Eligible Persons”) include:

(i) any employee (whether full time or part time) of Synergis,
any of its subsidiaries, or any entity in which Synergis or
any of its subsidiaries holds an equity interest (the “Invested
Entity”); including any executive director of Synergis, any of its
subsidiaries or any Invested Entity and any employee employed
or to be employed by Synergis, any of its subsidiaries or any
Invested Entity, whether in Hong Kong or in The People’s
Republic of China;

(i) any non-executive director (including any independent non-
executive director) of Synergis, any of its subsidiaries or any
Invested Entity;

(i) any shareholder of Synergis, any of its subsidiaries or any
Invested Entity or any holder of any securities issued by Synergis,
any of its subsidiaries or any Invested Entity who has, in the
opinion of the board, made contribution to the business growth
of Synergis, any of its subsidiaries or any Invested Entity;
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Synergis Share Option Schemes (continued)
(2) Summary of the New Option Scheme (continued)

(b)

(9

(d

HSIN CHONG CONSTRUCTION GROUP LTD. ANNUAL REPORT 2014

Participants of the New Option Scheme (continued)

(iv) any person or entity that provides research, development or
other technological support to Synergis, any of its subsidiaries or
any Invested Entity;

(v) any supplier of goods and/or services to Synergis, any of its
subsidiaries or any Invested Entity;

(vi) any business collaborator, business consultant, joint venture or
business partner, technical, financial, legal and other professional
advisers engaged by Synergis, any of its subsidiaries or any
Invested Entity;

(vii) any associate (as defined under the Listing Rules) of the directors

or the substantial shareholders of Synergis, any of its subsidiaries

or any Invested Entity who has, in the opinion of the board,
made contribution to the business growth of Synergis, any of its
subsidiaries or any Invested Entity; or

(viii) the trustee of any trust pre-approved by the board, the

beneficiary (or in case of discretionary trust, the discretionary

objects) of which includes any of the above-mentioned persons,

and, for the purposes of the New Option Scheme, the options may be
granted to any company wholly-owned by one or more of the above
Eligible Persons.

Maximum number of shares available for issue under the
New Option Scheme

As at 19 March 2015, the total number of shares available for issue
was 2,400,000 shares, representing 0.71% of the total issued share
capital of Synergis.

Maximum entitlement of each Eligible Person under the
New Option Scheme

No option may be granted to any one Eligible Person in any 12-month
period which, if exercised in full, would result in the total number
of shares already issued to such Eligible Person under all the options
previously granted to him/her which have been exercised and, issuable
to him/her under all the options previously granted to him/her which
are for the time being subsisting and unexercised, exceeding 1% of
the share capital of Synergis in issue on the last date of such 12-month
period unless being approved by the shareholders of Synergis in a
general meeting.

Where any proposed grant of option to a substantial shareholder or
an independent non-executive director of Synergis, or any of their
respective associates (as defined in the Listing Rules), would result
in the shares issued upon exercise of all options already granted
(including options exercised, cancelled and outstanding) and to be
granted to such person in the 12-month period up to and including
the date of the proposed grant:
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Synergis Share Option Schemes (continued)
(2) Summary of the New Option Scheme (continued)

(d)

(e)

)

(9)

(h)

Maximum entitlement of each Eligible Person under the

New Option Scheme (continued)

(i) representing in aggregate over 0.1% of the total number of
shares in issue for the time being; and

(i) the aggregate value of which, based on the closing price of the
shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on
the date of the proposed grant, is in excess of HK$5.0 million,

such proposed grant of option shall be subject to the prior approval
of the shareholders of Synergis at a general meeting in which all
connected persons for the time being of Synergis (if any) (except
where any connected person intends to vote against the proposed
grant of option and his/her intention to do so has been stated in the
circular) shall abstain from voting at such general meeting and at
which any vote taken shall be taken on a poll.

Period for and payment on acceptance of an option

An offer for grant of an option may be accepted by an Eligible Person
(and by no other person) in respect of all the shares for which the
offer is made. Acceptance shall be made by such Eligible Person by
signing and returning the duplicate of the offer letter together with
the payment of a consideration of HK$1.00 for such grant to Synergis
within the time period specified in the offer letter.

The basis of determining the subscription price

The subscription price in respect of any option granted under the
New Option Scheme shall be a price determined by the board and
notified to each grantee and shall not be less than the highest of (i)
the nominal value of a share; (i) the average of the closing prices of
the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for
the five business days immediately preceding the date on which an
offer for grant of an option (the “Offer Date”) is made to an Eligible
Person; and (iii) the closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on the Offer Date which must be
a business day, provided that the subscription price shall be rounded
upwards to the nearest whole cent.

Minimum period for holding an option before exercise
There is no minimum holding period for which an option must
be held before exercise pursuant to the New Option Scheme. The
commencement date of the period during which an option may be
exercised shall be specified by the board in the relevant offer letter.

Remaining life

The New Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of ten
years commencing on 17 June 2013, the date of adoption of the New
Option Scheme, unless otherwise terminated in accordance with the
rules of the New Option Scheme.
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Synergis Share Option Schemes (continued)

(3) Movements in Options
Details of movements in the share options under the Old Option Scheme
and New Option Scheme, and the share options outstanding at the

MEEEMBENE ()
(3) BREZZE

ERRE I BT R TR &

siE

RAENREE2014F12 A3 B I FE 2 R ITEHE

beginning and the year ended 31 December 2014 are set out as follows: e
Number of Number of
share share
options held . options held
FREd Changes during the year E5EG
1 January FHER 31 December  Exercise price
Name of grantees Date of grant 2014 Granted Exercised Lapsed Cancelled 2014 per share Exercisable period
20145 #2014%
1A1A 128318
#HEL RHZ
REARSE RHHAM mRERE R Tl 3 BH  WRERE  SRITER fHEd
(do/mmiy) (HK9) (ddfmmyy)
(B/R/%) (B¥T) (B/R/%)
Directors
E¥
Wilfred Wong Ying Wai 25/09/2009 2,000,000' - - - - 2,000,000 0.820 25/09/2010 - 24/09/2015
THR 27/05/2013 1,200,000 - - - - 1,200,000 0.952 27/05/2014 - 27/05/2019
Fan Cheuk Hung 25/09/2009 1,500,000" = = = = 1,500,000 0.820 25/09/2010 - 24/09/2015
Bk 01/09/2011 1,500,000° - - - - 1,500,000 0.760 01/09/2012 - 31/08/2015
Stephen Ip Shu Kwan 27/052013 300,000° = = = = 300,000 0.952 27/05/2014 - 27/05/2017
373001 1611022013 600,000 = = = = 600,000 0.850 16/10/22013 - 15/10/2018
Kan Fook Yee 27/05/2013 300,000° - - - - 300,000 0.952 27/05/2014 - 27/05/2017
Ll 16/1022013 600,000 = = = = 600,000 0.850 16/10/22013 - 15/10/2018
Wong Tsan Kwong 27/05/2013 300,000° - - - - 300,000 0.952 27/05/2014 - 27/05/2017
BEE 16/1022013 600,000 - - - - 600,000 0.850 16/1072013 - 15/10/2018
David Yu Hon To 27/05/2013 300,000° = = = = 300,000 0.952 27/05/2014 - 27/05/2017
BEE 16/1012013 600,000 = = = = 600,000 0.850 16/1012013 - 15/10/2018
Ex-directors
HEES
Barry John Buttifant® 27/05/2013 300,000° = = (300,000) = = 0.952 27/05/2014 - 27/05/2017
kA 16/1022013 600,000 = = (600,000) = = 0.850 16/10/22013 - 15/10/2018
Catherine Chu’ 25/09/2009 900,000" - (720,000) (180,000) - - 0.820 25/09/2010 - 24/09/2015
R 27/05/2013 900,000* = = (900,000) = = 0.952 27/05/2014 - 27/05/2019
Tenniel Chu? 27/05/2013 300,000° - - (300,000) - - 0.952 27/05/2014 - 27/05/2017
R 16/1022013 600,000 = = (600,000) = = 0.850 16/10/2013 - 15/10/2018
Employees (in aggregate) 25/09/2009 2,100,000' - (1,650,000) (450,000) - - 0.820 25/09/2010 - 24/09/2015
&R (£8) 28/06/2010 150,000" = = = = 150,000 0.996 25/09/2010 - 24/09/2015
07/06/2011 1,650,000% - (560,000) (210,000) - 880,000 0.860 07/06/2012 - 06/06/2017
27/05/2013 14,100,000 = (1,020,000) (1,410,000) = 11,670,000 0.952 27/05/2014 - 27/05/2019
31,400,000 - (3,950,000)* (4,950,000) - 22,500,000

* Out of 3,950,000 share options exercised during the year, 60,000 share options
were exercised on 29 December 2014 and the shares were subsequently issued on 2

January 2015.
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Synergis Share Option Schemes (continued)

(3) Movements in Options (continued)
Notes:

! Options were vested in equal portions on 25 September 2010, 2011, 2012, 2013
and 2014 respectively, and became exercisable for a period from the respective dates
and ending on 24 September 2015.

2 Options were or to be vested in equal portions on 7 June 2012, 2013, 2014, 2015
and 2016 respectively, and became or become exercisable for a period from the
respective dates and ending on 6 June 2017.

3 Options were vested in equal portions on 1 September 2012, 2013 and 2014
respectively, and became exercisable for a period from the respective dates and
ending on 31 August 2015.

4 Options were or to be vested in equal portions on 27 May 2014, 2015, 2016, 2017
and 2018 respectively, and became or become exercisable for a period from the
respective dates and ending on 27 May 2019.

E Options were or to be vested in equal portions on 27 May 2014, 2015 and 2016
respectively, and became or become exercisable for a period from the respective dates
and ending on 27 May 2017.

6 Dr. Barry John Buttifant resigned as a non-executive director of Synergis with effect
from 18 February 2014.

7 Dr. Catherine Chu resigned as an executive director of Synergis with effect from
6 June 2014.

8 Mr. Tenniel Chu resigned as a non-executive director of Synergis with effect from
6 June 2014.

Directors’ Right to Acquire Shares or Debentures

During the year, the Company operated a share option scheme pursuant to which
options may be granted, inter alia, to the directors of the Company. Certain
directors of the Company, being also directors of Synergis, are also eligible to
participate in the Synergis Share Option Schemes pursuant to which they may be
granted options for subscription of shares in Synergis. Details of such schemes
and the movements in options are set out in the paragraphs entitled “Share
Option Schemes” above. Further details of options granted and/or shares allotted
or transferred to the directors of the Company are disclosed in the paragraph
entitled “Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and Short Positions in the
Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures of the Company and its Associated
Corporations”and note 34 to the consolidated financial statements.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the directors of the Company
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate.
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Directors’ Interests in Competing Business

During the year ended 31 December 2014, Mr. ZHANG Xiaoying (a Non-
executive Director) was the board chairman of KEMEEBEXEREER AR
(“Tewoo Property”) and its related companies (other than the Group) engaging in
property development and investment in the PRC (the “Tewoo Business”). Based
on Tewoo Group's website, in recent years, it has developed and is developing
projects of approximately 1.4 million sq.m GFA in total located in Tianjin, Harbin
of Heilongjiang Province, Tai'an of Shangdong Province, and Linfen of Shanxi
Province. Tewoo Property is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Tewoo Group, which is a
substantial shareholder of the Company.

For the purposes of the Listing Rules, Mr. ZHANG Xiaoying is considered to
have interests (by way of directorship) in competing businesses (i.e. property
development and investment in the PRC). The operations of Tewoo Property
and the Group and their respective management are totally separate and
independent. Therefore, the Company has been and continues to carry on its
business, management and operation independently of, and at arm’s length from,
the Tewoo Business.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors (excluding Independent Non-
executive Directors) were interested in any business apart from the Group's
business which competed or was likely to compete, either directly or indirectly,
with the business of the Group during the year ended 31 December 2014.

Convertible Securities, Options, Warrants or Similar
Rights

On 27 January 2014, the Company issued notes with a principal amount of
HK$156,250,000. The notes, which are denominated in Hong Kong dollars,
were redeemed at 100% of the principal amount plus 5% interest on 27 January
2015.

Warrants have been issued (for no additional payment) to the first registered
holders of the notes on the basis of 1,000,000 warrants for every whole multiple
of HK$1,250,000 in the principal amount of the notes taken up. The warrants
are detachable from the notes and the warrants and the notes can be transferred
individually and separately.

On 8 January 2015, a total of 857,449,996 Rights Shares offered under the
Rights Issue and a total of 1,472,960,000 New Placing Shares at the Placing Price
of HK$1.00 per New Placing Share were issued pursuant to the announcement
and right issue prospectus of the Company dated 9 December 2014. Upon
completion of the Rights Issue and New Placing, all condition precedents set
out in the acquisition agreement of the entire issued share capital of Goleman
International Limited (“Goleman”) were satisfied and the acquisition was
completed on the same date. Goleman, through its subsidiaries, held five land
parcels in Foshan and is engaged in property investment business. The acquisition
consideration is satisfied by issuance of consideration preference shares (“CPSs").
Up to the date of this report, 4,559,729,988 CPSs were issued and none of the
CPS was converted or redeemed.
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Convertible Securities, Options, Warrants or Similar
Rights (continued)

Save as above, the option schemes mentioned under “Share Option Scheme”
above and in note 34(b) to the consolidated financial statements, and the
warrants set out in note 29 to the consolidated financial statements, the
Company had no other outstanding convertible securities, options, warrants or
similar rights as at 31 December 2014. Other than those disclosed above and in
notes 29 and 34 to the consolidated financial statements, there was no issue or
exercise of any convertible securities, options, warrants or similar rights during the
year ended 31 December 2014.

Management Contracts

No contract concerning the management and administration of the whole or
any substantial part of the business of the Company was entered into or existed
during the year ended 31 December 2014.

Retirement Schemes

The Group participated defined contribution retirement schemes during the year.
Particulars of the retirement schemes are set out in note 2(t)(i) to the consolidated
financial statements.

Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short Positions in
the Shares and Underlying Shares of the Company

As at 31 December 2014 and 19 March 2015, the interests or short positions of
the following substantial shareholders (other than persons who were directors
and chief executive of the Company) in the shares and underlying shares of
the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO, were as follows:

Long positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
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As at 31 December 2014 As at 19 March 2015
#2014%12R318 120153190
Approximate Approximate
percentage of percentage of
interest in the interest in the
Number of Shares issued share Number of | Number of Shares issued share Number of
Name of Shareholder(s) Capacity held/involved capital  underlying Shares held/involved capital  underlying Shares
{HE BT {52817
it/ BRZ BFz s/ SR 2.4
BREH 2 BkiA#A #wEsl HREkA%E BiA%A L EER HRERSE
(Note 3) (Note 3)
(FrE3) (HizE3)
(1) Tewoo Group Co., Ltd * Interests of controlled 513,861,240 17.98% - 3,513,861,240 67.72% -
XENEEMARL corporation
REEER
(2)  Tewoo Investment Co., Limited ~ Beneficial owner 137,940,000 4.83% - 137,940,000 2.66% -
RORERRAT EnBAA
Interests of controlled 375,921,240 13.15% - 3,375,921,240 65.06% -
corporation
b3 I/ii@%ﬁn
(3) Riant Investment Co., Limited  Beneficial owner 375,921,240 13.15% - 3,375,921,240 65.06% -
R EBRAR EREEA
(4)  Neo Summit Beneficial owner 475,816,993 16.65% - 475,816,993 9.17% -
g EXHEAA (Note 1(a)) (Note 1(a))
*  for identification purposes only * (EHRHE
89 201458 FELESEARAR
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Substantial Shareholders’

Interests and Short Positions

in the Shares and Underlying Shares of the Company

(continued)

Long positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company

FERRRNELFIRGRIERBRGPEEZ
BERHKE (8

RERFRGREMBREZITFE ()

(continued)
As at 31 December 2014 As at 19 March 2015
#2014512A318 #2015%3A19A
Approximate Approximate
percentage of percentage of
interest in the interest in the
Number of Shares issued share Number of | Number of Shares issued share Number of
Name of Shareholder(s) Capacity held/involved " Q@ |ta| underlying Shares held/involved " &tal underlying Shares
g E
Fi% /SR t Fi%/BRZ
BRER & BirBA #rask HRROHE BirBAE HHEQH: HREHEE
(Note 3) (Note 3)
(W3E3) (MizE3)
(5 Summit View Beneficial owner 924,486,796 32.35% - 991,041,79 19.10% -
35 EnBAA (Note 1(o)) (Notes 1(b)(c)
(FzE1(b) (1))
(6)  MA Kwing, Pony Interests of controlled 1,400,303,789 48.99% - 1,466,858,789 28.27% -
5 corporation Notes 1(a)b) (Notes 1(a)(b)c)
RS (MiEE1(a)o)) (1))
Interests of spouse 6,406,250,000 224.14% - 4,398,265,829 84.77% =
s (Note 2) (Note 2)
(M32) (MizE2)
(7) LN Zhuo Yan Interests of spouse 1,400,303,789 48.99% = 1,466,858,789 28.27% =
HREFE [ (Notes 1(a)b) (Notes 1(al(o)(c))
(M&1ab) (HEE (@)
Interests of controlled 6,406,250,000 224.14% = 4,398,265,830 84.77% =
corporation (Note 2) (Note 2)
RS (Mzk2) (MizF2)
(8)  Rich Century Development Beneficial owner 6,406,250,000 224.14% - 4,398,265,830 84.77% -
Limited EnEBA (Note 2) (Note 2)
Mt BRERAR) (WizE2) (MzE2)
(9)  Win World Profits Limited Beneficial owner 215,000,000 7.52% - - - -
Eih (Note 4)
(Mita)
(10)  YEUNG Sau Shing Albert Interests of controlled 215,000,000 7.52% - - - -
B corporat\on (Note 4)
mEEER (Mizk4)
(11) LUK Siu Man Semon Interests of spouse 215,000,000 7.52% - - - -
e Bl (Note 4)
(Mfiz4)
(12) CHENG Yu Tung Interests of controlled - - - 400,000,000 771% -
ey ., Lomporaton
RELEER
(13) Chow Tai Fook Nominee Limited  Beneficial owner = = = 400,000,000 7.11% =
AARREABRAR EnEEA
(14) MAK Siu Hang Viola Interests of controlled - - - 400,000,000 1.71% -
BEOR corporation
XErEER
(15) VMS Holdings Limited Interests of controlled - - - 400,000,000 771% -
_ corporatlon
R LEER
(16) VMS Investment Group Ltd. Beneficial owner - - - 400,000,000 7.71% -
ERfEA
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Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short Positions
in the Shares and Underlying Shares of the Company

(continued)
Long positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
(continued)

Notes:

1.

(@) 475,816,993 Shares are held by Neo Summit, which is owned by (a) Pinnacle State
Real Estate Limited as to 28.89%; (b) Summit View Holdings Limited (“Summit
View") as to 13.33%; (c) Jones Capital Investments Limited as to 28.89%; and (d)
Becl World Holding Ltd as to 28.89%. Pinnacle State Real Estate Limited is indirectly
wholly-owned by Dr. Wilfred WONG Ying Wai. Jones Capital Investments Limited is
wholly-owned by Ms. MA Kwing, Pony (“Ms. MA"). As such, Neo Summit is deemed
to be a controlled corporation of Dr. Wilfred WONG Ying Wai and Ms. MA under the
SFO.

(b)  As at 31 December 2014, Summit View held 924,486,796 Shares which comprised
(i) 221,850,000 Shares and (ii) 702,636,796 Rights Shares underwritten by Summit
View pursuant to the Underwriting Agreement as disclosed in the prospectus of 9
December 2014 of the Company. Summit View is owned as to 50% by Dr. Wilfred
WONG Ying Wai and 50% by Ms. MA. As such, Summit View is deemed to be a
controlled corporation of Dr. Wilfred WONG Ying Wai and Ms. MA under the SFO.

(©) On 8 January 2015, the said 702,636,796 Shares and 66,555,000 nil-paid Rights
Shares were allotted to Summit View.

As disclosed in (i) the announcement of the Company dated 15 May 2014, Hsin Chong
Property Holdings Limited (a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) as the Purchaser
entered into the Acquisition Agreement with Rich Century Development Limited (a company
wholly-owned by Mr. LIN Zhuo Yan)(“Rich Century”) as the Vendor and Mr. LIN Zhuo Yan
as the warrantor regarding a very substantial acquisition in relation to the acquisition of a
property development project in the PRC; and (ii) the announcement of the Company dated
4 November 2014, a Supplemental Agreement to the Sale and Purchase Agreement was
entered into amongst the same parties to the Sale and Purchase Agreement. As part of the
consideration of the Sale and Purchase Agreement, the Company may issue to Rich Century
consideration preference shares which can be converted into up to 6,406,250,000 ordinary
shares in the Company. As such, Rich Century being a company wholly owned by Mr. LIN
Zhuo Yan is deemed to be a controlled corporation of Mr. LIN Zhuo Yan under the SFO. MA
Kwing, Pony is the spouse of Mr. LIN Zhuo Yan and is deemed to be interested under the
SFO.

There were 2,858,166,655 and 5,188,576,651 ordinary shares of the Company in issue as
at 31 December 2014 and 19 March 2015 respectively.

The shareholder ceased to have an interest in at least 5% of the shares of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2014 and 19 March 2015, the
Company had not been notified of any other persons (other than persons who
were directors and chief executive of the Company) who had an interest or short
position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO.
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Directors’ Report

ESEWS

Continuing Connected Transactions HEMEXS

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Company and/or its subsidiaries ~ REZ2014F12831BIEFER AR F KL KEMBEA
had entered into (or continued to be a party to) the following continuing  RIE &M (REEAZSRHZET4H) THIBEEST Eh
connected transactions which are subject to the annual review and reporting (REBIFVUAB Z FEERMNERBTEORFEBEL S

requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules:

(A) Tenancy Agreement and Carpark Agreements (A) HERBRFEGIRSE
Subsidiaries of Synergis entered into a number of tenancy agreements EER I MBARERNARZHMBAREINLT %1
or sub-lease agreements with subsidiaries of the Company, details of the HEWZE RS HHZ RHFEERBENBEAR2014
transactions were disclosed in the announcement of 7 January 2014. The FIRATHZAE HE2014F12A31HIEFE - FF
annual caps, annual considerations and other details for the year ended 31 ERFEREBERAMFENT:

December 2014 were as follows:

Annual Nature and extent of the

Connected person(s) Date of agreement(s) Terms Particulars Annual cap  consideration connected person’s interest
REAL 2] =L MR Hf FELR FERRA REALCHEHERER
(HKS) (HKS)
(B%T) (B%)

Hsin Chong Interiors First Sub-lease Agreement of 2 years from Lease of portion of 7/F of 720,000 654,108  Hsin Chong Interiors and SMS are
(Hong Kong) Limited 24 July 2013 1 January 2013 Hsin Chong Center wholly-owned subsidiaries of Synergs,
("Hsin Chong Interiors”) ~ BE3A201357A24B2  B013F1A1B 25 BEHRERLTEZ—HH a non-wholly-owned subsidiary of
as lessee i pHlE the Company where Summit View

MEENRH (%) Holdings Limited, a substantial
ARAR ([FEE Second Sub-lease Agreement 16 months from Lease of portion of 7/F, 8/F of 400,000 359,128 shareholder of the Company, is
%)) fEREBEA of 24 July 2013 and 1 January 2013 Linkchart Centre directly holding 17.22% of Synergs.

Supplemental Sub-lease  F2013F1A1HE REBZFLTERSE Hence, Hsin Chong Interiors and SMS
Agreement of 5 August 16184 1) are connected persons under the
2013 Listing Rules.

BH#A201357A4E 2 MEEREHLNSERRBARR
F_houhERERR AR ENBARMEER 2 EN
201358458 BRA AREz TERRESER
ZBRDM S ARAREERANEER7.22%

IR R FTE EREH RIS
ERRBRLRAET 2 BEA
4o

Synergis Management Tenancy Agreement of 2 years from Lease of 3/F, 5F, 8/F and 10/F 4,000,000 3,838,632 Hsin Chong Interiors and SMS are
Services Limited ("SMS") 7 January 2014 1 January 2014 of Hsin Chong Center wholly-owned subsidiaries of Synergs,
as lessee BHA014F1A782 B014FIAIREE  HEHMERL3E 52 8 a non-wholly-owned subsidiary of

MEERRKERAR BEHE K10 the Company where Summit View
([FEEEMRS]) Holdings Limited, a substantial
{ERERA shareholder of the Company, s

directly holding 17.22% of Synergs.

SMS as lessee Licence Agreements of On going Lease of car parking spaces 360,000 225,204 Hence, Hsin Chong Interiors and SMS

MEERREEAEBA 1 Apil 2005 and & REREN are connected persons under the

27 April 2012 Listing Rules.

BH#A20055F4A1BR MEEREMLNSERRBARR

1254R218 2 553 i AR ENBARMEER AN

BRA AREz TERRESER
ARARERFARNEEE2%
LR Rt MEERRHRINE
ERRBEALHRARTZBEA
1k
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Continuing Connected Transactions (continued)
(B) General Business Services Agreement

The Company entered into a General Business Services Agreement on
27 September 2012 with Synergis pursuant to which Synergis and its
subsidiaries (collectively, the “Synergis Group”) is the service provider.
The annual cap for the General Business Services Agreement for the year
ended 31 December 2014 was HK$25,000,000. Details of the General
Business Services Transaction were disclosed in the announcement dated 27
September 2012.

Directors’ Report
EEgRT

BFEREXS (9

(B) —BEBIRFE A
AABERFHEEEN2012F9 827 L —REBR
B BULFEESEREWBRAR (KA #8
BEEE])ABERARE 2 HER -EZE2014F128
BNBEFE —REGRFEHBENFELRABE
25,000,0007T °c —MEBERIEZ 5 BEEHENLAR
Bl A2012F9R270 2 Affie

Annual  Nature and extent of the
Connected person(s) Date of agreement(s)  Terms Particulars consideration  connected person'’s interest
WEAL 4 1= ] 3 FERE BEATCHEMEREE
(HKS)
(A%
Synergis General Business 3 years from Provision of property and 24,818,103 Synergis is a connected person
Agreement dated 27 1 January 2013 facility management under the Listing Rules.
September 2012 services, cleaning services
and miscellaneous services
by relevant members
of Synergs to relevant
members of the Company
HEER A A2012% H013F1A1HE3E  HEERNEERERAR 24818103 R MM FHEEERHE
9A27RZ YNl NGt Ate
—REBRG 5 MER R ERRE
BRI R IERT

(C) Tender Services Agreement

The Company entered into the Tender Services Agreement with Synergis
on 30 November 2012 pursuant to which the Group will provide tender
services to Synergis Group. The annual cap for the Tender Services
Agreement for the year ended 31 December 2014 was HK$2,000,000,000.
Details of the transactions were disclosed in the announcement of the

Q) RERBHE
201211 A308 A AR T S E R RIZHR
e Bt AEBB R EEEEERERZR
o HE2014F12 A3 B ILFE  RIZRBG HHENF
E PR A&7 #2,000,000,0007T ° 32 BB R BN AR
BIHEA2012F9A10B 2 A5 K HEIA20124510 A

Company dated 10 September 2012 and circular dated 26 October 2012. 268 ZiBpH e
Annual  Nature and extent of the
Connected person(s) Date of agreement(s) Terms Particulars Consideration  connected person’s interest
WEAL i 1=R HR 3 FERE REALCHEMHEREE
(HK$)
(B%T)
Synergis Tender Services Up to 31 December 2014 To provide tender services to 248,570,123 Synergis is a connected person
Agreement dated 30 Synergis Group under the Listing Rules.
November 2012
HEER H#R20126 HE20145 RS EREERERE 148570123 RiEEMHRA HMEEERME
11483082 12A31H R At
RIRB 15
93 20145 FELEEEBRAF]
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RHEMER S (1)
(D) MM

Continuing Connected Transactions (continued)
(D) Supporting Services Agreement

The Company entered into the Supporting Services Agreement with
Synergis on 30 November 2012 pursuant to which the Group will provide
supporting services (which mainly involve staff costs in health, safety,
quality, environmental, plant, surveying, site administration, building
services and special projects, etc.) to Synergis Group. The annual cap for
the Supporting Services Agreement for the year ended 31 December 2014
was HK$30,000,000. Details of the transactions were disclosed in the
announcement of the Company dated 10 September 2012 and circular
dated 26 October 2012.

AATHFEEIEN20126F11 8308 5] X IE R
W& Bt AEEERFEEEEERETER
K EREBESRER T2 RE RE W5 #
B HWREE BFREEEREEEE IR H
E2014F12A31HEFE T EBREHE2FE L
IR A&7 %30,000,0007T ° X 5B BN AR R A H
A2012F9 108 2 A% K%20129F10 26 H 2 8K ©

Annual  Nature and extent of the

Connected person(s) Date of agreement(s)  Terms Particulars Consideration ~ connected person’s interest
REAL F 4=k HR HiE FERE REALCHEEEREGE
(HKS)
(B¥#T)
Synergis Supporting Services Up to 31 December To provide supporting 12,061,567  Synergis is a connected person
Agreement dated 30 2014 services to Synergis Group under the Listing Rules.
November 2012
HEER B 1420126 BE014512A318 RHEEEKEREE 12,061,567 RIEEMHRA HEEER
1MA30AZ AR BEAL-
XIE R s

The directors (including the independent non-executive directors) of the
Company have reviewed and confirmed that all the continuing connected
transactions mentioned in (A) to (D) above conducted in the year were
entered into on the following basis:

(@) in the ordinary and usual course of the business of the Group;
(b)  on normal commercial terms or better; and

() according to the relevant agreements governing these transactions
on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s continuing
connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on
Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits
or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with reference to Practice
Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under
the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. The auditor has issued an unqualified letter containing
his findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected
transactions disclosed by the Group as above in accordance with Rule
14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided
by the Company to the Stock Exchange.

The Company has complied with the disclosure requirements in accordance
with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in respect of the continuing
connected transactions mentioned in (A) to (D) above.
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Major Customers and Suppliers

The five largest customers of the Group accounted for 74% (2013: 55%) of the
Group's total revenue and the largest customer of the Group accounted for 41%
(2013: 30%) of the Group's total revenue for the year.

The 5 largest suppliers of the Group accounted for less than 25% (2013: less than
25%) of the Group's total purchases for the year.

None of the Directors, any of their associates or shareholders (which, to the best
knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share
capital) had an interest in any of the Group's five largest customers.

Bank Borrowings
The particulars of bank borrowings of the Group as at 31 December 2013 and 31
December 2014 are set out in note 28 to the consolidated financial statements.

Donations
During the year, donations made by the Group for charitable and other purposes
amounted to HK$2,566,000 (2013: HK$2,462,000).

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the Company’s Listed
Securities

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any
of the Company’s listed securities during the year ended 31 December 2014.

Public Float

At the date of this report, the Company has maintained the prescribed public float
under the Listing Rules, based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and to the best of knowledge of its directors.

Auditor

The retiring auditor, PricewaterhouseCoopers, has offered themselves for re-
appointment. A resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming 2015 annual
general meeting of the Company to re-appoint PricewaterhouseCoopers as the
auditor of the Company for the ensuing year and to authorise the Directors to fix
its remuneration.

On behalf of the Board

Wilfred WONG Ying Wai
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 19 March 2015
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Independent Auditor’s Report
Y& N A2 BR R

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
HSIN CHONG CONSTRUCTION GROUP LTD.
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Hsin Chong
Construction Group Ltd. (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the
“Group”) set out on pages 98 to 185, which comprise the consolidated and
company balance sheets as at 31 December 2014, and the consolidated
income statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow
statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a body,
in accordance with Section 90 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal control relevant to the entity's preparation of consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

*  for identification purposes only

HSIN CHONG CONSTRUCTION GROUP LTD. ANNUAL REPORT 2014 96

FHSIN CHONG CONSTRUCTION GROUP LTD.
(HEEERERRAF KRR
(REREFMHILZBRLE])

AAZEAD (AT B (5] B BEH P E A 98B £185
H Z Hsin Chong Construction Group Ltd. (¥T1& & EEEH
RAR*) (ATHBIEAR]) REMBAR (Fil[&
£E ) WA MIBEmE IR A SRR 2IER2014512
A3NBMEEEFNAREEABREHEZEZB IEFENER
SRR HREZHEEER SEEREBRREARS
MER AREFBGHEBREREMMTREER -

EFNGSMBEBRRARBENRE

BERREZARBERBEEEGMASHEMNE BN
WEERREL CRRMED) BB ERELR S TSR
R NLHEEVBRRFLEEMAFHRR REEE
RRmEUT A M MAR PV BN EIES] - IAE AR A B 75
R A7 P HREE S AR T 8 B0 KB BR PR

B RE
BANEETRREBEMANEAHZSTEAMH MK
BR-WRRAFRE 1981FRAFE) F0KEMEBER
RS Bt 2SRRGB EEAL B &) - AT & AR
EHARAERNEMA LA ESAREEAEE

RMEREESEH AR BANE BB ERETE
i o RERAIBRBMETERER LB RRTET
DARBERA SRR R T M E M BRI -

FETERMITREFIAERB BG A MIEHRRAE S E R
BAMMEITERRE - BT E A BURR R BRED #2157 -
BREAEAREFFRERMEBGRAMBERRFEEXN
SRR A R - R X SRR Y R BETE B A
AREURA B RERAMELEEM A FORREBHA
BRI  AREHEE VE R BB X IFH QR A
EHARMEERER - Bt NERTEEEARAES
BERE B BN REH EFHEFTNE RN AR EHRE R
BmRHBEIHIA -

BAIRRME - RPIFTRSHEREET EMNEE AT
MERTE R HER-

= (EHET)



Opinion R

Independent Audito\r's Report
BB RS

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of ~ KfIRA  ZEEAMBEHERCEEESMBHRE L E
the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31 December 2014, B AFibRME HAFKE HEEN20145F12A8318
and of the Group's profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance ~ EVEMikn K BEBEHEZA LFENABELRE R
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared & I 2IRBEE (R AMEH) MIFBERTE ARE -

in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies

Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers BERKEGHMESHR
Certified Public Accountants HEEE AN

Hong Kong, 19 March 2015 &% 20153 H19H
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Consolidated Income Statement

'A__| N7
e W
For the year ended 31 December 2014
HZE2014F12A318 1EFE
2014 2013
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B &E BETT PRI
Revenue Wz 5 14,010,505 11,505,979
Cost of sales $HE AR 8 (13,377,607) (10,929,245)
Gross profit EF 632,898 576,734
Other income and other gains, net EoAth I A R H Y a0 RE 6 8,516 9,545
Net exchange (loss)/gain X (E18) W55 (2,026) 3,272
Selling and general administrative expenses HER —MRITEHAX (435,652) (406,954)
Gain on bargain purchase EAE e 36 - 73,210
Gain on redemption of convertible bonds fB O A AR B 5 W 32(b) - 18,774
Fair value gain/(loss) on investment properties WEMEDNRERH, (EE) 16 403,691 (17,620)
Amortisation of intangible assets & EE 17 (12,269) (14,002)
Interest income B A 1,370 6,369
Interest expenses FEMAX 7 (43,036) (24,286)
Profit before taxation B %54 BT 4 8 553,492 225,542
Taxation HiIA 12 (150,617) (32,127)
Profit for the year NG g A 402,875 193,415
Profit attributable to: FE(G & F] -
Equity holders of the Company RAREREE A 387,558 185,402
Non-controlling interests FEFE R 15,317 8,013
402,875 193,415
Basic earnings per share (HK cents) GRREARZF) () 13 13.6 12.0
Diluted earnings per share (HK cents) FRRESE AR (BE) 13 13.6 9.6
Dividends % 2 14 243,045 83,021
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

fre 2 mE R mR

For the year ended 31 December 2014

EZE20145F12A31BIEFE
2014 2013
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT BT T
Profit for theyear ~ A%Fm# e 193415
Other comprehensive income/(loss) Hibh2mikss (E18)
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss: # 7_ SEF SRR RS HE
Actuarial (loss)/gain on retirement benefit RINENEECRE
obligations (FE518) Wz (2,158) 4,579
Fair value gain on leasehold land and building ME T REFZ AR ERE 139,291 38,573
Deferred tax on fair value gain of HETHREFRAABERZZ
leasehold land and building EIERTIA (22,983) (6,365)
Items that may be subsequently reclassified to HEAfEEF 7 ABEm o HE -
profit or loss:
Fair value gain on available-for-sale financial asset AEHERBEE 2 AR ERE 17,608 =
Deferred tax on fair value gain of AL ENBEEAAE
available-for-sale financial asset s 2 IR EF IR (4,402) =
Exchange differences arising on translation of REGINETSEE
foreign operations 2 FEH Z%E (33,371) 88,652
_ Other comprehensive income for the year, netof tax  AFEMMRARR A S e 93985 125439
Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax ~ ANFEREHBRFIER 2 2 ENZSEEE 496,860 318,854
Total comprehensive income attributable to: EREE N a=ETE
Equity holders of the Company RATE=TFEA 481,976 309,430
Non-controlling interests FEE IR 14,884 9,424
496,860 318,854
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

= > = ==
MEEEAER
As at 31 December 2014
201412 A31H

2014 2013
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B eE BT PR T T
Non-current assets JERENEE
Property, plant and equipment M HeES KRR A 15 578,521 463,963
Investment properties LEMF 16 2,806,731 1,536,519
Intangible assets BIZERE 17 87,543 98,863
Goodwill BES 18 42,002 42,002
Available-for-sale financial asset AIHEEZHEEE 21 27,798 10,190
Deposit paid for property, plant and equipment B fI¥%  HERRE 2 LS - 5,425
Deferred tax assets EETRIEE E 27 15,632 11,859
3,558,227 2,168,821
Current assets BN EE
Properties under development BRBPYZE 22 4,287,431 3,880,470
Stocks and contracting work-in-progress FEREEP TR 23 2,051,994 2,429,323
Receivables and prepayments EUERF T & 24 2,394,207 1,715,975
Amounts due from non-controlling interests 78 LA SR 47 S A 25 IS SR FR I 25 3,910 4,340
Amounts due from other partners FEUHRIZE 2 H A 1E
of joint operations B RIE 20 2,886 18,444
Deposits, cash and cash equivalents ER-BHekERREIEER 26
— restricted — S PR Al 30,708 4,592
— unrestricted — NS BR ] 863,960 921,188
9,635,096 8,974,332
Current liabilities e R
Bank loans |ITERK 28 (2,194,118) (1,592,840)
Notes E- 29 (154,741) =
Payables and accruals e R R EFE R 30 (4,227,729) (3,797,509)
Amounts due to other partners FEHRIZE 2 HMA1E
of joint operations BLEFA 20 (10,750) (17,937)
Current tax liabilities ERRIEAE (58,924) (42,106)
(6,646,262) (5,450,392)
Net current assets B R ERE 2,988,834 3,523,940
Total assets less current liabilities HEERREBAR 6,547,061 5,692,761
Non-current liabilities ERBAR
Bank loans IRITER 28 (1,241,680) (928,112)
Long service payment liabilities KRGS EE 33 (3,749) (3,548)
Deferred tax liabilities RIEFIBEE 27 (643,182) (519,349)
Total non-current liabilities R B R R AT (1,888,611) (1,451,009)
Net assets BERE 4,658,450 4,241,752
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

RAREEBER
2014 2013
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
BisE BETT BB TIT
Equity e
Capital and reserves attributable to ELFEBFEA
the Company's equity holders B EER R
Share capital i@ 34 285,817 285,817
Other reserves HAthf# 3,347,055 3,244,779
Retained profits IREB 4 A 762,028 612,430
Proposed dividends R I B 214,463 57,163
4,609,363 4,200,189
Non-controlling interests JEPERRER 49,087 41,563
Total equity EadEst 4,658,450 4,241,752

Wilfred WONG Ying Wai E 3 {&

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer /& F# 7T IEC A4,
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Company Balance Sheet
RRABEERER

As at 31 December 2014

K20145F12A31H

2014 2013
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B =E BETT BT T
Non-current assets ERENEE
Property, plant and equipment M eSS KRR A 15 10,859 5,422
Intangible assets EmEEE 17 6,409 9,833
Investment in subsidiaries MHEARIERE 19 2,177,149 2,127,899
Loans to subsidiaries BERTHEAA 19 592,000 482,000
Deferred tax assets REBIREE 27 3,586 =
2,790,003 2,625,154
Current assets mEEE
Loan to a subsidiary BRT—HEKEBAR 19 46,940 53,440
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE U BT 58 2 A FRIE 19 3,490,440 2,268,865
Receivables and prepayments FEWER R R IFB & 24 146,709 20,028
Cash and cash equivalents Re MERBFEEE 26 1,137 1,450
3,685,226 2,343,783
Current liabilities R
Bank loans |ITER 28 (781,814) (735,454)
Notes B 29 (154,741) -
Payables and accruals N BRANESTER 30 (27.830) (13,065)
Loan from a subsidiary RE—HEHBRRZER 19 (74,000) =
Amounts due to subsidiaries FETHI B A R F A 19 (1,317,639) (328,984)
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, (2356029) ~ (1,077,503)
Net current assets mEEERE 1,329,202 1,266,280
Total assets less current liabilities HEERRBDAR 4,119,205 3,891,434
Non-current liabilities FEmEAR
Loan from a subsidiary ke —HHB AT ZEHK 19 (376,000) (120,000)
Long service payment liabilities REARBSBE 33 (216) (450)
_Totalnon-currentliabilities  __________xBRmes = (G76216) ________ (120,450) _
Net assets HERE 3,742,989 3,770,984
Equity Ea
Capital and reserves attributable to ELTFRSFH ARG
the Company's equity holders BXR R
Share capital &7 34 285,817 285,817
Other reserves H i #tE 35 2,749,042 2,743,513
Retained profits REE & A 35 493,667 684,491
Proposed dividends BRAL S 35 214,463 57,163
Total equity B 3,742,989 3,770,984

Wilfred WONG Ying Wai E 3 {&
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer 7 /& #1TIH#4 %t

Joseph CHOI Kin Hung & {#18
Executive Director #]77%Z &
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
TERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2014

EZE20145F12A31BIEFE
2014 2013
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B =E BETT BT
Operating activities BEEE
Net cash outflow from operations L 2B FRE 42 (851,086) (1,192,654)
Interest received 2 WF B 1,370 6,869
Interest paid EfFIE (107,958) (54,549)
Tax paid BEfHIA (37,905) (30,194)
Long service payment EHRS (2,210) (517)
Advance from other partners REHRFLE 2
of joint operations Efth S ER 2 BFR 15,558 14,974
Repayment to other partners BRTHRALEZ
of joint operations A& ERH (7,187) (18,444)
Net cash outflow from operating activities EEFERZRERHBHE (989,418) (1,274,515)
Investing activities BEEE
Net cash paid for consideration ERNEBEHREZ
for business combination He/FE 36 - (961,524)
(Placement)/release of time deposit —EANETEBHERZ
over three months (1) /1R (452) 104,620
Payment to non-controlling interest upon R —EIEEEHANE
dissolution of a non-wholly owned NCITERNE S 21
subsidiary T 3 IR R KA (225) =
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BB - s R (36,893) (45,904)
Purchase of intangible assets HEERLEE (949) (11,858)
Additions of investment properties RNEREYZE (2,456) =
Addition of available-for-sale financial asset AREAHLENBEE - (359)
Deposits paid for property, plant and equipment B3 S REEH 2R S - (5.425)
Net cash paid to settle former shareholders BNIREFEAEN—ME
loan in a subsidiary ff/8 A aElZ AR R B 5K 36 - (329,942)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME R RERE
plant and equipment FriS 3k 250 3,392
Proceeds from disposal of investment properties HEREMEER 1,353 =
Receipt from disposal of HEREEIHIEE
held-to-maturity investments Z WA - 2,486
Net cash outflow from investing activities  REFEIZH & FHHPHE (39,372) (1,244,514)
Financing activities ml R E
Drawdown of bank loans REERTTE R 1,893,613 2,095,498
Proceeds from issuance of notes, net of BOIRBZABHIE
transaction costs MR R S A 148,719 =
Proceeds from issuance of shares by ITERIR M S IR
Synergis to non-controlling interests A FE1E IR fE 2 AR B 2R 1T
upon exercise of share options & 1D FriEsk1E 3,341 =
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests B T IE AR AR SR R B (11,020) (7,330)
Dividends paid to the Company’s shareholders BT AR B RS (85,745) (53,891)
Repayment of bank loans BEIIRTTEXR (975,156) (1,116,440)
Proceeds from issuance of shares BT PTS X - 1,350,000
Issuance of shares by exercise of warrants BT RREFT BTG - 189,000
Transaction cost for issuance of shares BITIR D 2 R B PNA - (61,900)
Payment on redemption of coupon bonds BRIEBES 2K = (189,000)
Payment on redemption of convertible bonds HE o] AT AR (B 25 2 TR - (250,000)
Payment on redemption of 4% convertible B C14%3= 5 Al AR & 55
bonds ANE = (9,000)
Net cash inflow from financing activities MEEFHZRERAPHE 973,752 1,946,937
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
RAERERER

2014 2013
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Bt 5 BETT BT T
Decrease in cash and cash equivalents ReREARSFEARY (55,038) (572,092)
Cash and cash equivalents at the REN2H e KER
beginning of the year RELIEE 907,725 1,476,963
Exchange (loss)/gain on cash and cash RekERBFSEHZ
equivalents [E 5, (&518) ek (2.642) 2,854
Cash and cash equivalents at RERZEERER
the end of the year RE&EWmA 850,045 907,725
Analysis of the balances of cash and cash ReRSRAREHARE
equivalents: ZHH:
Bank balances and cash — unrestricted WRITHEGF RIS - TR 863,960 921,188
Less: Time deposit over three months W =18 A LA EEBITF AR (13,915) (13,463)
Cash and cash equivalents at RERZHERER
the end of the year HemE 850,045 907,725
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

AN B
fretEmE
For the year ended 31 December 2014
HZ2014F12A31ALLFE
Capital Convertible
redemption bonds and
and Share  warrants Non-
Share Share  Exchange general Special  Revaluation options equity Other Retained controlling Total
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total interests equity
THR
R’HER
HERER e
Bd  RHER ERRE 2 HERE 0 BIEE  EGREE DREGE  NERE  RRRE  REdd @i FEERE  HaeH
(Notei) (Note i) (Noteii) (Note i)
(s (Waki) — (Kitii) (W)
HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AETn  AETr  B%Tn AMTn AT B%Tn B¥Tn BT B%Tn BMTm BT B8t AT
At1January 2013 R013E1A1R 94,835 517435 54516 14420 332,046 239281 26599 22083 74137 540459 2,114,569 39029 2,153,598
Proft for the year REFRT - = - - - - - - - 185402 185402 8013 193415
Other comprehensive incomel(oss) H2EkE/ (B8)
Acturialgan on refrement benefitobigations  R{KERIR T 2B &k - - - - - - - - - 4579 4579 = 4579
Fairvalue gain on leasehold knd and buiding ~ EE LR EF 2 AR EEF - - - - - 38573 - - - - 38573 - B573
Deferred tax on fair value gan of keasehold. ~~ BETHRBFARERR]Z
Jand and buiding sl = = = = = (6,365) = = = = (6,365) = (6,365)
Exchange diference asng on tansatonof ~ REGEREE 2 ESZE
foreign operations - - 81,241 - - - - - - - 87241 1411 88,652
Total comprehensive income 2ANEEE - - 87,41 - - 3,208 - - - 189,981 309430 9424 318854
Issue of shares upon converson of REM%Z 8 TRk ES
4% convertible bonds mEIREA 3800 34672 - - - - - (2,020 - - 3645 - 3645
Issue of shares upon exerdise of Warrants BT ERERME ARG 18,900 187934 - - - - - (17,834) - - 189,000 - 189,000
Iste of shares upon converson of ReEmmaREHmE TR
convertible bonds 3328 49) 144 - - - - - (134,474) - - 390,952 - 390,952
Redemption of convertble bonds (Note 32(0) BREIAT 43 5% (Ff3#3200)) - - - - - - - (66,021) - (10813) (76,834) - (76,834)
Issuance of shares for business combination ~ SEEBAHEARA 135000 1,153,100 - - - - - - - - 1288100 - 1288100
Fquity setled share-based transactons WRABER 7 RELERS - o = o = o 2411 = & o 2411 4“0 2851
Transfer upon share options lapsing RARERAMER - - - - - - (3371) - - 3371 - - -
Transfer upon redemption of convertble bonds FEE A AR EmER - - - - - - - (486) - 486 - - -
Dividends paid BIRRS = = = = = = = = = (53,891) (53,891) (71330) (61,221)
190,982 1,867,850 - - - - (960) (220835) - (60847) 1,776,190 (6890) 1,769,300
At 31 December 2013 R013512A318 285817 2,385,285 141,757 14420 332,046 271495 25,639 - 74137 669,593 4,200,189 41563 4241752
At 1 January 2014 0141 A1R 285817 2,385,285 14,757 14420 332,046 271,495 25,639 - 74,131 669,593 4,200,189 41,563 420,752
Proftfor the year RERET - - - - - - - - - 387,558 387,558 15317 402,875
Other comprehensive incomefoss) Efp2 B/ (K8
Actuaralloss on reiement benefit bligations  REFEFIE 2 FEBE - - - - - - - - - (2,158) (2,158) - (2,158)
Fairvalue gai on leasehold knd and bulding & T30 RIET 2 AR ERF - - - - - 1391 - - - - 139291 - 139291
Deferred tax on fair value gain of REHHRETANEENZ
leasehold land and buiding ELHE - - - - - (22,983) - - - - (22,983) - (22,983)
Fairvalue gai on avalable-forale A ERBEEL
finandal asset MR - - - - - 17,608 - - - - 17,608 - 17,608
Deferred tax on fai value gain of AHHERBAEAAEERZ
avalable-forsale financal asset jidlan] - - - - - (4402 = = = = (4402) ° (4402)
Eichange dfference arsing on trenstionof ~ BEIESEHEL 2
foreign operations ExzE - - (32938) - - - - - - - (32938) @33) (33371)
Total comprehensive income 2ENREE - - (32938) - - 129514 - - - 385,400 431976 14,884 496,860
Issue of shares by Synergis to non-controling. - RAT{E 2R iEMHEEE
Interests upon exercise of share options RFEERERREZ TR - - - - - - (556) - - - (556) 3897 334
Equity settled share-based transactions MH%H%BI{Z RIEEERS - - - - - - 2609 - - (193) 1816 (12) 1,804
Transfer upon share options lapsing - - - - - - (8,036) - - 8,036 - - -
Recognition of warrants 6§ by - - - - - - - 11,683 - - 11,683 - 11,683
Payment to non-controling interst Wﬁﬁ EE T
upon dissoluton of a non-wholly i REaHRR
owned subsidiary FE - - - - - - - - - - - (225) (5)
Dividends paid BIRRE - - - - - - - - - (85,745) (85,745) (11,020) (96,765)
- - - - - - (5983) 11,683 - (78,502) (72,802) (7.360) (80,162)
At31 December 2014 20145 12A318 285817 2,385,285 108,819 14420 332,046 401,009 19,656 11,683 74137 976491 4,609,363 49087 4658450
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

VAN
%VT\IZI

Notes:

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

CET TS

Capital redemption reserve was created during the repurchase of shares of HK$4,420,000.
General reserve amounts to HK$10,000,000.

Special reserve comprises the difference between the fair value of the consideration, net of
deferred taxation and fair value of acquiring land parcels in Tieling, the People’s Republic
of China (the “"PRC"). This reserve will be recognised through the retained profits upon the
earlier of the disposal of the subsidiaries or the disposal by the subsidiaries of the assets to
which it relates, in proportion to the percentage the Group disposes.

Revaluation reserve comprises the fair value gains, net of deferred tax, on leasehold land and
building held for own use and available-for-sale financial assets.

Other reserve was arisen from the Group’s reorganisation and realignment of business
activities.

On 30 November 2012, the Company completed the disposal of Interiors & Special Projects
division to Driven Power Management Limited (“Driven Power”), a wholly owned subsidiary
of Synergis Holdings Limited (”Synergis”), a separately listed subsidiary of the Company. The
transaction was accounted for as a transaction with non-controlling interests.

As part of the settlement of the consideration, Synergis issued 58,666,667 convertible
preference shares (“CPS"”) to the Company. In determining the Group's economic interest
in Synergis after the transaction, management has taken into account the rights of the CPS
holders, among other things, potential voting rights and the same entitlement to dividends
and other distributions as the ordinary shareholders, and that a holder of the CPS is entitled
to the return of capital in priority of ordinary shares in case of winding up of Synergis.
Accordingly, the Group’s economic interest in Synergis increased from 50.94% to 58.31%
and the gain on disposals to non-controlling interests of HK$77,664,000 was recognised in
equity.

*  for identification purposes only
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(ii)

(i)

(iv)

*

X B [2] B 175 1 22 A 75 #64,420,0007T 2 & AN BE Bl (15 - LB #EE
##75%10,000,0007T °
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HitEHAASEEAREGABRMES

2012411 308 » AN A &) 525X [AIDriven Power Management
Limited ( [Driven Power |) * Synergis Holdings Limited (78 & 12
EEARQA* ([FEER]) ARARZBEIYL EWHERR) &
2ERBEMBARILEENRMRSKRIBEE DM ZEXHA
RIERBEIFRER 2R F e

ERERRERN—EH - 12 B IR AR F31758,666,667% 7
BB ([ATEIRELR]) - AR TR R FEEEAREER
METEMNCERZ TEERAMEIRELREE ANET
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BIE R A RS B150.94% 18 2258.31% » 1M & T IR AR 25 Y
7 1£77,664,0007T Yz B FER A = -

EH AR



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

General information

Hsin Chong Construction Group Ltd. (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively, the “Group”) are engaged in building construction, civil
engineering, electrical and mechanical installation, interiors and special
projects, property development and investment, and provision of property
and facility management services.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in Bermuda.
The address of its registered office is Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton, HM 11, Bermuda. The Company has its primary listing on the
main board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”).

The financial statements are presented in thousands of Hong Kong dollars
(HK$'000), unless otherwise stated, and were approved for issue by the
board of directors of the Company on 19 March 2015.

Summary of significant accounting policies

The significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the
financial statements are set out below. These policies have been consistently
applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

(a) Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA"). They have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, as modified by the revaluation of investment properties,
leasehold land and building and available-for-sale financial assets
which are carried at fair value.

The consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with
the applicable requirements of the predecessor Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 32) for this financial year and the comparative period.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the
Group's accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of
judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates
are significant to the consolidated financial statements are disclosed in
Note 4.

*  for identification purposes only
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Notes to the Con§olidated Financial Statements
e R MR

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(a) Basis of preparation (continued)
(i) New and amended standards adopted by the Group
The following new/revised HKFRSs, amendments and
interpretations are mandatory for the first time for the financial
year beginning 1 January 2014.

Amendments to HKFRS 10, Investment Entities
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27
(2011)

Amendments to HKAS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities

Amendments to HKAS 36 Recoverable Amount Disclosures
for Non-Financial Assets

Amendments to HKAS 39 Novation of Derivatives and
Continuation of Hedge
Accounting

HK(FRIC) — Interpretation 21 Levies

The adoption of the new/revised HKFRSs, amendments and
interpretations that are relevant to the Group's operations and
mandatory for annual periods beginning on 1 January 2014
has had no material impact on the Group's results and financial
position.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(a) Basis of preparation (continued)

(i) New and amended standards have been issued and
relevant to the Group, but are not effective for the
financial year beginning 1 January 2014 and have not
been early adopted in preparing these consolidated
financial statements

Annual Improvements Project  Annual Improvement 2010 —

2012 Cycle'

Annual Improvements Project  Annual Improvement 2011 —
2013 Cycle'

Annual Improvements Project  Annual Improvement 2012 —
2014 Cycle?

Amendments to HKFRS 11 Accounting for acquisitions of
Interest in Joint Operations?

Amendments to HKAS16 Clarification of Acceptable

and HKAS38 Methods of Depreciation and

Amortisation?

Amendments to HKAS27 Equity Method in Separate
Financial Statements?
Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets
and HKAS28 between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture?

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers?
HKFRS 9 (2014) Financial Instruments*

Effective for annual periods beginning on 1 January 2015
Effective for annual periods beginning on 1 January 2016
Effective for annual periods beginning on 1 January 2017
Effective for annual periods beginning on 1 January 2018

B ow o oN o

The Group is in the process of assessing the impact of the above
new standards and amendments to existing standards on the
Group's consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEPBRAME

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(b) Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements
of the Company and all its subsidiaries made up to 31 December
2014.

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities) over which the
Group has control. The Group controls an entity when the Group is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with
the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power
over the entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated from the
date that control ceases.

0]

HSIN CHONG CONSTRUCTION GROUP LTD. ANNUAL REPORT 2014

Business Combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method to account for
business combinations. The consideration transferred for
the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets
transferred, the liabilities incurred to the former owners of the
acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group. The
consideration transferred includes the fair value of any asset or
liability resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement.
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred. Identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed
in a business combination are measured initially at their fair
values at the acquisition date. The Group recognises any
non-controlling interest in the acquiree on an acquisition-by-
acquisition basis, either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interest’s proportionate share of the recognised amounts of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date
fair value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree over the
fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as
goodwiill. If the total of consideration transferred, non-controlling
interest recognised and previously held interest measured is less
than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired
in the case of a bargain purchase, the difference is recognised
directly in the income statement.

For purchase of subsidiaries which constitutes a purchase of
assets rather than a business combination, the assets and
liabilities acquired are accounted for in accordance with the
relevant accounting policies for the assets and liabilities rather
than the acquisition method of accounting.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains and
losses on transactions between group companies are eliminated.
Where necessary, amounts reported by subsidiaries have been
adjusted to conform to the accounting policies adopted by the
Group.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(b) Consolidation (continued)

(i)

Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries without
change of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests that do not result in a
loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions — that is,
as transactions with the owners in their capacity as owners. The
difference between fair value of any consideration paid and the
relevant share acquired of the carrying value of net assets of the
subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or losses on disposals to
non-controlling interests are also recorded in equity.

(c) Joint arrangements

Investments in joint arrangements are classified as either joint
operations or joint ventures; depending on the contractual rights and
obligations each investor has rather than the legal structure of the joint
arrangement. For the joint arrangements that specify that the parties
to the joint arrangements have rights to the assets and obligations
to the liabilities relating to the joint arrangements, they are classified
as joint operations. For the remaining joint arrangements, they are
classified as joint ventures.

(d)

Foreign currency translation

0)

(ii)

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of the
Group's entities are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates (“the
functional currency”). The consolidated financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK dollars”), which is the
Company'’s functional and the Group’s presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from
the settlement of such transactions and from the translation
at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the
consolidated income statement.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets such

as equities classified as available-for-sale are included in other
comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEPBRAME

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(d) Foreign currency translation (continued)
(iii) Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group entities (none
of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary economy)
that have a functional currency different from the presentation
currency are translated into the presentation currency as follows:

—  assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented are
translated at the closing rate at the date of that balance
sheet;

- income and expenses for each income statement are
translated at average exchange rates; and

— all resulting currency translation differences are recognised
in other comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of
a foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign
entity and translated at the closing rate. Currency translation
differences arising are recognised in other comprehensive
income.

On consolidation, currency translation differences arising from
the translation of the net investment in foreign entities, are taken
to shareholders’ equity. When a foreign operation is sold, such
exchange differences are recognised in the consolidated income
statement as part of the gain or loss on sale.

(e) Intangible assets

0]

HSIN CHONG CONSTRUCTION GROUP LTD. ANNUAL REPORT 2014

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over
the fair value of the Group's share of the net identifiable assets
of the acquired subsidiary at the date of acquisition. Goodwill
is tested annually for impairment and carried at cost less
accumulated impairment losses. Impairment losses on goodwill
are not reversed. Gains and losses on the disposal of an entity
include the carrying amount of goodwill relating to the entity
sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the purpose
of impairment testing. The allocation is made to those cash-
generating units or groups of cash-generating units that are
expected to benefit from the business combination in which the
goodwill arose identified according to operating segment.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(e) Intangible assets (continued)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Trademarks and trade names

Separately acquired trademarks and trade names are shown
at historical cost. Trademarks and trade names acquired in
a business combination are recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date.

Trademarks and trade names that have a finite useful life are
carried at cost less accumulated amortisation.

Trademarks that have indefinite useful lives are not amortised.
They are subject to impairment testing annually and whenever
there is an indication that it may be impaired.

Secured contracts

Secured contracts acquired in a business combination are
recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. The secured
contracts have a finite useful life and are carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation. Amortisation is calculated using the
straight-line method over the expected life of the contracts of 5
years.

Client relationships

Client relationships acquired in a business combination are
recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. The client
relationships have a finite useful life and are carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation. Amortisation is calculated using
the straight-line method over the expected life of the client
relationships of 9 years.
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Notes to the Con\solidated Financial Statements
A R MR

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(e) Intangible assets (continued)

()

HSIN CHONG CONSTRUCTION GROUP LTD. ANNUAL REPORT 2014

(v)

Computer software

Costs associated with maintaining computer software
programmes are recognised as an expense as incurred.
Development costs that are directly attributable to the design
and testing of identifiable and unique software products
controlled by the Group are recognised as intangible assets when
the following criteria are met:

—  Itis technically feasible to complete the software product
so that it will be available for use;

—  Management intends to complete the software product
and to use or sell it;

—  There is an ability to use or sell the software product;

— It can be demonstrated how the software product will
generate probable future economic benefits;

—  Adequate technical, financial and other resources to
complete the development and to use or sell the software
product are available; and

- The expenditure attributable to the software product
during its development can be reliably measured.

Directly attributable costs that are capitalised as part of the
software product include the software development employee
costs and an appropriate portion of relevant overheads.

Other development expenditures that do not meet these criteria
are recognised as an expense as incurred. Development costs
previously recognised as an expense are not recognised as an
asset in a subsequent period.

Computer software development costs recognised as assets
are amortised over their estimated useful lives, which does not
exceed three years.

Investment properties

Investment property is held for long-term rental yields or for capital
appreciation or both, and is not occupied by the companies in

the Group. Land held under operating leases are accounted for as

investment properties when the rest of the definition of an investment
property is met. In such cases, the operating leases concerned are
accounted for as if they were finance leases. A property interest that
is held by a lessee under an operating lease may be classified and
accounted for as investment property if the property would otherwise
meet the definition of an investment property and the lessee uses the

fair value model for the asset recognised.

114

2 FESHRFREE®»)
() MEZE (%)

(v)

BB G

HAEE MR RN RE R EE
RiERRBERAXH R KA B EEE
il B AT E Bl N2 SR B B B R (R 2
BRARTTE TG RER AR E
=

- ERWLETERZEMERAEER
HERZRTTA:

- EEEBEAREAKEAIHEZH
TFEm

-  ARENERIHERTMFER:

- HWEEZREMHERMAELERER
BE IR AR RSB 22

- BRAEHOEM - MIEMEAMERTEK
RERERILEREMER: &

- BREMEREFRZEHARENFAX

CLESTHER

A B RSB Em— BB R B ES
PR B IR R 3R B TARATEE o))
MERRRE F R -

PIFE A LR B BN AN EELR
HMRAFX  BERR AR AFREKRA
TeEFRPHEBEAREE-

AR RBEENEMERERAT R
TRB=FZAERFHEH-

() REWE
REVEREREERRPUKIES R KA
BAEE MAIFAAEERCEMERZY

2

EREMEZHRTEROENAR  FHEE

BHOZ T ARSREDE - RUBERT
EREEROIBRABNS BB LOARR - i
ERMERETEREME 2 EMER FABRA

AR

AEEAMEEERER  AREZEBRAX

AP 2 MEEE A RN B RARREREY

-



2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

)

)

Investment properties (continued)

Investment property is measured initially at its cost, including related
transaction costs. After initial recognition, investment properties are
carried at fair value, representing open market value determined at
the end of the reporting period by independent professional qualified
valuers.

Fair value is based on active market prices, adjusted, if necessary,
for any difference in the nature, location or condition of the specific
assets. If this information is not available, the Group uses alternative
valuation methods such as recent prices in less active markets or
discounted cash flow projections.

Subsequent expenditure is recognised in the asset’s carrying amount
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated
with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are
expensed in the consolidated income statement during the financial
year in which they are incurred.

Changes in fair values are charged in the consolidated income
statement.

Property, plant and equipment

(i) Property comprises leasehold land (classified as a finance lease)
and a building held for own use and is stated at fair value less
any subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses. Revaluation is performed
with sufficient regularity by independent professional qualified
valuers. Changes arising on the revaluation are dealt with
in other comprehensive income and are accumulated in the
revaluation reserve, except that, when a deficit arises on
revaluation, it will be charged to the consolidated income
statement to the extent that it exceeds the amount held in
the reserve in respect of that same asset immediately prior to
revaluation.

Any accumulated depreciation at the date of revaluation is
eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the asset and

the net amount is restated to the revalued amount of the asset.

When a revalued asset is sold, the amount included in the
revaluation reserve is transferred to retained earnings.
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Notes to the Con§olidated Financial Statements
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(g) Property, plant and equipment (continued)

(if)

HSIN CHONG CONSTRUCTION GROUP LTD. ANNUAL REPORT 2014

All other property, plant and equipment are stated at historical
cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed in
the consolidated income statement during the financial year in
which they are incurred.

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated at rates sufficient
to write off their cost less accumulated impairment over their
estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis. The principal
annual rates are as follows:

Leasehold land classified as over the unexpired period of
finance lease the lease

Building 5%

Leasehold improvements over the unexpired period of
the lease

10%-50%

10%-50%

Plant and machinery

Furniture, fixtures and
equipment

Motor vehicles 25%-30%

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and

adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

An asset's carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the assets carrying amount is greater than
its estimated recoverable amount.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
is the difference between the net sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the relevant asset, and is recognised in the
consolidated income statement.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(h) Properties under development

0]

1)

Properties under development are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Net realisable value is estimated taking into account
the price ultimately expected to be realised, less applicable variable
selling expenses and the anticipated costs to completion.

The costs of properties under development comprises costs of land use
rights, construction costs, borrowing costs capitalised for qualifying
assets and professional fees incurred during the development period.

If a property under development becomes an investment property
under development when there is a change in use, any difference
resulting between the fair value of the property at that date and its
previous carrying amount is recognised in the income statement.

Stocks and contracting work-in-progress

Stocks are stated at the lower of the cost and net realisable value.
Net realisable value is determined on the basis of anticipated sales
proceeds less estimated selling expenses.

Contracting work-in-progress is valued at cost incurred plus an
appropriate proportion of profits after deducting progress payments
and allowances for foreseeable losses. Cost comprises direct materials,
labour and overheads expenses incurred in bringing the work-in-
progress to its present condition.

The Group presents as an asset the gross amount due from customers
for contract work for all contracts in progress for which costs incurred
plus recognised profits (less recognised losses) exceed progress billings.
Progress billings not yet paid by customers and retention are included
within trade and retention receivables. The Group presents as a liability
the gross amount due to customers for contract work for all contracts
in progress for which progress billings exceed costs incurred plus
recognised profits (less recognised losses).

Financial assets
The Group classifies its investments as available-for-sale financial
assets.

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are
either designated in this category or not classified in any of the
other categories. They are included in non-current assets unless
management intends to dispose of the investment within 12 months
of the balance sheet date.

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on
trade-date — the date on which the Group commits to purchase or
sell the asset. Financial assets are initially recognised at fair value plus
transaction costs for all financial assets not carried at fair value through
profit or loss. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to
receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired or have been
transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all risks and
rewards of ownership.
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Notes to the Con\solidated Financial Statements
A R MR

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

1)

(k)

HSIN CHONG CONSTRUCTION GROUP LTD. ANNUAL REPORT 2014

Financial assets (continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets are subsequently carried at fair value.
Changes in carrying amount are recognised in other comprehensive
income.

The fair values of quoted financial assets are based on current bid
prices. For financial assets that are not traded in an active market
(and for unlisted securities), the Group establishes fair value by using
valuation techniques. These include the use of recent arm’s length
transactions, reference to other instruments that are substantially
the same, discounted cash flow analysis, and option pricing models,
making maximum use of market inputs and relying as little as possible
on entity-specific inputs.

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is
objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets
is impaired. In the case of equity securities classified as available-
for-sale, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the
security below its cost is considered an indicator that the securities
are impaired. If any such evidence exists for available-for-sale financial
assets, the cumulative loss — measured as the difference between
the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any impairment
loss on that financial asset previously recognised in the consolidated
income statement — is removed from equity and recognised in the
consolidated income statement. Impairment losses recognised in the
consolidated income statement on equity instruments are not reversed
through the consolidated income statement.

Operating leases
Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of
ownership are retained by the lessors are classified as operating leases.

(i) The Group is the lessee
Payments made under operating leases net of any incentives
received from the lessors are charged to the consolidated income
statement on a straight-line basis over the lease periods.

(i) The Group is the lessor
When assets are leased out under an operating lease, the asset is
included in the balance sheet based on the nature of the asset.
Lease income from an operating lease is recognised over the
term of the lease on a straight-line basis.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

)

(m)

(n)

Receivables

Receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less
provision for impairment. A provision for impairment of receivables is
established when there is objective evidence that the Group will not
be able to collect all amounts due according to the original terms of
receivables. Significant financial difficulties of the debtor, probability
that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or financial reorganisation, and
default or delinquency in payments are considered indicators that the
receivable is impaired. The amount of the provision is the difference
between the asset's carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows, discounted at the effective interest rate.
The amount of the provision is recognised in the consolidated income
statement. When a receivable is uncollectible, it is written off against
the allowance account for receivables. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off are credited to the consolidated income
statement.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand, deposits held at call
with banks, other short-term highly liquid investments with original
maturity of three months or less from the date of investment, and
bank overdrafts.

Impairment of investments in subsidiaries, and
non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life, for example goodwill, are
not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for impairment.
Assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by
which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs
to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment,
assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately
identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets
other than goodwill that suffered impairment are reviewed and
considered for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting
date.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is required upon
receiving dividends from these investments if the dividend exceeds
the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period the
dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of the investment in
the separate financial statements exceeds the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements of the investee’s net assets including
goodwill.

119

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

WT\III /ﬁﬁﬁzﬁfﬁ&%l}ﬁuf

2 FEEHBREE 8
() FER#
FEMBR RN BRIZ N S (ERER ELAR AR BR A

(m)

(n)

EIRE R AR AR A E - BURRRZ
BERBNHRTBEBRRANKEELIRE
W% X2 RBGEFKE A SRR B

BEEAZ MR A A ge R A =X
%%i@&ﬁﬂ%%%iﬁkﬁﬁf@%ﬁ%
WERELRRE BESEAEEREER
At RRRERERE RERFEAHRAE
ZER  BESENRAEWERAER - B8
JE YRR AR 2R A N AT MR ] - L BRE A T U AR
FIB M - BRI D B M 8H 2 e W BR R 4
BRERTAERL -

BeRFARLEEH
RehZRHRELEAEEFRE RITAM
T HMRBM B R bR E AR =EA
FUTZEHRRBMEIREARRITES

HEBLEIRFHEEEREZHE

REMEERERZEE (PIMHE)EFE
O EEFAETRENA-SREENRESR
%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁi\ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂ%ﬁ%%@

5 ASLBERTTIRE R EEIRIREE ZRE
@iﬁﬁTW@%%Z%%ﬁ%KTW@ﬁﬁ
NEBEZ AR EHREEXASEREERE
ZRABRERE -BERADHABNRERE
(ReELEMN) 2&EBRAEIENBETR
BEFHE  REEI BERTRE EMFEET

BEHRE B ERBER S ATARRETR K
ERE-

BREMBARIRE 2SR - MRS EBHS
REEREEIRME 2 2 W A5 s
BRBHRDZBRERAEBLRIRENEE
FENGARMBHmE P ZRHE (RERE)
Al BS A RREETRERR -



Notes to the Con\solidated Financial Statements
A R MR

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(o)

(p)

Q)

HSIN CHONG CONSTRUCTION GROUP LTD. ANNUAL REPORT 2014

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs
incurred. Borrowings are subsequently stated at amortised cost; any
difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the
redemption value is recognised in the consolidated income statement
over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an
unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12
months after the balance sheet date.

Trade payable
Trade payable are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Current and deferred tax
The tax expense for the year comprises current and deferred tax.

The current tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws
enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date in the
countries where the Company and its subsidiaries and joint operations
operate and generate taxable income. Management periodically
evaluate positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations
in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation and
establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts
expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on
temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements.
However, the deferred tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither
accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred tax is determined using
tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the balance sheet date and are expected to apply when the related
deferred tax asset is realised or the deferred taxation liability is settled.

Tax is recognised in the income statement, except to the extent that it
relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity. In this case the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that future taxable profit will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences arising on
investments in subsidiaries and joint operations, except where the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled
and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(q) Current and deferred tax (continued)

()

s)

®

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when the deferred taxes assets and liabilities relate to
taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the taxable entity
or different taxable entities where there is an intention to settle the
balances on a net basis.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and the
amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for
future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an
outflow will be required in settlement is determined by considering the
class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the
likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the
same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision
due to passage of time is recognised as interest expense.

Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past
events and whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence
or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly
within the control of the Group. It can also be a present obligation
arising from past events that is not recognised because it is not
probable that outflow of economic resources will be required or the
amount of obligation cannot be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in the notes
to the financial statements. When a change in the probability of an
outflow occurs so that outflow is probable, it will then be recognised
as a provision.

Employee benefits

(i) Retirement benefits
The Group participates in mandatory provident fund schemes
in Hong Kong which are defined contribution plan generally
funded through payments to trustee-administered funds. The
assets of the scheme are held separately from those of the
Group in independently administered funds.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEPBRAME

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(t) Employee benefits (continued)

0]

(i)

(iii)

HSIN CHONG CONSTRUCTION GROUP LTD. ANNUAL REPORT 2014

Retirement benefits (continued)

Pursuant to the relevant regulations of the government in the
People’s Republic of China (“PRC"), the subsidiaries in the PRC
participate in the municipal government contribution scheme
whereby the subsidiaries are required to contribute to the
scheme for the retirement benefit of eligible employees. The
municipal government of the PRC is responsible for the entire
benefit obligations payable to the retired employees. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to the scheme is to pay
the ongoing contributions required by the scheme. The Group's
contributions to the scheme are expensed as incurred.

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service leave
are recognised when they accrue to employees. A provision is
made for the estimated liability for annual leave as a result of
services rendered by employees up to the balance sheet date. It
is the Group’s policy to forfeit any untaken annual leave within
a specific time period. Subject to regular assessment of staff
turnover rate, a provision will be made or reversed. Employee
entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are not recognised
until the time of leave.

Share-based compensation

The Group operates two equity-settled, share-based
compensation plans, under which the entity receives services
from employees as consideration for equity instruments (options)
of the Group. The fair value of the employee services received
in exchange for the grant of the options is recognised as an
expense. The total amount to be expensed is determined by
reference to the fair value of the options granted, excluding
the impact of any non-market service and performance vesting
conditions (for example, profitability, sales growth targets
and remaining an employee of the entity over a specified
time period). Non-market vesting conditions are included in
assumptions about the number of options that are expected to
vest. The total amount expensed is recognised over the vesting
period, which is the period over which all of the specified vesting
conditions are to be satisfied. At each balance sheet date, the
Company revises its estimates of the number of options that are
expected to vest based on the non-marketing vesting conditions.
It recognises the impact of the revision of original estimates, if
any, in the consolidated income statement with a corresponding
adjustment to equity.

When the options are exercised, the Company issues new
shares and the proceeds received net of any directly attributable
transaction costs are credited to share capital (nominal value) and
share premium.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(t) Employee benefits (continued)

(u)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment is
terminated by the Group before the normal retirement date,
or whenever an employee accepts voluntary redundancy in
exchange for these benefits. The Group recognises termination
benefits when it is demonstrably committed to a termination
when the entity has a detailed formal plan to terminate the
employment of current employees without possibility of
withdrawal. In the case of an offer made to encourage voluntary
redundancy, the termination benefits are measured based on
the number of employees expected to accept the offer. Benefits
falling due more than 12 months after the end of the reporting
period are discounted to their present value.

Long service payment liabilities

The Group's net obligation in respect of long service accounts
payable on cessation of employment in certain circumstances
under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance is the amount
of future benefit that employees have earned in return for
their services in the current and prior periods. That benefit is
discounted to determine the present value and reduced by
entitlements accrued under the Group's retirement plans. The
obligation is calculated using the projected unit credit method
by a qualified actuary. Actuarial gains or losses were recognised
immediately in current financial year.

Bonus plans
Provisions for bonus are recognised when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of services
rendered by employees and a reliable estimate of the obligation
can be made.

Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of those
assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEPBRAME

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued) 2 FEHFBIREBE 9)
(v) Revenue recognition v) WREZ

HSIN CHONG CONSTRUCTION GROUP LTD. ANNUAL REPORT 2014

Contract costs are recognised when incurred. When the outcome
of a construction contract cannot be estimated reliably, contract
revenue is recognised only to the extent of contract costs incurred
that are likely to be recoverable. When the outcome of a construction
contract can be estimated reliably and it is probable that the contract
will be profitable, contract revenue is recognised over the period of
the contract. When it is probable that total contract costs will exceed
total contract revenue, the expected loss is recognised as an expense
immediately.

Variations in contract work, claims and incentive payments are
included in contract revenue to the extent that they have been agreed
with the customer and are capable of being reliably measured.

Revenue from contracting work is recognised based on the stage
of completion of the contracts, provided that the stage of contract
completion and the gross billing value of contracting work can be
measured reliably. The stage of completion of a contract is established
by reference to the gross billing value of contracting work to date as
compared to the total contract sum receivable under the contracts.

Income from sale of stock of property is recognised when the risks
and rewards of properties are transferred to the purchasers, which is
when the construction of relevant properties has been completed and
the properties have been delivered to the purchasers and collectibility
of related receivables is reasonably assured. Deposits and instalments
received on properties sold prior to the date of revenue recognition
are included in the consolidated balance sheet as advanced proceeds
received from customers under current liabilities.

Operating lease rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis
over the term of the lease.

Property and facility management fees are recognised when the
services are rendered in accordance with the terms of agreements.
There are two types of property and facility management agreements,
namely management remuneration contracts (“MR Contracts”)
and lump sum contracts (“LS Contracts”). Under a MR Contract,
the Group is remunerated based on a fixed percentage of the costs
involved in the management of the property or facility as management
remuneration and only such fee is recognised as revenue for the
Group. Under a LS Contract, the Group is paid a lump sum fee which
normally covers the costs involved in the management of the property
or facility, thus the whole of the lump sum fee is recognised as revenue
for the Group.

Revenue from provision of other supporting services for the
management of the property or facility is recognised when the services
are rendered.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

wv)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Plant and plant staff hire income, secondment fee income, consultancy
fee income, services centre charges, building management fee and
copying service income are recognised when the services are rendered.

Interest income on bank deposits is recognised on a time proportion
basis, taking into account the principal amounts outstanding and the
interest rates applicable.

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is
established.

(w) Segment reporting

x)

v

)

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the
internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker. The
chief operating decision-maker is responsible for allocating resources
and assessing performance of the operating segments and making
strategic decisions.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are contracts that require the issuer
(i.e. the guarantor) to make specified payments to reimburse the
beneficial holder of the guarantee (i.e. the holder) for a loss the holder
incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when due in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

The Group does not recognise liabilities for financial guarantees at
inception, but performs a liability adequacy test at each reporting date
by comparing its carrying amount of the net liability from the financial
guarantee with its present legal or constructive obligation amount. If
the carrying amount of the net liability is less than its present legal or
constructive obligation amount, the entire difference is recognised in
the consolidated income statement immediately.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company'’s equity holders is recognised as
a liability in the financial statements in the year in which the dividend is
approved by the Company’s shareholders.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly
attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity
as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.
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Notes to the Con\solidated Financial Statements
A R MR

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued) 2 FEHFBIREBE 9)
(aa) Convertible bonds, coupon bonds and warrants (aa) TRRIES REEFRERES

HSIN CHONG CONSTRUCTION GROUP LTD. ANNUAL REPORT 2014

Convertible bonds that can be converted to share capital at the option
of the holders, where the conversion price is at a stipulated price that
will be adjusted, subject to terms and formulae provided for in the
agreement of the convertible bonds, to adjust for the dilutive effects
of share split or consolidation, capital distribution, capitalisation of
profit or reserves, issuance of new shares or share options or warrants,
and etc, are accounted for as compound financial instruments which
contain both a liability component and an equity component.

The liability component of convertible bonds is recognised initially
at the fair value of a similar liability that does not have an equity
conversion option. The equity component is recognised initially at the
difference between the fair value of the convertible bonds as a whole
and the fair value of the liability component.

Coupon bonds with detachable share purchase warrants are
accounted for separately as debt instruments and equity instruments
respectively, and are recognised initially at fair value.

Any directly attributable transaction costs of issuing convertible bonds
and coupon bonds with detachable share purchase warrants are
allocated to the liability and equity components in proportion to their
initial carrying amounts.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the liability component of convertible
bonds and the coupon bonds are measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method. The equity component of convertible
bonds and the warrants are not re-measured subsequent to initial
recognition.

If the bonds are converted, the convertible bonds equity reserve,
together with the carrying amounts of the liability and derivative
components at the time of conversion, is transferred to share capital
and share premium as consideration for the shares issued. If the bonds
are redeemed, the convertible bonds equity reserve is released directly
to retained profits, and any difference between the amount paid
relating to the liability component and the fair value of the liability and
derivative components is recognised in profit or loss.
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3 Financial risk management
(a) Financial risk factors
The Group’s overall risk management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential
adverse effects on the Group's financial performance.

(i) Market risk

(1

&)

3)

Foreign exchange risk

Foreign exchange risk exposure arising from the Group's
operation in Macau and the Chinese Mainland are
monitored by proper synchronisation of receipts and
payments in different operating currencies, hedging of risk
is not considered because of insignificant exposure to the
Group’s working capital. The Group has no outstanding
forward exchange contract as at 31 December 2013 and
2014, but will consider hedging the foreign currency
exposure by using forward exchange contracts if needed.

As at 31 December 2014, if RMB had strengthened/
weakened by 5% (2013: 5%) against Hong Kong dollars
with all other variables held constant, the Group's profit for
the year would have been approximately HK$1.1 million
(lower)/higher (2013: HK$9.9 million higher/(lower)),
mainly as a result of net foreign exchange (losses)/gains
on translation of foreign currency denominated trade and
other receivables, deposit, cash and bank balances and
trade and other payables.

Interest rate risk

Financial instruments at fixed and variable rates expose
the Group to fair value interest rate risk and cash flow
interest rate risk respectively. The Group's interest-rate risk
arises mainly from bank borrowings. Borrowings issued at
variable rates expose the Group to cash flow interest rate
risk due to fluctuation of HIBOR arising from the Group's
Hong Kong dollar denominated borrowings.

At 31 December 2014, if interest rates on bank
borrowings had been 50 basis points (2013: 50 basis
points) higher or lower with all other variables held
constant, the Group's profit for the year would have
decreased/increased by approximately HK$8.9 million
(2013: HK$4.4 million) as a result of higher or lower
interest expenses on floating rate bank borrowings.

Price risk

The Group is exposed to equity securities price risk through
financial asset held by the Group classified as available-
for-sale financial asset. The Group considers the price risk
exposure is not material.
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Financial risk management (continued)
(a) Financial risk factors (continued)

(i)

(iii)

Credit risk

Credit risk of the Group mainly arises from deposits, cash and
bank balances and receivables. The Group has no significant
concentration of credit risk.

The credit risk associated with deposits and cash and bank
balances is limited because the counterparties are banks with
high credit rating.

Before entering into construction contracts, assessment on the
potential customers is carried out as part of the acceptance
procedures for the new contracts.

To manage the credit risk associated with receivables, the Group
adopts risk control to assess the credit quality of the customers
and debtors, taking into account of their financial position, past
experience and other factors. Aging analysis is performed and
reviewed regularly by management of each operating segment
and follow up action will be taken, as appropriate.

Liquidity risk

The Group adopts prudent liquidity risk management which
includes maintaining sufficient bank balances and cash, and
having available funding through an adequate amount of
committed credit facilities.

Cash flow forecast is performed in the operating segments
of the Group and aggregated by corporate finance team.
Corporate finance team monitors forecasts of the Group’s
liquidity requirements to ensure it has sufficient cash to meet
operational needs.

The table below analyses the Group's and the Company’s
financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the
remaining period at the balance sheet date to the contractual
maturity date. For bank loans containing a repayment on
demand clause, after taking into account the Group’s financial
position, the Directors do not consider that the bank will exercise
its discretion to demand immediate repayment, and believe that
the bank loans will be repaid in accordance with the scheduled
repayment dates set out in note 28. The amounts disclosed in
the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows, including
interest payment.

However, for bank loans containing a repayment on
demand clause, if the lenders were to invoke their
unconditional rights to call the loans with immediate effect,
the Group’s and the Company’'s bank loans amounting
approximately HK$620,255,000 (2013: HK$644,344,000)
and HK$256,814,000 (2013: HK$360,454,000) will be
on demand for repayment immediately, excluding interest
payments.
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3 Financial risk management (continued) 3
(a) Financial risk factors (continued)
(iii) Liquidity risk (continued)

The Group
.3 |
Less than Between Between
1year 1and2years 2andS5 years Total
DPR—F —E£EME MEERE ot ]
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BRETT
At 31 December 2014  #2014%12B31H
Bank loans IRITER
— short term revolving —REEIRRITER 1,438,182 - - 1,438,182
— with repayment on —BERENREER
demand clause X2 SRITE R 356,193 144,021 145,094 645,308
— without repaymenton  — KRB EIRBENKEE
demand clause B2 IRITE R 190,675 595,530 749,198 1,535,403
Notes =g 164,063 - - 164,063
Payables and accruals FETBR R R FEET & A 2,881,112 269,624 305,172 3,455,908
Amounts due to other  JEff L E4E &
partners of joint HAb R
operations FRIE 10,750 - - 10,750
Total AR5t 5,040,975 1,009,175 1,199,464 7,249,614
At 31 December 2013  7#2013%12A31H
Bank loans RITER
— short term revolving — R EERRITER 936,138 = = 936,138
— with repayment on —BERENRER
demand clause B ZRITER 201,418 323,386 166,615 691,419
—without repaymenton  — KB ERENKEE
demand clause 2 SRITER 63,019 108,218 969,798 1,141,035
Payables and accruals FEBRR R FEST & A 2,900,683 92,061 185,466 3,178,210
Amounts due to other  FEff HE4L &
partners of joint Hh %t
operations RIE - 17,937 - 17,937
Total Rt 4,101,258 541,602 1,321,879 5,964,739
129 2014FH HELEEBEARD
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3 Financial risk management (continued) 3
(a) Financial risk factors (continued)
(iii) Liquidity risk (continued)

The Company

P /N
Less than Between Between
1year 1and2years 2andS5 years Total
DPR—EF —E£ER/E MEERFE k]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT BETT BETT
At 31 December 2014  12014%£12831H
Bank loans RITER
— short term revolving —RHEERRITER 525,283 - - 525,283
— with repayment on —BERENRER
demand clause &2 SRITER 211,268 50,812 - 262,080
Notes e 164,063 - - 164,063
Payables and accruals FETBR R R FEET & A 19,202 - - 19,202
Amounts due to FE < Bft B A B
subsidiaries FE] 1,317,639 - - 1,317,639
Loan from RE—EKHBARZ
a subsidiary B 84,579 187,121 197,895 469,595
Total FES 2,322,034 237,933 197,895 2,757,862
At 31 December 2013 7201312 A831H
Bank loans RITER
— short term revolving —RHEERRITER 375,613 = = 375,613
— with repayment on —BEREKEER
demand clause &2 SRITE R 111,031 212,088 51,485 374,604
Payables and accruals FESER AR R FEET & A 13,065 = = 13,065
Amounts due to FE BT B A 7]
subsidiaries RIE 328,984 - - 328,984
Loan from RE—fEKBARZ
a subsidiary B3 = 122,736 = 122,736
Total FEE 828,693 334,824 51,485 1,215,002
HSIN CHONG CONSTRUCTION GROUP LTD. ANNUAL REPORT 2014 130



3 Financial risk management (continued)
(b) Capital risk management

()

In managing capital, the Group’s objectives are to safeguard its ability
to continue operation as a going concern and to maintain an optimal
capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. In order to maintain
or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of
dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue
new shares or sell assets to reduce debts.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of total debt-to-tangible-net-
assets ratio. Total debt is defined as bank loans and interest-bearing
notes. Tangible net assets include total net assets of the Group and
exclude goodwill and intangible assets. The ratio is 79.3% at 31
December 2014 (2013: 61.5%). As a result of long-term funding
raising activity to cope with rapid expansion of property development
in the Chinese Mainland, the Group has a net debt position of HK$2.7
billion as at 31 December 2014 (2013: net asset HK$1.6 billion). Net
debt position is the sum of deposits, cash and equivalents less bank
loans and interest-bearing notes.

Fair value estimation

HKFRS 7 ‘Financial Instruments — Disclosures’ requires disclosure of fair
value measurements by level of the following fair value measurement
hierarchy:

- quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets
or liabilities (level 1).

—  inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that
are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (that is, as
prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2).

—  inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable
market data (that is, unobservable inputs) (level 3).

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is based
on quoted market prices at the balance sheet date. These instruments
are included in level 1. As at 31 December 2014 and 2013, the Group
did not have financial instruments under this category.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active
market (for example, over-the-counter derivatives) is determined by
using valuation techniques. These valuation techniques maximise the
use of observable market data where it is available and rely as little as
possible on entity specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to
fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in
level 2. As at 31 December 2014 and 2013, the Group did not have
financial instruments under this category.
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3 Financial risk management (continued) 3 MBERREE®
(c) Fair value estimation (continued) () KAAREMGEF (E)

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable
market data, the instrument is included in level 3. As at 31 December
2014 and 2013, the Group had available-for-sale financial asset under
this category.

There was no transfer of financial instruments between level 1, 2 and
3 during the year.

Movement of financial asset under level 3 measurements is as follows:

N—IBsk ZIHE K AW FEREATEHRM S
g AZem T A AE=[E-R2014F K&
201312 4318 AEB B H| AL IER| 2 7] 4
HEZHBEE-

RAFE YEREBTARE -
—EZEETE R

Bl
i
[l
i
XA
W

BE-—RBENPBEEZSHNT

2014 2013

HK$'000 HK$'000

BETT BT

At 1 January R1A18 10,190 9,831

Additions NE - 359

Fair value gain NI ERE 17,608 =

At 31 December M12H31H 27,798 10,190

4 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions 4 EXEEMEREE

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The REEHRREL G REBR - ERER  FIGEHZ
resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related AT ELHBECERERIER -HEEREA

EREEAEAFE 2 Mt RERRE T Xami :

actual results. The estimates and assumptions having a significant effect on
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities are discussed below:

(a) EHESH
AEERBTHEE BRURNPHRILEZMES
B G - BRE2013F WEEE 2 F15 B2
BFE36 ©

(a) Business combination
The Group acquired subsidiaries which hold a property in Beijing, the
PRC. Please refer to Note 36 for details of the acquisition in 2013.

REBEREBETEMERELEAFHEBEEE

The Group assessed the acquisition in accordance with HKFRS and

concluded that the acquisition constitutes a business combination. WREZWERIBREBRE I - Rt REWE
To account for the assets and liabilities acquired, significant judgment EENBE REFERBEEREREAE

was required in determining the fair value of the assets acquired and AN ERBEELEARHE-
liabilities assumed.

ERMERENE FERDAEAEMESE
it RIRR 2515 0 BI2BIM aE4() ©

For details of the respective estimates and assumptions being made
for the investment properties, inventory and liabilities assumed, please
refer to note 4(f) respectively.
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4 (Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(continued)

(b) Fair value measurement of convertible bonds, bonds,

warrants and notes

On initial recognition and redemption, the fair values of convertible
bonds that are not traded in an active market is determined by using
valuation techniques. The Group uses its judgement to select methods
and make assumptions, including those based on market conditions
on valuation date for valuation. The assessment of the fair value of the
bonds and the liability component of the convertible bonds involved
key management assumptions, among other things, the expected

volatility, dividend yield, etc.

(c) Construction contracts

As explained in note 2(v), revenue recognition on a project is
dependent on management’s estimation of the total outcome of the
construction contract, as well as the work done to date. The Group
reviews and revises the estimates of contract revenue, contract costs,
variation orders and contract claims prepared for each construction
contract as the contract progresses. Budgeted construction income
is determined in accordance with the terms set out in the relevant
contracts. Budgeted construction costs are prepared by the
management on the basis of quotations from time to time provided
by the major contractors, suppliers or vendors involved and the
experience of the management. In order to keep the budget accurate
and up-to-date, the management conducts periodic reviews of the
management budgets by comparing the budgeted amounts to the

actual amounts incurred.

A considerable amount of judgement is required in estimating
the total contract revenue, contract costs, variation orders and
contract claims which may have an impact in terms of percentage of

completion and job profit taken.

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had an arbitration claim of
approximately RMB205 million against a subcontractor in the PRC (the
“PRC Subcontractor”) in respect of disputes between the Group and
the PRC Subcontractor in a building construction contract in the PRC.
The PRC Subcontractor raised a counterclaim against the Group in the
sum of approximately RMB221 million. The case is under examination
by the arbitrator and the directors are of the view that no provision is
required as at 31 December 2014. The determination of the provision

involved significant management estimation.

(d) Allowances for bad and doubtful debts

The allowances for bad and doubtful debts of the Group are based
on the evaluation of collectability and aging analysis of account
receivables and on management’s judgement. A considerable amount
of judgement is required in assessing the ultimate realisation of these
receivables, including the creditworthiness and the past collection

history of each customer.
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4 (Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

(continued)
(e) Impairment of assets

()

HSIN CHONG CONSTRUCTION GROUP LTD. ANNUAL REPORT 2014

The Group tests annually whether goodwill and trademark have
suffered any impairment in accordance with the accounting policy
stated in note 2(e). The recoverable amounts of goodwill and
trademark are the higher of the assets’ fair values less costs to sell and
value in use.

A considerable amount of judgement and assumptions are required
in estimating the recoverable amount of goodwill and trademark,
including growth rate, gross margin and weighted average discount
rate applied to the discounted cashflows.

The Group also assesses annually for an intangible asset that is not
being amortised, to determine whether events and circumstances
continue to support an indefinite useful life assessment for that asset.
For the trademarks held by the Group, management carries out the
assessment by performing an analysis of all of the relevant factors,
including the ability to hold and use the trademarks and the market
environment of relevant industry, to consider whether there is no
foreseeable limit to the period over which the asset is expected to
generate net cash inflows for the Group.

Other assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the assets
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amounts of cash-
generating units have been determined based on the higher of fair
value less cost to sell or value-in-use calculations. These value-in-use
calculations require the use of estimates.

No impairment was made during the year.

Estimate of fair value of properties

The valuation of properties is performed in accordance with the ‘The
HKIS Valuation Standards (2012 Edition)" published by the Hong Kong
Institute of Surveyors.

Details of the judgement and assumptions have been disclosed in
note 15 and note 16.

The valuation is reviewed annually by qualified surveyors by
considering the information from a variety of sources including:

(i) current prices in an active market for properties of different
nature, condition or location, adjusted to reflect those
differences;

(i) recent prices of similar properties in less active markets, with

adjustments to reflect any changes in economic conditions since
the date of the transactions that occurred at those prices; and
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4 (Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(continued)

)

)

(h)

Estimate of fair value of properties (continued)

(i) rental income derived from the terms of any existing lease and
other contracts, and (where possible) from external evidence
such as current market rents for similar properties in the same
location and condition, and using capitalisation rates that reflect
current market assessments of the uncertainty in the amount
and timing of the rental income.

If information on current or recent prices of properties is not available,
the fair values of properties are mainly determined using income
capitalisation valuation techniques.

The Group uses assumptions that are mainly based on market
conditions existing at balance sheet date.

The principal assumptions underlying management’s estimation of fair
value are those related to: the receipt of contractual rentals; expected
future market rentals; void periods; maintenance requirements; and
appropriate discount rates. These valuations are regularly compared
to actual market yield data, and actual transactions by the Group and
those reported by the market.

The expected future market rentals are determined on the basis of
current market rentals for similar properties in the same location and
condition.

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in Hong Kong, Macau and the
PRC. Significant judgement is required in determining the provision for
PRC income taxes. There are a number of transactions and calculations
for which ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary
course of business. The Group recognises liabilities for potential tax
exposures based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be
due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from
the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will affect
the income tax and deferred tax provision in the period in which such
determination is made.

PRC land appreciation taxes

The Group is subject to land appreciation taxes in the PRC. However,
the implementation and settlement of these taxes varies among
various tax jurisdictions in cities of the PRC, and the Group has not
finalised its land appreciation taxes calculation and payments with any
local tax authorities in the PRC. Accordingly, significant judgement
is required in determining the amount of the land appreciation
taxes. The Group recognised these land appreciation taxes based on
management’s best estimates according to the interpretation of the
tax rules. The final tax outcome could be different from the amounts
that were initially recorded, and these differences will impact the
income tax expense and tax provisions in the periods in which such
taxes have been finalised with local tax authorities.
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5 Segment information 5
(a) Operating segments
Revenue comprises gross billing value of contracting work to third
parties, property and facility management services income, sales
proceeds from stocks of properties, rental income from stocks of
properties and investment properties and rental related income.

In accordance with the Group’s internal financial reporting provided
to the chief operating decision-maker, identified as the Executive
Committee, who are responsible for allocating resources, assessing
performance of the operating segments and making strategic
decisions, the reportable operating segments are (1) building
construction; (2) civil engineering; (3) interiors & special projects;
(4) electrical and mechanical engineering; (5) property and facility
management services; and (6) property development and investment.

REBAEERRTEZ2ERKE (MRITE
Sg HEBAESRER FEEESBRRRR
TEHRRIDRE ) 2 WA BIE R ATEH
ZEENRRNETREE QLATE: QF
MR RAFIRIEE  GRETLR: R RR
MEE R IR ARG R RIRE
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Property Property
Building Civil Interiors & Electrical and and facility ~ development and Corporate
construction engineering  special projects mechanical management investment (Note 1) Total
ENRHR WER i’

BFRE TFIB HAAEE #EIR BHEE WRBRRAR (M1 1]

HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000

BUTT EUTR EWTT BWTT BUTT EWTT BRTT BUTT
Year ended 31 December 2014 HEWUENANEILER
Revenue (excl. NSC (Note 2) Wt (FEENSC (Kii2) ) 4,550453 1,820,546 1,007,487 689,767 848,049 122,085 - 9,038,387
Gross profit ) 290,086 96,988 69,428 52,876 100,793 2,121 - 632,898
Other income/{expenses) Hi A/ (BI%) 236 3,627 2,990 0] 1,384 466 (185) 8,516
Net exchange gain/{loss) EREH/ (F8) 38 214 - (40) 340 (63) 12 (2,489) (2,026)
Seling and marketing expenses HERTREER L - - - - - (#1,890) - (41,890)
General and administrative expenses —RITERR (74107) (47,140) (29,181) (28311) (77,816) (51,593) (85,614) (393,762)
Fair value gain on investment properties BEMELAERE - - - - 530 403,161 = 403,691
Operating profitoss) &t/ (58) 216429 53475 43197 24,903 24,828 332883 (88,288) 607,427
Amortisation of intangible assets BVAEEH (396) (150) (165) (121) (7,896) - (3,041) (12.269)
Interest income HMEKA - - - - 67 534 769 1370
Interest expenses FlERAX - - - - (1,521) (33,358) (8,157) (43,036)
Profit/oss) before taxation BBALET/ (58) 215,533 53,325 43,032 2,782 15478 300,059 (98,717) 553,492
Taxation A (150,617)
Profit for the year RERFRR 402,875
Capital expenditure ARMRY (21.29) (516) (480) (421) (3473) (6,870) (9,266) (42,313)
Depreciation g (12,452) (366) (615) (201) (5,232) (42,317) (3,442) (64,625)
As at 31 December 2014 120145124318
Deposits, cash and cash equivalents BN RERERRLEE - - - - 91,224 91,59 711,848 894,668
Bank loans BITER = = = = (247,000) (1,651,161) (1,537,637) (3,435,798)
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Segment information (continued) 5 S¥EH @
(a) Operating segments (continued) (@) BER#HE)
Property Property
Building Civil Interiors & Electrical and and facility ~ development and Corporate
construction engineering  special projects mechanical management investment (Note 1) Total
ERRHR MER i’
BFEE TRIE WHEE #EIR BEEE WXBRRRAR (MEE1) &9
HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
EWTT BT ERTT EWTT BRTT ERTT ERTT BB
Year ended 31 December 2013 BENBENANALEE
Revenue (excl. NSC (Note 2)) Wz (TENSC (Hii2) ) 5201633 1,835,324 694,243 575452 791,439 49,693 - 9,147,789
Gross profit B2 236,904 90,374 55,177 39524 117335 37420 - 576,734
Other income 1ON 1959 1380 113 - 3092 94,215 770 101,529
Net exchange gainloss) B/ (58) 38 24 - - @ (195) (70) 3295 320
Seling and marketing expenses HERTHEERS - - - - - (40,406) - 40,406)
General and administrative expenses —RABRZ (70,166) (30,613) (19412) (22,265) (98,941) (46,263) (78,888) (366,548)
Fair value gain/(oss) on RENENENE/
investment properties (&8) - - - - 80 (17,700) - (17,620)
Operating profit/oss) AR/ (BB) 168,941 61,141 35,878 17,257 131 27,19 (74.823) 256,961
Amortisation of intangible assets EVRERS (421) (103) (84) (52) (11,977) - (1,359) (14,002)
Interest income FlBMA - - - - 8 460 6,361 6,869
Interest expenses FlSF% = = = = (1,737) (10,475) (12,074) (24,286)
Profi/oss) before taxation BataEs/ (58 168514 61,038 35,794 17,205 7,705 17,181 (81,895) 22554
Taxation HE (32,127)
Profit for the year REERT 193415
Capital expenditure BAMER (15,988) (61) (264) (35 (5379) (19,945) (423) 45,904)
Depreciation ik (7,892) (151) (1,164) (303) (6,069) (24,840) (3,214) (43633)
Wite back of impairment on RHENEFE
unsold stocks of properties AR - - - - - 2393 - 2393
As at 31 December 2013 20135128318
Deposits, cash and cash equivalents R RERESER - - - - 75,447 2239 827,935 925,780
Bank loans ROER - - - - (276,000) (1,435,186) (809,766) (2,520,952)
Notes: B2k -
1. Corporate mainly represents corporate and administrative activities, and shared 1. TBFEARARRITEORE) A RLZRE -
services.
2. Nominated subcontractors’ works of Macau Galaxy Resort Phase 2 project 2. CEMSRITIRERNEHEEMEE AR
("NSC"). T2 (INSC]) -
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RAEMKBRME
5 Segment information (continued) 5 S¥FEHE
(b) Geographical analysis (b) HESHT
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT ks A
Revenue Wz

Hong Kong BB 7,321,105 7,194,311
Macau JRFT 6,466,259 3,462,059
PRC R 223,141 843,609
Others A, - 6,000
14,010,505 11,505,979
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$'000
BBETT ok S

Non-current assets EMBEE
Hong Kong BB 686,786 591,225
Macau JBFY 538 845
PRC R 2,827,473 1,554,702
3,514,797 2,146,772
Available-for-sale financial asset AIHHE CMEEE 27,798 10,190
Deferred tax assets BEFRIAEE 15,632 11,859
Total non-current assets JEmB) & E AR 3,558,227 2,168,821

(c) Customer base analysis © EFEREDIT

The Group's customer base is diversified and includes two (2013: REBE 2 EPER B MEFMAE (201345
one) customers with transactions exceeded 10% of the Group's total —EB)BEP IR ZEEANEE B E10% A
revenue. Aggregate revenue from those customers amounted to FREEPZHRKREBFRES L RBY
HK$7,414.9 million and was derived from building construction (2013: 7,414,900,0007T (20134 : 7 #3,007,500,000
HK$3,007.5 million from building construction). TLRBEFREE) °

(d) Reconciliation of reportable segment revenue (d) BFEFRBWKBSEHE
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT ST IT
Reportable segment revenue AT E2mH B 9,038,387 9,147,789
Revenue — NSC U 2% —NSC 4,972,118 2,358,190
Revenue U 25 14,010,505 11,505,979
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MEMBRRWME
6 Other income and other gains, net 6 HUWARRMIGRSHE
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
BRTT BT
Write back of provision for impairment REEMEFERE
on unsold stocks of properties P {5 [0 7% - 2,393
Net (loss)/gain on disposal of property, HEYE BB RZEZ
plant and equipment (E18) M58 (674) 1,773
Gain on disposal of investment properties HEREME 2 W= 453 =
Loss on trade receivables written off B 5 FE W AR 5 8 2 1618 (2,537) =
Secondment fee EEBHRAREE 3,474 848
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary & — IR A B2 Was - 864
Miscellaneous Hit 7,800 3,667
8,516 9,545
7 Interest expenses 7 FBRRAX
2014 2013
HK$°000 HK$'000
BRI SR IT
Interest on bank loans and overdraft RITERRBEZ 2FIE 107,591 46,809
Interest expense on 4% coupon bonds 4% R BEF 2 HERZ - 15,261
Interest expense on convertible bonds AR ES 2 F B - 26,259
Interest expense on notes FBRNERx 24,939 -
132,530 88,329
Less: amounts capitalised on qualifying assets ~ J§i : A B EEE A 2 5KIE (89,494) (64,043)
43,036 24,286
The annual interest rates of bank loans are ranged from 1.6% to 8.2% RITERZFEFNENT1.6%E82% (2013F : M F
(2013: from 1.6% to 8.2%), of which the capitalised interest rates are 1.6%%E82% ) AR BRI ENF1.6%%E82%
ranged from 1.6% to 8.2% (2013: from 3.0% to 7.4%). The imputed (20135F : N F3.0%E7.4% ) < &5+ RS I 10 B0 E
effective capitalised interest rate of securities issued after taking into account BERZXGEAE BETESNHEERERLE
of the valuation of equity portion and transaction costs is 19.7% per annum FIER19.7% (20135 : 1 F6.5%%E21.1% ) °

(2013: from 6.5% t0 21.1%).
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FEPBRAME

8 Profit before taxation 8 FRMREAF
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT
Cost of sales HERF
Cost of construction BIEAAR
— Staff costs —B I~ 1,173,463 923,153
— Other construction costs —H fth 3 ER AR 11,357,530 9,319,716
e B 102428607
Cost of property and facility % K 7R ite B TR AR T A AN
management services
— Staff costs —BIpA 508,813 480,800
— Others —HAth 238,443 193,304
C e ____ee N 674104
Cost of property development and VIR RIEE KA
investment
— Stock of properties sold —BEWEFERAN 56,437 8,631
— Others —HAt 42,921 3,641
99,358 12,272
13,377,607 10,929,245
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment #1323 M R 2T E 64,625 43,633
Auditor’s remuneration B A BN & 5,562 4,965
Operating lease rentals for land and buildings ~ ti REEFLEHER S 18,435 16,503
Outgoings in respect of TEEZERA
— investment properties —REYFE 27,615 3,189
— owner occupied property —BRZWZE 4,119 5,127
Staff costs, included in general and FTA—RITBAR
administrative expenses ZBTRA 232,694 226,544
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WT\ = /ﬁﬁﬁzﬁfﬁ&%l}ﬁ u_lI_

9 Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments 9 EFRTHARM&
The remuneration of the directors and chief executive officer for the year BEERITHRAHENEZ2014F12A3181EFEZ
ended 31 December 2014 is set out below: e T :
2014 2013
Salaries,
allowances Contributions Share-based
and benefits to retirement  compensation
Fees in kind Bonus scheme (Note xi) Total Total
kRS
Ml 2R i ERZHER
e ke TEfL ARG (PiHiExi) o1 4] k]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Names :£1 BUTT BUTT BUTT BUTT BUTT BUTT BETT
Wilfred WONG Ying Wai' FHE 355 17,474 5,074 34 164 23,101 21,169
Joseph CHOI Kin Hung =3 220 414 2,400 - - 6,761 6,530
ZHOU Wei (Note i) [EI1 (Fititi) 130 260 - - - 390 -
Barry John BUTTIFANT (Note i) 2 (F3E) 56 503 1,697 = 2 2,258 5,168
Catherine CHU (Note iii) RR& (W) 146 1,222 592 53 47 2,060 3,883
Clifford King CHIU (Note i) EBLE (MiEv) 165 - - - - 165 =
ZHANG Xiaoying (Note ) §E J\ﬁﬁ (BzEv) 130 = = = = 130 -
YAN Jie (Note v) e (iztv) 130 - - - - 130 -
Kenneth CHU Ting Kin (Note vi) R (M) 108 - - - - 108 220
Joseph CHOW Ming Kuen AR 220 - - - - 220 119
CHENG Sui Sang Hink 220 - - - - 220 -
GAO Jingyuan (Note vii) mRE (Fifhii) 143 - - - - 143 -
LEE Jai Ying (Note viii) Faa (Fizkvii) 143 - - - - 143 -
Jeffrey LAM Kin Fung (Note ix) SR (PiraEix) 78 - - - - 78 220
Abraham SHEK Lai Him (Note x) A (i) 80 - - - - 80 220
Alexander MAK Kwai Wing BER - - - - - - 215
2,324 23,600 9,763 87 213 35,987 37,744
L Chief Executive Officer ! TEREEE
Notes B &
0} Mr. ZHOU Wei was appointed as an Executive Director and a member of the (i) AEEEDEZTAWTES NNITEZ 88K E ' 2014
Executive Committee with effect from 9 May 2014. F5AIHEEER -
(i) Dr. Barry John BUTTIFANT tendered his resignation as an Executive Director and a iy ERABLIEHFHTHTESRHITZESNKE H2014
member of the Executive Committee with effect from 18 February 2014. F2R18HBLEM -
(i) Dr. Catherine CHU tendered her resignation as an Executive Director and a member (il ARREIEHFIRTEZTRNITEZEGHKE  H2014
of the Executive Committee with effect from 26 May 2014. F5A26HMBAER -
(ivy  Mr. Clifford King CHIU was appointed as a Non-executive Director, a member of the (iv) ﬂA*”%EEZ%t;Ei%#ﬁLﬁ§$ FMEZEEKER
Remuneration Committee and a member of the Audit Committee with effect from 2 EZEZEENE D 5IH2014F482H - 2014F5812H
April 2014, 12 May 2014 and 26 May 2014, respectively. 1201445 526 H f£ £
(V) Mr. ZHANG Xiaoying and Mr YAN Jie were appointed as Non-executive Directors with )  RNREERBGBLAERERTAIENITES H2014
effect from 30 May 2014. FSHA30B B ERN -
(vi)  Dr. Kenneth CHU Ting Kin tendered his resignation as a Non-executive Director and a (vi) KREBRELEETHERTESREEZZEGNKE 2014
member of the Audit Committee with effect from 26 May 2014. F5A26H B -
(vi)  Mr. GAO lingyuan was appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director and a (vii)

member of the Remuneration Committee with effect from 9 May 2014.
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Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (continued) 9 EFRTHAEME o

Notes: (continued) MisE: (&)

(vii)  Ms. LEE Jai Ying was appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director and the (i) FEREZTERZERABUINTEERIREEESE
chairman of the Nomination Committee with effect from 9 May 2014. % 120145 A9 AR -

(ix)  Mr. Jeffrey LAM Kin Fung tendered his resignation as an Independent Non-executive (ix) MEBTECHTBIIENTES FHEESKER
Director, a member of the Remuneration Committee and the chairman of the RZEEETFE H20145F5 5108 B AW -

Nomination Committee with effect from 10 May 2014.

(x)  Mr. Abraham SHEK Lai Him retired by rotation as an Independent Non-executive N  AEEEEN2014F5AN2ARITZRRBAFAE LigE
Director at the annual general meeting held on 12 May 2014 and did not offer REBYUIENTES MW EBERET  THETHFNE
himself for re-election, and ceased to be the chairman of the Remuneration BERFHENIEREEGNE  H201455 8120 AN -
Committee and a member of the Nomination Committee with effect from 12 May
2014.

(x)  Share-based compensation represents the fair value of share options granted by the x) ARMARERHERKKAEEXERBRERFAER
Group recognised during the year. ZAREe

No benefit arose on shares issued and allotted to directors of the Company M EF E I AR IR A A B 20029F8 A23 B R4 2

under the employee share subscription scheme of the Company adopted EERERMOFTEEEROD TARTES AR W

on 23 August 2002 for both years as no such share allotment was made B [E A8 8 B 1T R BL B AR ) ifn /2= AR AR Al

for both years. None of the directors have waived their rights to receive MEFEAN MBESHERSHEIBE 2R -
emoluments for both years.

Five highest paid employees 10 AfiEREFMES

There were two directors (2013: three) whose emoluments were among the AEBRAUGESHMEEPREMUES (20134F ¢

five highest paid employees in the Group and included in the analysis set out =f7) - HM & B HERMon -

in note 9.

Details of the emoluments paid to the other three (2013: two) individuals, E&p=107 (20134 - WAL ) &= ErBi A £ - EBE W3k

who are not directors of the Company but whose emoluments were among ARREEFEBRAEE A S=HHES - HB

the five highest paid employees in the Group are as follows: BRI
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT
Salaries and other allowances S N2 E )2 BG 10,364 6,752
Bonus TEAT 2,726 2,488
Contributions to retirement scheme RIRET B 306 144
Share-based compensation LARR 7 A 2Tt 2 Fi (B 81 223
Others Htb 1,142 172
14,619 9,779

Number of Individuals in each band
BEAH
Emolument bands B E 2014 2013
HK$4,500,001 — HK$5,000,000 75 #4,500,0017T — /& #5,000,0007C 2 1
HK$5,000,001 — HK$5,500,000 75 #5,000,0017% — /& #5,500,0007TC 1 1
3 2
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A R MR
11 Staff costs 11 BIRE

2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT T

Wages, salaries and allowances (including T& - i Ri28h
directors’ emoluments) (BERREEEME) 1,864,748 1,571,397
Provision for annual leave FREE 314 43
Termination benefits LIRS B A 999 11,174
Long service payment RERG S B 253 (386)

Contributions to defined contribution 5E#tFGERETE
retirement schemes 2R 46,852 45,418
Share-based compensation VARG B B HiE 2 w8 1,804 2,851
1,914,970 1,630,497
Charged to cost of sales (Note 8) B HERAR (FizEs) (1,682,276) (1,403,953)
232,694 226,544

12 RIE
MIEEE BB ER IR EBERE 2 5 ERR
SR L RA 2 BIBR IR R 16 5% B K&
8 2 5 5 RIS T R RN S 5 SR B FI A
SRR RITR R E .

12 Taxation
Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% on the
estimated assessable profits for the year after application of available tax
losses brought forward for both years. Taxation on overseas profits has been
calculated on the estimated assessable profits for the year at the rates of
taxation prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

HEEREWEFAR, (GTA) 2 BEMT :

The amount of tax charged/(credited) to the consolidated income statement

represents:

2014 2013

HK$'000 HK$'000

B¥TT BT

Provision for the year RNEFERE

— Hong Kong profits tax —BEFEH 24,778 33,138

— PRC and Macau profits tax — B BORPI RIS FR 33,179 7,801
(Over)under provision in prior years BEFE (BERE) BETR (3.234) 327
Deferred tax charge/(credit) (Note 27) EEFIBS L (EE) (KizE27) 95,894 (9,139)
150,617 32,127
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12 Taxation (continued)
Taxation on the Group’s profit before taxation differs from the theoretical
amount that would arise using the tax rate of the home country of the
Company as follows:

12 RIE (5)
AREBRFANGN 2 HBRBERBARRALE
RZBEMAEZIERRBIERLT

2014 2013
HK$°000 HK$'000
B¥TT BT T
Profit before taxation B B¢ A V4 A 553,492 225,542
Taxation at Hong Kong profits BREBFEE16.5%E 2 HiE
tax rate at 16.5% 91,326 37,214
Effect of different taxation rates in HB B r iR TRARE 2 2E
other tax jurisdictions 23,208 (8,098)
(Over)/under provision in prior years BEFE (BERE) BETLE (3,234) 327
Income not subject to taxation EARBIA (509) (18,385)
Expenses not deductible for taxation purpose A~ A] 1% 2 7 5% 6,979 8,562
Temporary differences not recognised AEERZEHER 9,756 (3,516)
Tax losses not recognised REER 2B 22,590 21,891
Utilisation of previously unrecognised FERAERIREERZTE
tax losses (337) (5,868)
Land appreciation tax T AR 1,118 =
Tax effect of land appreciation tax T ER 2 BRI R (280) =
150,617 32,127

13 Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the Group's profit
attributable to the equity holders of the Company by the weighted average
number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.
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MEMBRRME
13 Earnings per share (continued) 13 BEREF (5
Diluted earnings per share is calculated by dividing the Group's profit BREFBENDZARN T ERSE ARG AERR
attributable to the equity holders of the Company by the weighted average FIBR ABESF ARTT R - PR E S KR AR
number of ordinary shares outstanding after adjustment for the potential BETEESBER AR 2B BT EBRMNE
dilutive effect in respect of outstanding share options, convertible bonds and FHREGETE -
warrants during the year.
2014 2013
Profit attributable to equity holders of RARE=FE AR &R
the Company (HK$'000) (ABEETT) 387,558 185,402
Weighted average ordinary shares BT B EARINE T AR
issued ('000) (FA) 2,858,167 1,545,320
Adjustment for share options R B 96 936
Adjustment for convertible bonds AR EH AR - 372,944
Adjustment for warrants AR RERE oE B - 13,293
2,858,263 1,932,493
Basic earnings per share (HK cents) TRREARZF) GEEEL) 13.6 12.0
Diluted earnings per share (HK cents) SREERF BEEL) 13.6 9.6
14 Dividends 14 R
Dividends recognised as distribution during the year: RERNERD IR Z RS :
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT T
2014 Interim dividend — 1.0 HK cent (2013 20144 F #if% & — AR A 101l
Interim dividend: 2.2 HK cents) per share (20135 R HARR B : FAE 2 .240) 28,582 25,858
2013 Final dividend — 2.0 HK cents (2012 2013F REARR B — @ IR 2.01l
Final dividend: 2.5 HK cents) per share (20125 AR HIRR B : FAL B #2.500) 57,163 25,984
85,745 51,842
Additional prior year final dividend arising EEFHEAS R EEREE
from increase of ordinary shares on the 38 0 3 A0
related record date ZAREAEE = 2,049
85,745 53,891
At the board meeting held on 19 March 2015, the Board resolved MR2015F3A 19 RITrEEEeR L BRI
to recommend the payment of a final dividend, amounting to EEMEE2014F12A3NB L FEERBE KRR ST
HK$214,463,000, of 2.2 HK cents per share for the year ended 31 %A #2211l 4858 A 75 #5214,463,0007T © It ## R R
December 2014. The proposed final dividend is not reflected as dividend HRBIWARGETHBREARMRBEMNKRE &
payable in the consolidated financial statements until it has been approved EZRERARAFERITZRRBAFAE LER
by the shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the RibEBTE AR
Company.
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e M BmRIME
15 Property, plant and equipment 15 ME -BIREME
The Group Z %M
Leasehold Furniture,
land and Leasehold Plant and fixtures and Motor
building improvements machinery equipment vehicles Total
HELH A BE
REF HEMERE BB RERRME RE 1]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BT BETT YT BETT
Cost or valuation BFEEE
At 1 January 2013 R2013F1 818 382,000 52,600 56,034 67,894 10,662 569,190
Exchange difference EREE - 184 - 201 131 516
Additions NE 796 18,837 12,468 11,122 2,681 45,904
Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 36) Yt B& 12 &1 (Ff7E36) - - - 4,834 3,061 7,895
Fair value gain on revaluation A EEBRE 16,204 - - - - 16,204
Disposal HE - (1,376) (18,454) (4,057) (1,902) (25,789)
At 31 December 2013 #2013%12 4318 399,000 70,245 50,048 79,994 14,633 613,920
Exchange difference ERZER - (115) - (102) (53) (270)
Additions NE - 11,100 21,567 7,485 2,166 42,318
Fair value gain on revaluation AR EEEE 107,000 - - - - 107,000
Disposal HE - (479) (2,087) (1,423) (365) (4,354)
At 31 December 2014 RW2014% 124318 506,000 80,751 69,528 85,954 16,381 758,614
Accumulated depreciation REAE
At 1 January 2013 RW2013E1 818 - (46,895) (46,598) (52,142) (4,873) (150,508)
Exchange difference B = (48) = (92) (52) (192)
Depreciation for the year (Note) AEEHE (M) (23,369) (6,971) (5,685) (8,217) (2,554) (46,796)
Elimination of fair value gain HEAAE
on revaluation SfhlE 23,369 - - - = 23,369
Disposal HE - 1,376 18,073 3,464 1,257 24,170
At 31 December 2013 #2013E12A31H - (52,538) (34,210) (56,987) (6,222) (149,957)
Exchange difference R - (16) - 20 1 15
Depreciation for the year (Note) AEEHE (M) (32,291) (12,076) (9,186) (9,352) (2,967) (65,872)
Elimination of fair value gain HEAAE
on revaluation il 32,291 - - - - 32,291
Disposal HE - 475 1,766 1,010 179 3,430
At 31 December 2014 RW2014% 124318 - (64,155) (41,630) (65,309) (8,999) (180,093)
Net book value or valuation IR ESEE
At 31 December 2014 2014124318 506,000 16,596 27,898 20,645 7,382 578,521
At 31 December 2013 #2013 124318 399,000 17,707 15,838 23,007 8411 463,963
Note: During the year, depreciation of HK$1,247,000 (2013: HK$2,163,000) was capitalised MsE:  F A B EE1,247,0000T (20134 : ##2,163,0007T) 2
in properties under development. WEERBERPWETUERL -
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15 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

The leasehold land and building was revalued at fair value by an
independent valuer, Jones Lang LaSalle Limited. Valuation process of the
Group is disclosed in note 16.

Fair value measurements using significant unobservable inputs
(Level 3)

Fair value of leasehold land and building in Hong Kong is derived using
the direct comparison method. This valuation method is by comparing the
property to be valued directly with other comparable properties, which have
recently transacted. However, given the heterogeneous nature of real estate
properties, appropriate adjustments are usually required to allow for any
qualitative differences that may affect the price likely to be achieved by the
property under consideration.

Significant inputs used to determine fair value of leasehold land
and building at 31 December 2014

Valuation method

HERE

Unobservable input

TR A BE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REPBRAME

15 M -BBREMR (&)

MELHREFHE L GEMFEBITARARR
RREERH - AEEZHERFRMEI67mM

HRHAEXFATORGABBEZ L EFNE (F=
E)

REBZEELHWEBEFTZAAEDNRAERLR
ER UL EETD S E R A B W A AT 8
RHZ ALY FETLER AT ERFEHENE
ZEEEERENE CRRAFLE S BB AER
HEFERALEBEETYRENZERNVIEL
ERo

AREEN2014F12B31AZ2HET HREF A
REZER@AEE

Relationship of
unobservable inputs
to fair value
ArrB s A s
DREZRE

31 December 2014
2014%12A31H

Leasehold land and building Direct comparison method

Average price per square feet:  The higher the average price,

— Hong Kong BEELBRE

MELHWRET -

HK$6,138 (2013: HK$4,550)  the higher the fair value
SEHRFHER: FHEREE DAELE

7B #£6,1387T

(20134 : B %4,5507T)

If leasehold land and building had not been revalued, it would have been
included in these consolidated financial statements at historical cost less
accumulated depreciation of HK$94,767,000 (2013: HK$103,006,000).
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FEPBRAME

15 Property, plant and equipment (continued)
The leasehold land and building is situated in Hong Kong with a medium-
term lease.

As at 31 December 2014, the Group's leasehold land and building of
approximately HK$506,000,000 (2013: HK$399,000,000) was pledged as

collateral for the Group’s banking facilities.

15 Y -BBRERE (5

MELREFRNEE LS MBS -

R2014F12A310 AEEMNHAE L REFHE
#506,000,0007T (20134F : 7&#399,000,0007T ) E &
FEREERITRIE 2 HEIF M -

The Company 2]
Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures and Motor
improvements equipment vehicles Total
HE R BEE
MERKE KERER RE e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT T BT BT T
Cost 3% 3
At 1 January 2013 201361818 21,018 14,028 2,480 37,526
Additions INE = 3,534 698 4,232
Disposal k= - (379) (650) (1,029)
At 31 December 2013 72013412 H31H 21,018 17,183 2,528 40,729
Additions NE 6,235 3,031 - 9,266
Disposal HE = (924) = (924)
At 31 December 2014 20145128318 27,253 19,290 2,528 49,071
Accumulated depreciation REME
At 1 January 2013 20131818 (19,862) (11,779) (1,102) (32,743)
Depreciation for the year REFE (802) (1,826) (586) (3,214)
Disposal HeE - 379 271 650
At 31 December 2013 20135124318 (20,664) (13,226) (1,417) (35,307)
Depreciation for the year REEIE (733) (2,.114) (596) (3,443)
Disposal k= - 538 - 538
At 31 December 2014 R2014F12A31H (21,397) (14,802) (2,013) (38,212)
Closing net book value HXEmESE
At 31 December 2014 201412 A31H 5,856 4,488 515 10,859
At 31 December 2013 2013412 831H 354 3,957 1,111 5,422
HSIN CHONG CONSTRUCTION GROUP LTD. ANNUAL REPORT 2014 148



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A R M A
16 Investment properties 16 EMER
The Group &5 H
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
B¥TT ST T
At fair value: BARE:
At 1 January M®1A18 1,536,519 29,690
Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 36) U BE BT B A A) (MY EE36) - 1,512,648
Addition V= 2,456 -
Disposal HE (900) =
Transfer from properties under development & 35 AR 4 2 88 5
(Note 22) (KizE22) 875,179 =
Fair value gain/(loss) DBk (EE) 403,691 (17,620)
Exchange difference PE W =58 (10,214) 11,801
At 31 December 7128318 2,806,731 1,536,519

The Group's interests in office units in Hong Kong were held by a 20-year
freely assignable master lease which expired during the year ended 31
December 2014, its fair value was reduced to nil as at 31 December 2014.

REBREBZ W ABAHIRERLA20E R B s
MEROFE CDREE20145128318 ILEEE
B AAER2014F12A31HRES -

The Group's interests in investment properties are analysed as follows:

AEEREZMEEEDITOT

The Group &5 E
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
B¥TT BT T
Properties in Hong Kong held under BIBEATHERBE 2 EBME
— Short-term lease (less than ten years) —REEE (LR105) - 8,900
— Medium-term lease (more than ten years ~ —FRHATHE
but less than fifty years) (FB3A10F B D H505F ) 2,800 3,170
Properties outside Hong Kong held under BEATHERFE 2 BB RING
— Medium-term lease (more than ten years ~ —FRHATHE
but less than fifty years) (B3B8 105 18 D505 ) 2,803,931 1,524,449
2,806,731 1,536,519

As at 31 December 2014, the Group’'s investment properties of
approximately HK$1,606,049,000 (2013: HK$1,524,449,000) were pledged
as collaterals for the Group’s banking facilities.

MR2014F12 A318 @ 245 B 4978 #1,606,049,0007T
(20134 : 8 #51,524,449,00070 ) 7 & ¥ % 2 K
ERSEERITRE CHER -
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FEPBRAME

16 Investment properties (continued)

16 |EWE (2

Commercial
properties under
Carparks ~ Completed commercial properties development Total
EfI BRIHENE BETEHEDE #t
Hong Kong Hong Kong PRC PRC
EiE gt H H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BETT BETT ERTRT
As at 1 January 2014 201451518 3,170 8,900 1,524,449 - 1,536,519
Addition AE = = 2,456 - 2,456
Transfer (Note) s (M) - - - 875,179 875,179
Disposal & (900) = = = (900)
Fair value gain/(loss) AnEkS/ (EE) 530 (8,900) 91,874 320,187 403,691
Exchange difference [ =R = = (12,730) 2,516 (10,214)
At 31 December 2014 2014612 A31H 2,800 - 1,606,049 1,197,882 2,806,731
Note: B 5 -

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the development plan and certain leasing
arrangements have been finalised for the commercial portion of the properties under
development. The development costs of the said commercial portion amounting to
HK$875,179,000 (2013: nil) were transferred to investment properties under development
held for investment purpose.

The properties in Hong Kong and the PRC were revalued at fair value by
independent valuers, Jones Lang LaSalle Limited and Peak Vision Appraisals
Limited, respectively. The following table analyses the investments properties
carried at fair value, by valuation method.

The Group's finance department would review the valuations performed
by the independent valuers for financial reporting purposes. Discussions of
valuation processes and results are held between the finance department
and valuers at least once every six months, in line with the Group’s interim
and annual reporting dates.
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16 Investment properties (continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REPBRAME

16 wBEME (2

Fair value measurements as at
31 December 2014 using

EHTIEEREEHZ
#2014F12A31HZ AR ERTE
Quoted prices Significant
in active other Significant
markets for observable unobservable
identical assets inputs inputs
HRASEE HMEX BEXFH
RERTS ARER bk
ZHRE WABE WABRE
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
(5—R) (E5=R) (E=R)
HK'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Description iREA BT BT T BT
Recurring fair value measurements EEEARENE
Investments properties: TEME
Carparks in Hong Kong L RBAZ BRI = 2,800 =
Shopping mall in the PRC AR B2 eI % - - 1,498,303
Carparks in the PRC iz A HR Bl 2 B fif = = 107,746
Commercial properties under LRz B
development in the PRC EESYES - = 1,197,882

There was no transfer between level 1, 2 and 3 during the year.

Fair value measurements using significant other observable
inputs (Level 2)

Fair values of carparks in Hong Kong are derived using the direct comparison
method. This valuation method is based on comparing the property to
be valued directly with other comparable properties, which have recently
transacted.

Fair value measurements using significant unobservable inputs
(Level 3)

Fair values of shopping mall, carparks and commercial properties under
development in the PRC are derived using the combination of direct
comparison method and investment method.

Direct comparison method is by comparing the property to be valued
directly with other comparable properties, which have recently transacted.
However, given the heterogeneous nature of real estate properties,
appropriate adjustments are usually required to allow for any qualitative
differences that may affect the price likely to be achieved by the property
under consideration.
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RAFE F—E F_EBENE=RBZHEITELETE
B o

FRARUMEXTHRGAKBES N EHE (F
=F)

BREMZ ARERBERLEERL I EE
DEREERGEZMEREMTARS 2 ALK
MEEITHE

HRHAEXATHRGABBZ L EE (F=
E)

TEBENES BURBERTEEVEZANEBR
RERLBERKREZRGERFH

BEELEAERSRETREZMEEREEMT
HIZZ 5 2 FI LB SR ARLL B - AT - R B HEY)
EZHEE AR BEAFELEE ZHBAAA
FEELZEZR REEZRAQGTENMERYE
Z B
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REMBRRWME

16 Investment properties (continued) 16 BEWYER (»)
Fair value measurements using significant unobservable inputs HABXFTHBRHARBEZ 2 AENE (F=
(Level 3) (continued) B) (&)
The investment method is based on the capitalisation of net income at an REEDERREEOTRERMAFETUER
appropriate discount rate or by taking into account the current rents passing {biEH KEERBEMFE 2RITHES RIKA S
and the reversionary income potential of the property. For commercial BN -RBRAEMEDNENS  BEKTNBERER
properties under development, construction costs that will be expended RITKPTHR A AR ZMERNERE D - B
to complete the development to reflect the development potential of the BEREERETKNERCEZ

property and the quality of the completed development are taken into
account in the valuation.

Significant inputs used to determine fair value of investment AREE2014F12831B ZRENEIAAREBZE

properties at 31 December 2014 Kig N&iE

Relationship of unobservable

Valuation method Unobservable input inputs to fair value
SERE R BRm A B A BRRBABREAREZRE
31 December 2014
2014E12A31H
Shopping mall — PRC Investment method Term yield: 5.25% (2013: nil) The changes in the term yield would
BYIRES— (2013: Direct comparison & B[] $7 3K : 5.25% not materially affect the fair value.
method) (Note) (20134 : ) FHRBEEHH AR ETSEL
®E % (20134 BATE-

BEREBAR) (M)

Reversionary yield: 5.50%
(2013: nil)

BB ¥R : 5.50%
(20134 : &)

Adjusted average market rent
per sq.m per month: RMB250
(2013: adjusted average market
transacted price per square
metre: RMB29,000)

BRETHARERHETEMS
& : AR¥2507T (20134 :
P ARERHB TSRS
& : AR%29,0007T)
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The lower the reversionary yield, the
higher the fair value

EHEDRIYE AAERS-

The higher the adjusted average
market rent, the higher the fair
value.
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A B mKME
16 Investment properties (continued) 16 ¥EWME ()
Fair value measurements using significant unobservable inputs HRABXTTHEHAKBZ 2 A EHE (F=
(Level 3) (continued) B) (&)
Relationship of unobservable
Valuation method Unobservable input inputs to fair value
hERE ARG A B AR BRRBABRELREZHER
Carparks — PRC Direct comparison method  Adjusted average market The higher the adjusted average
By —H HELBRE transacted price per lot: market transacted price, the higher
RMB259,000 (2013: the fair value.
RMB242,000) KPEBRFHATSZ5EMS AR
BELRAEFHTISRHE: B
A R #259,0007T
(20134 : AR#242,0007T)
Commercial properties under  Investment method Term yield: 3.00% The changes in the term yield would
development — retail, PRC & &% A B K : 3.00% not materially affect the fair value.
BERIPEEYE-—TE FH FHRREEHH RN ETGESE
BATE-
Reversionary yield: 5.00% The lower the reversionary yield, the
1EEEI¥R =% : 5.00% higher the fair value
BELREGE ARERS -
Adjusted average market rent The higher the adjusted average
per sg.m per month: RMB130 market rent, the higher the fair
BRI REHAETS value.
mHEHE : ARBI1307T KRBT mSEeHS  AAE
e e
Commercial properties under  Direct comparison method ~ Adjusted average market The higher the adjusted average
development — carparks, BEHESA transacted price per lot: market transacted price, the higher
PRC RMB122,000 the fair value.
BERPEEYE B BEKABRTHTSERSE: A KABFHTERXGEES AR
[ F%122,0007T BE#E-
Note: The directors consider the investment method is more applicable to the property. Mk EERRKEZIETBEANZYE-
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FEPBRAME

17 Intangible assets 17 EvEE
The Group F 5%
Secured Client Other
Trademark contracts relationships trademarks and
(Note) (Note) (Note) Sub-total trade names  Software cost Total
i1} RAEH EFRE EftE
(MsE) (MsE) (MsE) it REHER RERF a5
HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
Cost B
At 1 January 2013 R2013F1 718 58,469 30,497 71,073 160,039 1,600 - 161,639
Additions RE = - - - - 11,858 11,858
At 31 December 2013 20135128318 58,469 30,497 71,073 160,039 1,600 11,858 173,497
Additions HE - - - - - 949 949
At 31 December 2014 20144128318 58,469 30,497 71,073 160,039 1,600 12,807 174,446
Accumulated amortisation ARMS
At 1 January 2013 201351 A1A - (26,416) (34,216) (60,632) - - (60,632)
Amortisation for the year KEEEH - (4,081) (7,89) (11,977) - (2,025) (14,002)
At 31 December 2013 2013%12A31R - (30,497) (42,112) (72,609) - (2,025) (74,634)
Amortisation for the year TEEEH - - (7.89%) (7.89%) - (4373) (12,269)
At 31 December 2014 20145128318 - (30,497) (50,008) (80,505) - (6,398) (86,903)
Net book value RESE
At 31 December 2014 20144128318 58,469 - 21,065 79,534 1,600 6,409 87,543
At 31 December 2013 20135128318 58,469 - 28,961 87,430 1,600 9,833 98,363
Note: Bt 5 -
Intangible assets arising from the acquisition of Synergis included a trademark, secured WEFEBEMEABVEE BEBE ISEHREFPH
contracts and client relationships. The trademark has an indefinite useful life as there is no FeAZWSBREFERTE AR EESEAEEMEL
foreseeable limit to the period over which the trademark is expected to generate economic BYAS B s N2 A T T8 R BV EARR o
benefits to the Group.
As at 31 December 2014, the management of the Group determined there is no impairment M2014F12A310  AEEEEERTEmIEVELRRE BxX
of the trademark. The basis on how the recoverable amount of “Property and facility HRIR AR [MEEREER] 582 ATRE S ER - KR
management” segment, to which the trademark is related, is determined, is the same as HEXE BEARHSEE [MERREER] 5 ROREETR
those used in the impairment assessment of the goodwill allocated to the “Property and ERHERFTER A E AR (MIFE18G)) ©
facility management” segment (Note 18()).
The estimated useful lives of secured contracts and client relationships of 5 and 9 years MBEAREPEEZ A AERFHRRIRREA L2 15K
respectively are based on the terms of existing contracts and historical data. REL BB RIFTREF RNEF-
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A R M A
17 Intangible assets (continued) 17 EREE ()
The Company
k- 3/
Software cost
BRERE
HK$'000
BT T
Cost 5% 3
At 1 January 2013 201351418 -
Additions NE 11,858
At 31 December 2013 72013912 A831H 11,858
Additions = 949
At 31 December 2014 2014512 H31H 12,807
Accumulated amortisation RAMS
At 1 January 2013 F2013%1 818 -
Amortisation for the year NG (2,025)
At 31 December 2013 2013412 831H (2,025)
Amortisation for the year NEEEE (4,373)
At 31 December 2014 2014912 831H (6,398)
Net book value RERE
At 31 December 2014 2014512 H31H 6,409
At 31 December 2013 72013912 A831H 9,833
18 Goodwiill 18 W&

The carrying amount of goodwill was allocated to groups of cash-generating
units that are expected to benefit from the business combination as follows:

BEZREER DA REERRRERE O T
EENEReELFEMER:

The Group &5 H

Notes HK$'000

B3 BT

Property and facility management )2 K 7R e B TR () 18,753

Property development and investment MEZERERIEE (ii) 23,249
At 1 January 2013, 31 December 2013 and 720131418 201312 A318 &

31 December 2014 2014512 A31H 42,002
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18 Goodwill (continued)

Notes:

0]

(ii)

Goodwill arising from Synergis, allocated to the “Property and facility management”
segment, amounting to HK$92,618,000 (2013: HK$92,618,000), was previously
reduced through recognition of an impairment loss of HK$73,865,000 (2013:
HK$73,865,000).

At 31 December 2014, the management of the Group determined that there is no
further impairment of goodwill. The recoverable amount of the ”Property and facility
management” segment has been determined based on the higher of its fair value less
costs to sell and its value in use. Management has calculated the fair value based on
observable market price assessed that the fair value less costs to sell is higher than the
carrying amount of “Property and facility management” segment and no impairment
provision is considered necessary.

Goodwill arising from Hsin Chong Property Development Limited (“HCPD"), allocated
to the "Property development and investment” segment has been determined based
on a value in use calculation. The value in use calculation is derived from cash flow
projections based on financial budgets approved by management covering by a
three-year period. Cash flows beyond the three-year period are extrapolated using
the estimated growth rates stated below, which have been determined based on
management expectations for the market development. The long term growth rates
used are largely consistent with the range of forecasts included in industry reports.
The key assumptions for the value in use calculations are as follows:

18 W8 ()

B EE -

0]

(ii)

VEBEELZHE CORE [MEMBEER] 5
4 48 58 192,618,0007T (20134 : 5 #£92,618,0007T) -
M 5T A L4 8 FE R R (B 5 18 7515 73,865,0007T (20134F «
75%573,865,0007T) T LA T HE

M2014F12A31H AL BB EHEH 2 |HHE—
WRE [MERBEER] DBEZAIKREISREIIAEA
REREEXARIZEAEENE ZHREE RBEME
EoBEREUNRBREMSERTEQAE  RAERAER
HERAR [MERLEER] HEZERER WEE
MR E R

HEEMEERIRE | D BREMEMERRERA
A(IHEMERR] MBS DHREREENE Rt
& (e MEEIENEIREMIUE 2 RE = FH 2 BHETR
HENHRSRAUFE - BR=FH2AERERAT
Xtz EEHE R R ER TR RBERBH SRR
ZEMEE - MRAZ R RRATEREMEAZE
AEEEA Bt EEREEMANIERRNT

2014 2013
Discount rate AL & 12% 12%
Growth rate R R 5% 5%
19 Subsidiaries 19 MEBATE
The Company &2 F
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$'000
BRETT PEME T IT
Unlisted shares, at cost FE ETRRAS - R AR 2,278,063 2,278,063
Less: impairment in value B ORE (100,914) (150,164)
2,177,149 2,127,899
Loans to subsidiaries EXRTHBA R
— non-current —JEBNHR 592,000 482,000
— current —BNER 46,940 53,440
638,940 535,440
Amounts due from subsidiaries i EN NI B 3,500,219 2,295,327
Less: provision B (9,779) (26,462)
3,490,440 2,268,865
Loan from a subsidiary ke —HfBRRZEHK
— non-current —JEBNHA (376,000) (120,000)
— current —BNER (74,000) -
(450,000) (120,000)
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEASTBT B A R RUA (1,317,639) (328,984)
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19

20

Subsidiaries (continued)

Loans to subsidiaries as at 31 December 2014 was unsecured and bore
interest at HIBOR plus 2% per annum (2013: HIBOR plus 2% per annum).
The loans amounting to HK$592,000,000 (2013: HK$482,000,000) are
not repayable within one year and the loans of HK$46,940,000 (2013:
HK$53,440,000) are repayable on demand with no fixed terms of
repayment. The carrying amounts are denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

Loan from a subsidiary as at 31 December 2014 was unsecured, bore
interest at HIBOR plus 2.7% per annum. (2013: HIBOR plus 2% per annum)
The loan amounting to HK$74,000,000 (2013: nil) was repayable within
one year and the loan of HK$376,000,000 (2013: HK$120,000,000) was
repayable after one year.

Amounts due from/to subsidiaries are unsecured, non-interest bearing, have
no fixed terms of repayment and are denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

The carrying amounts of balances with subsidiaries approximate their fair
values. Details of principal subsidiaries are set out in note 44.

Joint operations
Details of major investment in joint operations as at 31 December 2014 and
2013 are as follows:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

19

20

REPBRAME

MEBATR (&)

R2014F12A31AREFHEB AR 2 ERIIEIR
B WIRF B AEBRITRZEFREMN2% (20134 :
FRUABRBRITEEREN2%):TERE - EFRE
75#592,000,0007T (20134 : &%482,000,0007T ) £
ER—FREE B FEE S 46,940,0007T (2013
4 75£553,440,0007T ) AL BIGEF - WEREFER
Bl B EEREELNBE BB -

M2014F 128318 KA —EH BRI Z ERAEE
R IRF BARBIRITRZEFREN2.7% (20134 - F
BUBEBBRITRZERE 2% ):TEFE - EREEE
#74,000,0007C (2013F : ) FENR—FRNEE ME
FEE S #376,000,0007T (20134 : 7 #120,000,000
TC) B FRER-

FEYL, FEAT B B X R RRIE T SRR - S B R EE
B WIABB RN
MERRFRZREERE R ERIT - T 28
REZERFFDIRH T4 -

HEEESXT
R2014F 2013 F 12 A3 B T EHAR L EBIRE
ZEBIT

Name Place of operation Principal activities Participating shares
£ REME FERY 2k
2014 2013
CRCC - HC - CR15G Joint Venture Unincorporated joint operation operating Civil engineering 30% 30%
REE-FE-PEEISREE AR in Hong Kong TARIRE
EBEBLE BB HRLE XY
GAS Joint Venture Unincorporated joint operation operating Electrical and mechanical 30% 30%
REREHEAT in Hong Kong LE T2
EEBEE 2 B R AREE XS
Hsin Chong Aster — China Comservice JV  Unincorporated joint operation operating Electrical and mechanical 70% 70%
e DLE-PEBEREEE QR in Hong Kong BETRE
EEBRE 2 FBEE ARG E X
Hsin Chong — Maeda JV Unincorporated joint operation operating Building construction 60% 60%
in Hong Kong EFEE
EEBEE 2 BB ARG E XS
Hsin Chong-Wah Cheong Unincorporated joint operation operating Interiors and special projects 30.2% 30.2%
Joint Venture (01) in Hong Kong EREMREKRIER
EEBRE B ABARGEER
Hsin Chong-Wah Cheong Unincorporated joint operation operating Interiors and special projects 30.2% 30.2%
Joint Venture (02) in Hong Kong EREMEERIER
ERBRE 2 FBEBARRE X
Hsin Chong - Yau Lee Joint Venture Unincorporated joint operation operating Building construction 50% 50%

in Hong Kong

EEAEE FRARAAEEET
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FEPBRAME

20 Joint operations (continued) 20 HABEES o
Name Place of operation Principal activities Participating shares
&1 RER FERE 28
2014 2013
Hsin Chong Tsun Yip Joint Venture Unincorporated joint operation operating Civil engineering 60% 60%
EEERE in Hong Kong TARIE
EEBEE BB LRLE XY
Hsin Chong Tsun Yip Joint Venture Unincorporated joint operation operating Civil engineering 57% 57%
78 i EB 4 (DC/2012/07) in Hong Kong TARTRE
EEBEE BB RTE XY
Hsin Chong Tsun Yip Joint Venture Unincorporated joint operation operating Civil engineering 57% 57%
37 E 2B 2(DC/2012/08) in Hong Kong TAIRE
EEBRE 2 kB EELREE XK
Hsin Chong Tsun Yip Joint Venture Unincorporated joint operation operating Civil engineering 83% 83%
B HE S B2 (5/WSD/13) in Hong Kong TARTRE
TEEBRE 2 B EALREEEE
Laing O Rourke — Hsin Chong Unincorporated joint operation operating Civil engineering 22.5% 22.5%
— Paul Y. Joint Venture in Hong Kong TARIRE
EEBLE B EBLRLEER
Laing O" Rourke — Hsin Chong —Paul Y. Unincorporated joint operation operating Civil engineering 22.5% 22.5%
(WKCD) Joint Venture in Hong Kong TARIR
EEBLE BB LRLE XY
Maeda - Hitachi - Yokogawa Unincorporated joint operation operating Civil engineering 20% 20%
— Hsin Chong Joint Venture in Hong Kong TATIE
EEBEE BB LRLE XY
MBH Joint Venture Unincorporated joint operation operating Civil engineering 20% 20%
in Hong Kong TAIRE
EBRKE 2B EBLREE XY
Samsung — Hsin Chong Joint Venture Unincorporated joint operation operating Civil engineering 40% 40%
in Hong Kong TAIRE
BB E BB ERLE XY
Yau Lee — Hsin Chong Joint Venture Unincorporated joint operation operating Building construction 40% 40%
BR-#EKE in Hong Kong BFEE
EEBGE 2 kBB ARLE XS
CESL - HCCG Joint Venture Unincorporated joint operation operating Building construction 45% =
in Macau BFEE
TERFEE 2 B E B A REE X
Note: B ek
Pursuant to the terms of the joint arrangements, the profit sharing for each year of all joint BEAR T 2GR Ll RRGCEEBTFRM 2 D0
operations listed herein above shall be distributed to the joint operators in proportion to their RS KRG EE TG 2 2 EERIEL OISR -
respective participating interests.
Amounts due from/to other partners of joint operations are unsecured, non-interest bearing, FEM PRS2 b S ER B AT - Tt - BEE
have no fixed terms of repayment and are denominated in Hong Kong dollars. B R A EHE -
The above table lists the joint operations of the Group which, in the opinion of the directors, FRIFZARERAGEXBRAEFTRATEVEREEE
principally affected the results or assets of the Group. To give details of other joint operations BREEZHRACEEL EERA RUEAFEMLRIKLES
would, in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length. BOFEBEERBR TR
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MEMBRRME
21 Available-for-sale financial asset 21 AfHHECMBHRE
Available-for-sale financial asset comprises the following: A E B BEEERFENTEIEE
The Group &5 H
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT T
Equity securities BEEH
Unlisted, at fair value FEM -ZRAAE
At 1 January ®1A1H 10,190 9,831
Additions NE - 359
Fair value gain AaENE 17,608 =
At 31 December M12A318 27,798 10,190
The fair value of unlisted securities is determined based on valuation report EEMESZ AABREB L GER 2 (GERS
by independent valuers and has been referenced to net asset value of the EBE WESEFLMEFNRESBMZEETFE
unlisted securities as at reporting date.
22 Properties under development 22 BEPYHE
The Group &5 E
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
B¥TT BT T
At 1 January M1A1H 3,880,470 2,838,784
Exchange difference PE =R (24,872) 88,962
Additions during the year FRNRE 1,307,012 952,724
Transfer to investment properties under EREEREPIREYFE
development (Note 16) (MF5E16) (875,179) =
At 31 December M12HA318 4,287,431 3,880,470
Properties under development comprise: BRPYIERE
The Group &5 H
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
BRTT BT T
Land use rights 3 fE R4 2,402,304 2,556,309
Construction cost and capitalised expenditure #2235k 7N & & AL B 52 1,679,121 1,197,460
Interest expense capitalised BRI ERX 206,006 126,701
4,287,431 3,880,470

159 20143 FELEEEFRAT



Notes to the Con§olidated Financial Statements
A R MR

22 Properties under development (continued)

As at 31 December 2014, the amount of properties under development
expected to be completed and available for sale within one year is
approximately HK$967,763,000 (2013: HK$900,276,000). The remaining
balance is expected to be recovered after one year.

As at 31 December 2014, a portion of the Group's properties under
development with cost of approximately HK$229,569,000 (2013:
HK$231,615,000) was pledged as collateral for the Group’s banking
facilities.

23 Stocks and contracting work-in-progress

22 BRAPYME (5

M2014F 128316 BEBR —F AR T RA#iTH
EZBRERYESELN AE967,763,0007T (2013
F 1 5 1#900,276,0007T) < (R EETEEA B A — F 12 UK
[E] o

R2014F12 3318 - RNEE 2 B RP Y EIBH KR

#)788£229,569,0007T (20134 : 75 #231,615,0007T )
BRFEAREEBRITEEZERR-

23 FREBEPIRE

The Group &5 E
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT ok i
Gross amounts due from customers EREFE 2 TIEFIE
for contract work ExE 1,407,721 1,722,303
Raw materials, at cost FER kAR 1,412 1,344
Stocks of properties, at cost MEFE R 642,861 705,676
2,051,994 2,429,323
Note: MfzE -
Cost plus attributable profit less PSS 0 A S K1
foreseeable losses A T8 R E1E 28,792,382 18,766,155
Less: progress payments received and A B R
receivable TR (27,721,873) (17,248,910)
Contracting work-in-progress g T2 1,070,509 1,517,245
Representing: (e
Gross amounts due from customers for GFEREZEPTIEER
contract work included in stocks and BIERKEFZ
contracting work-in-progress TRREERE 1,407,721 1,722,303
Gross amounts due to customers for contract FEf BR 7k & fE AT & FHIE N B E RS
work included in payables and accruals REZTIEFIEER (337,212) (205,058)
1,070,509 1,517,245
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e BmRME
24 Receivables and prepayments 24 BRREFREFAMR
The Group &£ The Company &2 5

2014 2013 2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BRTT BT T BRTT BT T

Trade receivables Z 5 FE W R K
— third parties =E=% 733,698 653,338 = -
— provision for impairment — BB (423) (423) = =
733,275 652,915 - -

Retention receivables 1R E & FEUER 3K

— third parties —%=5 1,230,854 807,153 - =
— provision for impairment — BB (125) (125) = =
1,230,729 807,028 - -
1,964,004 1,459,943 - -

Other receivables H th & U BR K
— subsidiaries —MIEB A A - - - 8,101
— third parties —F= 63,203 37,108 8,731 -
— joint operations —H RS TS = = = 35

Deposits and prepayments e RENE
— subsidiaries —KIE AR - - 135,953 2,025
— third parties (Note) —F=7 (M) 367,000 218,924 2,025 9,867
2,394,207 1,715,975 146,709 20,028

Note: Balance included a RMB23,000,000 refundable deposit paid to a PRC company for
entering into the tender of an interior fitting out project in Hainan, the PRC and
an earnest deposit of HK$130 million paid in respect of a potential acquisition of a

property project in the PRC.

The carrying amounts of the Group's and the Company'’s receivables and

Mizt: AHeER—EURFBEERNERNEEEBT LR
ZEm—EHRE AR E M 2 RERS AR23,000,000
TRBERTBEBERE - EMENZAZHES AL

130,000,0007T ©

REBRARRRUEF RANSE@ENLTIE

prepayments are denominated in the following currencies: * R

The Group & 5£ME The Company &2 7
2014 2013 2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT T BETT BT
Hong Kong dollar ok 1,866,816 1,393,974 146,709 20,028
Renminbi AR 109,615 156,247 - -
Macau pataca SR 417,776 165,754 - -
2,394,207 1,715,975 146,709 20,028
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24 Receivables and prepayments (continued)
Trade and retention receivables

@

HSIN CHONG CONSTRUCTION GROUP LTD. ANNUAL REPORT 2014
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(if)

(iif)

(iv)

The aging analysis of trade receivables by due date is as follows:

24 BEFRERTAMGE (&
(a) BBREELEKER

@

B 5 RBRFIRE BB 2 RS AT -

The Group &M
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT T
Not yet due AR EIER 607,259 442,722
1 to 30 days 1230K 71,654 143,877
31 to 90 days 31290k 23,483 25,613
91 to 180 days 91£180&K 7,587 2,536
Over 180 days 180K A £ 23,292 38,167
733,275 652,915

As at 31 December 2014, for the receivables which are not yet
due, there is no indication that they will be non-performing as
there is no history of default of the customers.

The Group's credit terms for its contracting business, property
rental and property and facility management services are
negotiated with and entered into under normal commercial
terms with its trade customers. The credit period for the trade
receivables for contracting business and property and facility
management generally ranges from 30 to 60 days (2013: 30 to
60 days).

Retention receivables in respect of the contracting business are
settled in accordance with the terms of the respective contracts.
Rental income is billed in advance of the rental period. At 31
December 2014, retention receivables held by customers for
contract works amounting to approximately HK$860,809,000
(2013: HK$518,711,000) are expected to be recovered or settled
in more than twelve months from the end of the reporting
period.

There is no concentration of credit risk with respect to trade

and retention receivables, as the Group has a large number of
customers.
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720145128318 « MAREIHARY R URBR X
R EEFAERIERZ L BUSEE
IR ETERBITZIEMNR

REBRIEE - MERSEYERRE
BRI 2 BRI R — R e
BEAHERER] - REEB R MERRNE
EEMNESREURRZEEH—HNT30
60K (20134 : 30E60K ) °

BEER ZRESEUETIZBERS
Wz GREFZ-ABERANREARE
BHRTFTEEBR B8 B U - 7201412 8318
ERFREEANIEFEAECRESER
BR 2 4978 #:860,809,0007T (20134 : /515
518,711,0007T) * T8 A 7A ¥ 15 HA 45 SR B
BETBB T @R BB ST -

HRAKEEF /BT D  HE 5 RRE
SRBERLBEEED AR -



24 Receivables and prepayments (continued)
(a) Trade and retention receivables (continued)
(v)  Depending on the credit history and financial position of each
individual customer, trade receivables that are less than 180 days
past due are not considered impaired. As at 31 December 2014,
trade receivables of HK$23,292,000 (2013: HK$38,167,000),
net of provision for impairment, were past due over 180 days
but not impaired as there are no recent history of default
of independent customers and no objective evidence of the
receivables being not fully collectible.

(vl Movements in the provision for impairment of trade and

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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24 BRRREAMNE (&)
(a) BEERFELEKK &)

v) ST EEFZEERE KB
TE 0 E 5 EURER i B D M 8OR N AR
BEERME-R20145F12 8318 2 1%
TERE 2 B 5 EMER 23,292,000
JC (20134 : 7 #538,167,0007T ) 4 &, %1 2f
HBiB180Kk - BIX EIELRE - RAREE
BRMERAHRER LS TMEREE
BRERZ S EBARE L 2 k(e -

vy BIZRRESEKERRZ REREZSN

retention receivables are as follows: N
The Group &5 H
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT ST T
At the beginning and REL]
at the end of the year MER 548 548

The provision for impairment represents trade and retention
receivables aged over 180 days in both years.

(b) Provision for impairment of other receivables
Movements on the provision for impairment of other receivables are as

BER EBIEMESENREBEBI180RZ
B 5 N ARE S R

(b) R il U R 7k ok B 4R O
Hi USSR R 2 BERBEEIT

follows:
The Group &5 H
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
B¥TT ST T
At the beginning of the year REF] - 201
Amount written off as uncollectible i EE S T Uk [B] 2 3R I8 - (201)

At the end of the year RER

As at 31 December 2014 and 2013, the Group does not hold any
collateral.

25 Amounts due from non-controlling interests
Amounts due from non-controlling interests are unsecured, non-interest
bearing and have no fixed terms of repayment. The carrying amounts
approximate their fair values, and are mainly denominated in Hong Kong
dollars.
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26 Deposits, cash and cash equivalents 26 FR -BeRFERRALEAH
The Group &£ The Company &2 5
2014 2013 2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B¥ETT BEET T BETT BT T
Cash at bank and in hand RITHEFRFEERES 827,923 192,642 1,137 1,450
Short term bank deposits R HIRITIFE
(Note i) (B &) 22,122 715,083 - =
850,045 907,725 1,137 1,450
Time deposit over three months =8 A LEBFR
(Note ii) (B i) 13,915 13,463 - -
Unrestricted deposits, cash and PZR 2 FR
bank balances RE RRITER 863,960 921,188 1,137 1,450
Restricted bank deposits SRl 2 RITIF R
(Note iii) ( B =i ) 30,708 4,592 - =
894,668 925,780 1,137 1,450
Deposits, cash and cash equivalents are denominated in the following R ReRERBSEBEBREUTINEE BEA:
currencies:
The Group &5 HE The Company &2 F
2014 2013 2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BB TIT BETT BT
Hong Kong dollar ket 699,110 441,285 1,116 1,450
United States dollar I 36,217 582 = =
Renminbi AREE 85,496 179,614 - =
Macau pataca SR 71,436 294,890 - -
Other Eofth 2,409 9,409 21 =
894,668 925,780 1,137 1,450
Notes: B R
(i) The short term bank deposits of the Group have original maturities of three months (i) AEEZRHRTERSVESHBA=MEALAT -
or less.
(i) The time deposits of the Group carry an effective interest rate of 3.0% (2013: 2.8%) iy AEETHIFERIRERFFE3.0% (2013F : 2.8% )&t
per annum and have an average maturity period of 184 (2013: 183) days. B FHE|EHE A184 (20134 1 183) Kk °
(i) As at 31 December 2014, restricted bank deposits of HK$29,775,000 (2013: @iy P20145F128318 LR H1.2 R1T1F B 29,775,000
HK$4,301,000) represent deposits placed in banks on which charges are created to (20134 : 7&#4,301,00070 ) F5E 1 TR 1TAEUS R 1T 8E
secure banking facilities. B2 RITER
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27 Deferred tax
Deferred tax is calculated in full on temporary differences under the liability
method using applicable tax rates prevailing in the countries in which the

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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27 BERIF
EEHBERAABEEIAEREZRRASEEERE
BRNRITERREEZHFE - RERAZE

Group operates. The movement of the deferred tax is as follows: mr:
The Group xEME
Deferred tax liabilties Deferred tax assets
BEREAK BRERARE
Properties under Depreciation
development/ in excess of
Accelerated tax Properties held Fair value Convertible Intangible depreciation Tax
depreciation for sale gains bonds assets Total allowance losses Total
BRNE/ HERR
NERRME  REHEZHR LhERE THERES EVEE #it HESRE HEBR #it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BRI BT AT BT AT AT AT AT AT
At1January 2013 R013E1R18 2127 (6,174) (47,284) (39414) (16,403) (107,148) 174 - 174
Exchange difference EizE (11) (1,658) (1,725) - - (339 - - -
Acquistion of subsiciares (Note 36) WK BA (Rz36) - (213,991) (221,05 - - (435,043) - - -
Redemption of convrtie bonds [HERE:S - - B 34,841 - 34841 = = =
Charged to other comprehensie income ~ =Rt 2 EREATIER - = (6,365) - - (6,365) - - -
Transferto resenve upon comversion o RESH4%2 8 ARRES
4% convertble bonds MERZREE - - - 306 - 306 - - -
(Charged)iredited to consolicated TEEARERR (NR) /
income statement A (71418 (1371) - 4267 1976 (2,546) 511 5974 11,685
At 31 December 2013 013128318 (5,302 (223,194 (276,426) - (14,421) (519,349) 5,885 5974 11,859
Exchange difference EXZE 6] 2057 1,165 - - 329 - - -
Charged to other comprehensiveincome £ 2ERE AR - - (27,385 - - (27,385) - - -
(Charged)crdited to consolidated ERARERR (k) /
income statement A (12,683) 14728 (103,015) - 1303 (99,667) (503) 4216 31
At31 December 2014 014512318 (17,988) (206,409) (405,661) = (13,124) (643,182) 5,382 10,250 15,632
The Company ¥ 3/N|
Deferred tax assets Tax losses
BETIRE E REAKE
HK$'000
BETT
At 1 January and 31 December 2013 ®2013F1 818 &12A31RH -
Credited to income statement =R ATTA 3,586
At 31 December 2014 R2014F12 A31H 3,586

Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax losses carried forward to
the extent that realisation of the related tax benefit through future
taxable profits is probable. The Group has unrecognised deferred tax
assets in respect of tax losses amounting to HK$307,469,000 (2013:
HK$152,537,000) which can be carried forward against future taxable
income. Tax losses amounting to HK$242,566,000 are expiring from 2015
through 2019 (2013: HK$54,357,000 expiring from 2014 through 2018).
The remaining tax losses do not have expiry dates.

165

BETRBEE &S 2 MIEBEMER  UIHE
TR 2108 Al BE3 1B R PR FE R it e 7 B 3R 2 80 kE
BR AEBARERELERIBEE REHIESE
307,469,0007T (20134 : /& #152,537,0007T) @ E 7]
A I B R 2R B AR AR A » BB #5242,566,000
T2 BB 2015 2019 A f@im (20134 : B
54,357,0007C Z BB # R2014FE = 2018FE N @i ) ©
HpB1B2 B 8 mesR o

2014 F 3 HELESEBRAT



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEPBRAME

28 Bank loans 28 MITER
The Group &5 HE The Company &2 F
2014 2013 2014 2013
HK$'000 H\K$'OOO HK$000 H\K$'OOO
BETT BT T BETT BT T
Bank loans, wholly payable within ARAFRNEREE
five years ZIRITER
— secured — B 2,336,423 1,479,187 60,000 50,000
— unsecured — fE 4K 1,099,375 1,041,765 721,814 685,454
3,435,798 2,520,952 781,814 735,454
The repayment schedule of RITER ZEF
bank loans is as follows: PONE
Short term revolving bank loans EHIEIRIRTTE R 1,436,382 934,312 525,000 375,000
Portion of bank loans due for HR— iﬁﬂ%‘}?ﬁz
repayment within one year RITEREBH 477,711 192,981 206,814 103,640
1,914,093 1,127,293 731,814 478,640
Portions of bank loans due for AR—FREZER
repayment after one year but FHRESRIERIEX
contain a repayment on demand ZIRITE RN
clause
(i) in the second year (i) MREBE=FEHH 137,860 307,548 50,000 206,814
(ify in the third to fifth years, iy RE==FH
inclusive FEH (HE
ME R IEE
") 142,165 157,999 - 50,000
Portions of bank loans due for AR —FRERERBT
repayment after one year and BASREREE
do not contain a repayment on B2 RITE R E
demand clause vl
(i) in the second year () ME 53 546,335 61,015 = =
(i) in the third to fifth years, iy RE==FH
inclusive FRH(HRE
MERIEE
Al) 695,345 867,097 = =
1,521,705 1,393,659 50,000 256,814
3,435,798 2,520,952 781,814 735,454
Less: Amounts due after one year B IEREBEET
shown under non-current liabilities —F1RE &5 (1,241,680) (928,112) = =
2,194,118 1,592,840 781,814 735,454

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had bank loans of HK$2,669,504,000
(2013: HK$1,694,001,000), HK$306,526,000 (2013: HK$304,495,000) and
HK$459,768,000 (2013: HK$522,456,000) denominated in Hong Kong
dollar, United States dollar and Renminbi respectively. All of the Company’s
bank loans were denominated in Hong Kong dollar as at 31 December

2014 and 2013.
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28

29

30

Bank loans (continued)

Notes:

(@  The bank loans of the Group and the Company carried weighted average interest
rates of 3.69% and 2.0% (2013: 3.2% and 1.9%) per annum respectively.

(b)  As at 31 December 2014, the bank loans of the Group were secured by leasehold
land and building (note 15); investment properties (note 16); properties under
development (note 22); restricted cash of HK$29,775,000 (2013: HK$4,301,000);
and certain other assets and equity interests of the Group's certain subsidiaries.

() The carrying amounts of bank loans approximate their fair value.

Notes

On 27 January 2014, the Company issued notes with a principal amount of
HK$156,250,000. The notes, which are denominated in Hong Kong dollars,
were redeemed at 100% of the principal amount plus 5% interest on 27
January 2015.

Warrants have been issued (for no additional payment) to the first registered
holders of the notes on the basis of 1,000,000 warrants for every whole
multiple of HK$1,250,000 in the principal amount of the notes taken up.
The warrants are detachable from the notes and the warrants and the notes
can be transferred individually and separately.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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FEPBRAME

BITER ()

P EE -

@ AEERAARZRITERNINEFHEFNES R A
3.69%%2.0% (20134 :3.2%%1.9% ) °

(b)  F2014F128318  AEEZRITERUEE L1 RIEF
(Ht3E15)  IREWE (Hike)  BETYWE (KHik22)
75 #529,775,0007T 2 % BR §II3 & (20134 : 714,301,000
) RETHMEERASEESTHERQ R RIEER
W °

(© RITERZREEREAAERL-

R

MR2014F18278 ARARBEITAEL LB E
156,250,000 TR I - RIRLUBEEETHE - WE 72015
F1A278  E100% A ¢ £ FEIMNF B5%HE R o

REEBEETTEE BT FEA (DA
TREINFIE) EEASEBAEREAS BB
1,250,0007T &) 2 5 + 7] & #£1,000,00017 R A% # 35 ©
RREEFETERED B MRREFEZEAER
KB o

Payables and accruals 30 EfEERRENER
The Group &5 H The Company &2 H
2014 2013 2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT T B¥TT BT
Trade payables B Z IR
— third parties —F=75 2,191,654 2,212,719 2,357 -
Retention payables R E & FER IR
— third parties =E=% 905,818 573,810 = -
3,097,472 2,786,529 2,357 -
Other payables, deposits and accruals - th & {F BR 3K -
ReRETER
— third parties —E=Fh 761,534 637,096 20,714 11,646
— accruals for tax liabilities on — U RER S
acquisition of land parcels in 2 FERT IR
Tieling afE 368,723 372,010 = =
— payables related to acquisition of — % R W — R B
a subsidiary BRRZERN
(Note) I8 () - 1,874 - -
— subsidiaries —KIE AR - = 4,759 1,419
4,227,729 3,797,509 27,830 13,065
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30 Payables and accruals (continued) 30
The carrying amounts of the Group’s and the Company’s payables and
accruals are denominated in the following currencies:

EMEREERRR ()
A R D TR R A B 2 REE AT
5 S EHE

The Group &£ The Company &2 5
2014 2013 2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BRETT BT T BETT BT T
Hong Kong dollar P 2,590,802 2,167,581 27,830 13,065
Renminbi AR 747,496 728,513 - =
Macau pataca JEFTE 889,204 901,415 - -
Other HAh 227 = = =
4,227,729 3,797,509 27,830 13,065

The aging analysis of trade payables by due date is as follow:

B HRMNEFIRIB B 2 Rie AT

The Group &5 E
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT
Not yet due REIER 1,989,573 1,995,775
1 to 30 days 1230k 84,309 115,914
31 to 90 days 31290K 47,848 47,239
91 to 180 days 912180k 31,502 14,059
Over 180 days 180K A = 38,422 39,732
2,191,654 2,212,719

Note: BiaE

As at 31 December 2013, the payables related to acquisition of a subsidiary included an
amount due to a director of HK$1,874,000. The amount due to a director was unsecured,
non-interest bearing and had no fixed repayment term.

Retention payables in respect of the contracting business are settled in
accordance with the terms of the respective contracts. At 31 December
2014, retention payables held by the Group amounting to approximately
HK$574,796,000 (2013: HK$277,527,000) are expected to be settled in
more than twelve months from the end of the reporting period.
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31 4% coupon bonds

On 19 June 2012, the Company issued 4% coupon bonds at a principal
amount of HK$135,000,000 (the “Bonds 1") for a consideration of
HK$135,000,000. 135,000,000 warrants (the “Warrants 1”) were issued,
for no additional payment, by the Company to the first holders of the Bonds
1 on the basis of one warrant for every HK$1.00 in the principal amount of
the Bonds 1 taken up. On 3 August 2012, the Company issued another 4%
coupon bonds at a principal amount of HK$54,000,000 (the “Bonds 2") for
a consideration of HK$54,000,000. 54,000,000 warrants (the “Warrants
2") were issued, for no additional payment, by the Company to the first
holders of the Bonds 2 on the basis of one warrant for every HK$1.00 in the
principal amount of the Bonds 2 taken up.

Both the Bonds 1 and the Bonds 2 bore interest at 4% per annum and
matured on the date immediately following twelve months after the issue of
Bonds.

The movements of the liability component of the 4% coupon bonds are set
out below:
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31 4%ERBRFH

R2012F6 5198 AR A #ET4%EEEH ZEE
R4 4 58 A5 %135,000,0007 ([EH1]) KREA
75 #135,000,0007T ° 135,000,00017 2R HE =& ([32
HX%ZEH)EEZK AETTEFZERBFEA K

BEBIMIR BEEABABEF A EBPE
%1.007c AR — R ARERE - PA2012F8A3H -
AARETRS—DI%NREESH EEALEBAE
#54,000,0007T ([fE%2]) » R (8 &7E ¥54,000, ooo
JT ° 54,000,00017 RAIERE ([RIIEE2]) AR
BOITERZEUBEAN BEDABIMIK E
EEFGRBEFRAS SR BE1.000T Al EE—
DR RRAERE -

BHNREF2IRF BERA%ET B WEREHEES
BiTRmt—EAZBEH-

A%REEHFRBEBNZEBFINLT

Bonds 1 Bonds 2 Total

&% &%2 #Et

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BT T BT T

At 1 January 2013 1201361718 127,604 49,373 176,977
Redemption of 4% coupon bonds BE4% R EESH (135,000) (54,000) (189,000)
Imputed interest expense HEFBRAX 7,396 4,627 12,023

At 31 December 2013, 1 January 2014 and 720134128318 »
31 December 2014 20141 1B &
201412 H31H

32 Convertible bonds

(a) 4% convertible bonds
On 15 August 2012, the Company issued 4% convertible bonds with
a principal amount of HK$49,000,000. The 4% convertible bonds
were denominated in Hong Kong dollars and have been redeemed at
100% of the principal amount plus 4% interest on 14 August 2013.

The 4% convertible bonds entitled the holders to convert them
into ordinary shares of the Company at the conversion price of
HK$1.00 per share. During the year ended 31 December 2013, 4%
convertible bonds of HK$38,000,000 were converted into 38,000,000
ordinary shares. The remaining balance of 4% convertible bonds of
HK$9,000,000 was fully repaid.
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32 AR RT (#)
(b) ATRREF

32 Convertible bonds (continued)
(b) Convertible bonds

On 18 November 2011, the Company issued zero coupon convertible
bonds with a principal amount of HK$759,210,000 in settlement of
the Tieling Acquisition. The convertible bonds were denominated in
Hong Kong dollars and were designed to be redeemed at 100% of
the principal amount on 17 November 2018.

The convertible bonds entitled the holders to convert them into
ordinary shares of the Company at a conversion price of HK$1.53 per
share. On 25 September 2013, the Company redeemed convertible
bonds for a total principal amount of HK$250,000,000. Immediately
after the redemption, the remaining balances of convertible bonds

R2011FE11 A188 KA AT AL EABE
759,210,000 2 ER B A R ES - LAMEAL
B ESE 2 RE  ATBRRES BT
B RER2018F11 178 1R100% 4 4 58 18
@ o

AR EHE TRA AR IR E BETRE
#1 S3TLASH R B AAR A R BAR - 7201349
A258 - AR a0 A< 425878 250,000,000
TLZ AR E S - ZPEIE I8 - &2 T Al AR (E
SO ERBE1 53T E R B ARA R LR

([HA]) S & 2 R AR E SRR 4
7 118,774,0007C 2 & £20134F12A318 b
FEZERER-

were converted into ordinary shares of the Company at HK$1.53 per
share (the “Conversion”). A gain on redemption of convertible bonds
of approximately HK$18,774,000 from the Conversion was recognised
in profit or loss for the year ended 31 December 2013.

AR % A% B B AR E % 2 B E 815
SBHIIMT :

The movements of the liability component of the convertible bonds
and 4% convertible bonds are set out below:

Convertible 4% convertible

bonds bonds Total
A%RE

Gk Y2 CIE: o deg #gt

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BT T BRI

At 1 January 2013 20131 A18 523,157 44,184 567,341
Redemption of convertible bonds & [l A] # i% (& 5 (180,467) (9,000) (189,467)
Imputed interest expense HER B 24,893 962 25,855

Conversion to ordinary shares of i & 7K/ 7] & A A%

the Company (Note 34) (Ft3E34) (367,583) (36,146) (403,729)

720134128318 »
201451 A1E &
2014512 A31H - - -

At 31 December 2013,
1 January 2014 and
31 December 2014
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33 Long service payment liabilities
Under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance, the Group is obliged
to make lump sum payments on cessation of employment in certain
circumstances to certain employees who have completed at least five
years of service with the Group. The amount payable is dependent on the
employee’s final salary and years of service, and is reduced by entitlements
accrued under the Group's defined contribution retirement scheme that is

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEPBREAME

33 REBRH&AR

attributable to contributions made by the Group. The Group does not set
aside any assets to fund any remaining obligations.

REEE (BREED)  AREBEEEARBFEZE
AFHNEMESTHERATELZERNEE SN —
FENEE-MXNNEBEDNREBERENERFTE
N AR SR RE - N BR 1B B 7 AN 5 B SRE (AR
BN TR ST AREAE TR AEH
WEBHEMEEAREFASRTHOETRIEES

Movements of present value of defined benefit obligations are as follows: AERNEFZREZZEMT
The Group The Company
&M A
2014 2013 2014 2013
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BRTT BT T BETT BT
Atllanvay o ®UAE ______[oiii8se8n ¢ 9030 [o____40° 450
Amounts recognised in income R @RPERZ
statement &
Current service cost BIHA AR 7 A A 195 (438) (393) =
Interest cost on defined AEBMNEEZ
benefit obligation FLER A 58 52 4 =
RSNy SR 253 688 B89 - N
Amounts recognised in other REM2EKZH
comprehensive income RRBZeH
Remeasurement: EHHEtE:
Actuarial loss/(gain) arising from: BUTEHEEEZ
BEEE
(Mz) -
Experience adjustment EER TR 1,862 (2,347) 165 =
Financial assumptions BB 298 (1,943) = =
Demographic assumptions AOGEHRER (2) (289) = =
.. 2188 @459 165 - -
Others Hith
__ Benefitspad BAEN_ @0 _____ 617 aw _________: -
At 31 December ®12831H 3,749 3,548 216 450

171

2014 F 3 HELESEBRAT



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ReEMBRRWME
33 Long service payment liabilities (continued) 33 REMBR#HELEAR »
The principal actuarial assumptions used for accounting purpose are as HEHENHAZEZERERRNOT:
follows:
The Group (excl. Synergis) Synergis
*EE (FEEHSER) MaERE
2014 2013 2014 2013
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BRTT BT T EB¥ETT BT T
Discount rate AhIR & 2.0% 2.60% 0.9% 0.90%
Long-term salary increase rate REF S RE 3.0% 2.80% 35%  2.20%-4.00%
Long term average expected return SR H#IEATE S 52
on mandatory provident fund BEZRH
scheme assets 578 #A B 7R 2.0% 2.0% 4.5% 4.50%
The sensitivity analysis of the defined benefit obligation to changes in the AERBNETHEAFZBRREINFRED TR
significant principal assumptions is as follows: §IJ e
Impact on defined benefit obligation
(HK$'000)
HRERAREHTE (B%TT)
Change in Increase in Decrease in
assumption assumption assumption
The Group (excl. Synergis) *EE(FTEREHEETHE) REBEE fRE&I2 N R
Discount rate BRI & 0.50% 461) 546
Long-term salary increase rate REBF SRR 0.50% 84 (97)
Impact on defined benefit obligation
(HK$'000)
HRERABEHTE (B%TT)
Change in Increase in Decrease in
assumption assumption assumption
Synergis wETEH REX & E) fRa&18n iR P
Discount rate g 0.25% (13) 13
Long-term salary increase rate RHF SRR 0.25% 60 (58)
Long term average expected return BElENESFEEEZ
on mandatory provident fund KA TR AR 3R
scheme assets 0.25% (50) 51
The above sensitivity analysis is based on a change in an assumption LA ESURE AT ER —IBERREE) - mAE il
while holding all other assumptions constant. In practice, this is unlikely to B BB kN KFTR ?ﬁfi Hp -t
occur, and changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated. When SEr R AR - EERETENEAHE
calculating the sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to significant AEEREZNGURER - B THEHRTE (RREH
actuarial assumptions, the same method (present value of the defined RUATERT BT A K B A TR EERIRE)
benefit obligation calculated with the projected unit credit method at the
end of the reporting period) has been applied.
The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation is 14.6 72014512 A31 B e @ FI B EW I TFH R &

years as at 31 December 2014. 14.65F ©
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34 Share capital and share options 34 BEERDEE
(a) Share capital (@ BR*F
2014 2013
Number Number
of shares of shares
‘000 HK$'000 ‘000 HK$'000
KR EE BETT & 8B ok
TB% T &
Authorised, ordinary shares &7 SRR EEER
of HK$0.1 each: 0.17C 2 HimA :
At the beginning of the year RE) 5,000,000 500,000 5,000,000 500,000
Addition N 25,000,000 2,500,000 - -
At the end of the year RER 30,000,000 3,000,000 5,000,000 500,000
Authorised, preference AT BEREEEE
shares of HK$0.1 each: 0.17CZ fE5hk:
At the beginning of the year REF] - - - -
Addition Ehn 15,000,000 1,500,000 - -
At the end of the year RER 15,000,000 1,500,000 - -
Ordinary shares, issued and EBR{TR#EZEE
fully paid: B% :
At the beginning of the year REH) 2,858,167 285,817 948,350 94,835
Issue of shares upon conversion [ #514% = 8 A # f%
of 4% convertible bonds’ M E TR - - 38,000 3,800
Issue of shares upon conversion — FEIEEIR AT & M
of convertible bonds? BEITHR (72 - - 332,817 33,282
Issue of shares upon exercise of ~ F17{# RRXHEE
Warrants 1 and R Zﬁﬁ%ﬁ
Warrants 23 i 73 - - 189,000 18,900
Issue of shares for business BEEE OF 31T
combination* & 14 - - 1,350,000 135,000
At the end of the year RER 2,858,167 285,817 2,858,167 285,817
Notes: B 5

1

During the year ended 31 December 2013, these shares were issued pursuant
to the exercise of 4% convertible bonds issued on 15 August 2012. These
shares rank pari passu in all respects with other shares in issue.

On 18 November 2011, the Company issued convertibles bonds for acquiring
land parcels in Tieling. During the year ended 31 December 2013, the
convertible bonds with principal amount of HK$509,210,000 were converted
to approximate 332,817,000 shares at HK$1.53 each. These shares rank pari
passu in all respects with other shares in issue.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, these shares were issued pursuant to
the exercise of Warrants 1 and Warrants 2 issued on 19 June 2012 and 3 August
2012. These shares rank pari passu in all respects with other shares in issue.

On 25 September 2013, the Company issued 1,350,000,000 shares of
HK$1.0 each to independent third parties through placing agent. The net
proceeds were used to pay for the consideration of business combination
(note 36) and redemption of convertible bonds (note 32(b)). These shares rank
pari passu in all respects with other shares in issue.
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REZE2013F 128318 IEFE - ZE RGO THER201248
A15H4%%F B AR EHFEITEMEEIT - ZERG KR
SRR D BETRG 25 RS -

MR2011F 11 B18H » R AR B TAIARES - DUEERIRA
e 2 et o N ZE2013F 12 B31H ILEE RSB AS
#£509,210,0007T 2 I AR & FH 12 G AR A #1530 K 18
##9332,817,0000% f% 15 - Z ERMIER S T EEEME
BITR D = H REHAL

REZE2013F12A318 IEFE - ZERHTIER2012566
A198 20128 A3 H IR H 1 R R EFH 2T
%E@ﬁ o &%”H%}Hﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁiﬁiﬁﬁﬂa?ﬁﬁﬂ\ ZH R
=

201394258 - zﬁ@ﬂ;ﬁi@@i%ﬁ@ﬁﬁiéﬁfﬂ;ﬁ

#71,350,000,0000% & A% [ {8 78 #51.07T 2 B 15 © AT 15 308

BRI AN 2 A 6 (B 5E36) K [0 ] 0 AR 5 3%

(MTB%H)%E?{%v&ﬁﬁ%’ﬁh#ﬂﬁﬁiﬁiﬁmaﬁﬁ
pES ST AL e
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34 Share capital and share options (continued) 34 BRERZEE (&
(b) Share options (b) EERE

2008 Option Scheme

The Company adopted a share option scheme on 22 May 2008 (the
2008 Option Scheme”). Pursuant to the 2008 Option Scheme, the
directors of the Company may, at their absolute discretion, grant
options to eligible persons (as defined in the rules of the 2008 Option
Scheme) who might include, inter alia, any employee, executive
director, non-executive director and independent non-executive
director of the Company or its subsidiaries.

Movements in the options under the 2008 Option Scheme during the
year and options outstanding as at the beginning and end of the year
and their related average exercise prices are as follows:

2008 F R M FERTE

AN B FA20084E5 A22 B Ay — I8 R AT 2
([2008F RAHETE] ) - 1RIFE20085F RAXMERT
B ARNBEBATHEBE BB ERNSERA
T+ (& R2008F R ERTEI 2 38 A1) - B R 1E
(EFEE)AQARSEMBRAR 2 EMAES -
WITEF FPTEERBIIFRITESFED
SRR HE

200845 R HEET &I T 2 RIEFNES) I
REVNRERZRITERBRLBRERH 2
FHTEEFBELT

Average Number of

exercise price share options

FEIYTER SRR E

(HK$ per share) ‘000

(BB T) T

At 1 January 2013 M20135F1 418 1.76 39,874
Lapsed EER 1.47 (3,668)
At 31 December 2013 720135124318 1.79 36,206
Lapsed B R 1.60 (10,702)
At 31 December 2014 2014512 A31H 1.87 25,504

Out of 25,504,000 outstanding options (2013: 36,206,000 options),
25,504,000 options (2013: 35,456,000 options) were exercisable with
the average exercise price of HK$1.87 (2013: HK$1.80).

Share options outstanding have the following expiry date and exercise
price:

725,504,00010 R 1T{E 2 R AR (20135
36,206,00017 3R [% # ) # » F25,504,0007 52 A&
#E (20134F : 35,456,00017 RAL#E) B ] F17
YT EBATRBE1.87 (2013F 8
#1.807T,) °

RARTTERIKE 2 BB E RITEENT

Average

Expiry date E|HAA exercise price Number of share options ("000)
FEHTERE RRRENE (Fi3)

(HK$ per share)
(BRERTT) 2014 2013
22 May 2018 2018455221 2.13 19,000 23,200
3 December 2019 20194F12 A3H 1.02 4,254 8,256
25 April 2021 202144 H25H 1.70 - 2,000
31 August 2021 202148 A31H 1.29 2,250 2,750
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34 Share capital and share options (continued)
(b) Share options (continued)
Synergis Option Scheme
Synergis adopted a share option scheme on 19 September 2003 (the
"“Synergis Option Scheme”) pursuant to the shareholders’ resolutions
of Synergis passed on 19 September 2003. Pursuant to the Synergis
Option Scheme, the directors of Synergis, at their absolute discretion,
may grant share options to eligible persons (as defined in the rules
of the Synergis Option Scheme) who might include, inter alia, any
employee, executive director, non-executive director and independent
non-executive director of Synergis or its subsidiaries.

Movements in the share options under the Synergis Option Scheme
during the year and share options outstanding as at the beginning and

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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34 BRERKE &)
(b) BRIE (&)

HEEEBRESTE
REFE B EF2003F9 8190 BB 2 IR Bk
I EEEN2003F9 A 198 AN — AR
R E ([ ERBRETE]) - RIEFET
BEREASE HEEREEARUBISHEA
MABERAL (EEAFTETIEBRENEZ
HA ERE(ETRIE)FEETENENS
RAIZEAEE - ITES IERITES LB
IEMITEEE L ERE-

FR-RENSEEBRETE THEREZE
8 RRNFYRERZARITEREE LA

end of the year and their related average exercise prices are as follows: FHITEERT

Average Number of

exercise price share options

FHITER BiRiESE

(HK$ per share) ‘000

(BRAE%TT) (F1%)

As at 1 January 2013 1201361518 0.82 13,250

Granted R 0.94 24,300

Lapsed B 0.88 (6,150)
As at 31 December 2013 and 20136128318 &

1 January 2014 20141811 0.90 31,400
Exercised BATIE 0.86 (3,890)
Lapsed [EE 0.91 (4,950)
As at 31 December 2014 R20145612 H31H 0.90 22,560

Out of 22,560,000 outstanding options (2013: 31,400,000),
5,470,000 options (2013: 5,760,000) were exercisable with an
average exercise price of HK$0.88 (2013: HK$0.84).

Share options outstanding have the following expiry date and exercise

7222,560,00017 & A 17 {5 &9 i A% 4 (20134 :
31,400,000 ) AR+ 5,470,00017 & A% # (2013
£ :5,760,0001% ) B RI{T{ER) - FHIITEBEES
#0.887T (20134F : /B#£0.847T) °

HARTTEBAE Z IS A RITEEMT

price:
Average Number of
Expiry date /R R exercise price share options ('000)
FITEE MEESA (Tin)
(HK$ per share)
(BRRERTT) 2014 2013
31 August 2015 20158 H31H 0.76 1,500 1,500
24 September 2015 201549 H24H 0.82 3,500 6,500
24 September 2015 201599 A24H 0.83 150 150
27 May 2017 201745 H27H 0.952 1,200 1,800
6 June 2017 20176 H6H 0.86 910 1,650
15 October 2018 2018104 15H 0.85 2,400 3,600
27 May 2019 201945 H27H 0.952 12,900 16,200
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35 LT

35 Reserves of the Company

Convertible
Capital Share bonds and
Share redemption options Special warrants Retained
premium reserve reserve reserve  equity reserve profits Total
REESR
. Rk .
BinRE RIREEE R GE Y RIGK R ERGHE REEF #y
HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HK$'000
BT BT BT BT BT BT BT
At 1 January 2013 R2013F1 418 515,374 4420 25,552 332,046 220,835 766,282 1,864,509
Profit for the year KEFRT - - - - - 37,398 37,398
Issue of shares upon conversion of R 12492 8 oA
4% convertible bonds ExmE{IRN 34,672 - - - (2,020) - 32,652
Issue of shares upon exercise BRI EE
of Warrants METRN 187,934 - - - (17,834) - 170,100
Issue of shares upon conversion of AARESEER
convertible bonds METRN 492,144 - - - (134,474) - 357,670
Redemption of convertible bonds BEaRES
(Note 32(b) (F15E320)) - - - - (66,021) (10,813) (76,834)
Issuance of shares BT 1,153,100 = = = = = 1,153,100
Equity settled share-based IR BERE 2 ki
transactions BERS - - 463 - - - 463
Transfer upon share options lapsing RRBELRmER - - (2.192) - - 2,192 =
Transfer upon redemption of REE[EI4%Z 8 AR
4% convertible bonds B - - - = (486) 486 =
Dividends paid BEIRRE - - - - - (53,891) (53,891)
1,867,850 - (1,729) - (220,835) (62,026) 1,583,260
At 31 December 2013 1R2013F12 4318 2,383,224 4,420 23,823 332,046 - 741,654 3,485,167
Profit for the year RERZIEF] - - - - - 45,779 45,779
Other comprehensive income At 2mia
Actuarial gain on retirement benefit BRBHREZ
obligations KR - - - - - 165 165
Total comprehensive income 2EKELE - - - - - 45,944 45,944
Recognition of warrants HERRMER - - - - 11,683 - 11,683
Equity settled share-based SARR (7 A T 2 e
transactions BHERS - - 123 - - - 123
Transfer upon share options lapsing TR R e 2K A - - (6.277) = = 6,277 =
Dividends paid BIRRE - - - - - (85,745) (85,745)
- - (6,154) - 11,683 (79,468) (73,939)
At 31 December 2014 120148124318 2,383,224 4,420 17,669 332,046 11,683 708,130 3,457,172
Representing: &
Reserves ] 2,383,224 4420 23,823 332,046 - 684,491 3,428,004
Final dividend proposed in respect of RIREZ2013F
the year ended 31 December 2013 12ANALFEEZ
RER S, - - - - - 57,163 57,163
At 31 December 2013 R2013%12A318 2,383,224 4,420 23,823 332,046 - 741,654 3,485,167
Representing: Rk :
Reserves [ 2,383,224 4,420 17,669 332,046 11,683 493,667 3,242,709
Final dividend proposed in respect of RRBZ2014F
the year ended 31 December 2014 RANALEEZ
RERS - - - - - 214,463 214,463
At 31 December 2014 R2014%12A318 2,383,224 4,420 17,669 332,046 11,683 708,130 3,457,172
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36 EBAHf
M20135F9H25H  AEBKBEBEE HER QA
([ ESatRPEGMEEERAR ([1tR
RE])Z100%#5E) 2 2 HEBITRE  BRER
75 1965,370,0007T b R EF ENFEM R EE
%oz WMEMRIL R -

36 Business combination
On 25 September 2013, the Group acquired the entire issued share capital
of Datawin Trading Limited (“Datawin”), which holds 100% equity interest
of Beijing Zhong Ji Xin He Real Estate Co., Ltd. (“Beijing Zhongji”), at a total
consideration of HK$965,370,000. Beijing Zhongji is principally engaged in
the property investment business. The property is situated in Beijing.

EEAR WEEEAMBAEE ZIREYEES -
I 3 — F IR T AR 2 B BE ) R H A5
BR -AEERZUBEETERAUBEIAR ELEZ
BB U a5 B #673,210,0007T « A BB E 22K
BFEBEEFEZARBTENRBERBEATZ
REEENMRBEERNSERD -

The Directors are of the view that the acquisition, which enhances the
Group's investment property portfolio, will further improve the profitability
and facilitate the sustainable development of the Group. The acquisition
method of accounting was adopted for this acquisition, resulting in a gain
on bargain purchase of HK$73,210,000. The bargain purchase gain was
mainly contributed from the appreciation of Renminbi on the net assets
acquired, as well as the reduced amount payable for liabilities acquired

resulted from claims under the deed of indemnity.

Carrying
amount before
business Adjustments
combination on acquisition Fair value
XAt
IRE{E Bl e B A [RE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BRTT BRTT
Investment properties "B 683,987 828,661 1,512,648
Property, plant and equipment LI ER =Y 7,895 - 7,895
Stocks wE 223,844 461,677 685,521
Other receivables and prepayments HEMERERRREN S 4,094 - 4,094
Cash and bank deposits [& RRITIFR 3,846 - 3,846
Accounts and other payables FEAS R A FE S BR 3R (35,449) = (35,449)
Loan to former shareholders ERTRIRE (329,942) = (329,942)
Bank borrowings RITIEE (374,990) - (374,990)
Deferred tax liabilities RIETRIE A E = (435,043) (435,043)
183,285 855,295 1,038,580
Gain on bargain purchase & B U e (73,210)
Total consideration RERFE 965,370
Satisfied by: ATEFRZAT
Cash consideration paid by BRFETROIANZ
issuance of shares ReERE 965,370
Net cash outflow in respect of BEAEBEHZ
business combination: & FEE
Cash consideration paid BEfRBReNRE 965,370
Cash and bank deposits acquired EEYSIR & RIRITIFR (3.846)
961,524
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36 Business combination (continued) 36 XBEaH (=)
Had the acquired business been consolidated from 1 January 2013, the AT R #7155 20131 A1 AERHRE AR AlEE
consolidated income statement for the year ended 31 December 2013 2013F 12 A31BAIEFE 2 RmRKE2HEZEIR
would show pro-forma revenue of HK$11,530.2 million and profit of % 75 #11,530,200,0007T 2 3 A1) 7 #73,400,0007T ©
HK$73.4 million.
37 Financial guarantees 37 MBEE
The Company &2 7
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT T
Guarantees given to financial institutions A THIAREREE =M
for facilities granted to ,ﬁ\ﬂ?ﬁ%%Z%‘%
- subsidiaries —MIE R 5,975,000 5,039,600
— joint operations —#\Hﬁéfé‘ﬁﬂ_‘% 160,000 295,800
6,135,000 5,335,400
38 Contingent liabilities 38 BRAR
At 31 December 2014 and 2013, the Group is subject to various claims 20144 20134F12 8318 - A&EE P ﬁx%f%ﬂ
on liquidated damages of certain construction contracts during the normal BREGEZEIRETRESH C FREERE
course of business. The Directors are of the opinion that the Group has R REBERAEHRFOREE R ”“@%E
applied extension of time to mitigate the liquidated damages and any HtfEE 2 BE TG HAREE 2 B BURR BT
resulting liability would not materially affect the financial position of the fAIERTE-
Group.
39 Related party transactions 39 MEARXS
The following transactions were carried out with related parties: BRRAE T 2RS0T

(a) In addition to the related party information disclosed elsewhere in
the consolidated financial statements, the following is a summary

(a) BEAVBRERABREBELENIN RFA
AEBEAMESERBRBERPETZE

of significant related party transactions entered into in the ordinary REAEFRSGHENT -
course of business between the Group and its related parties during
the year.
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
BR¥TT BT T
Expenses Fx
Purchase of a motor vehicle, membership i F—Z AT E BRI 2
fee and golfing expenses paid to BEAREER g#Kk
a former substantial shareholder (Note) = AIKE & B (M) 473 903
Note: B3

Purchase of a motor vehicle, membership fee and golfing expenses paid to a former
substantial shareholder was concluded on terms and prices agreed by both parties.
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39 Related party transactions (continued) 39 REXATXH (9)
(b) Key management compensation (b)) TEEEANBZHE
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT T
Salaries and other benefits 37 I 2 EL At 48 7 71,230 78,676
Bonus AT 19,842 21,840
Contributions to retirement scheme RIRRR A B 1,556 2,101
Share-based compensation LA BAR 70 EE Bt 2 SR A 336 677
92,964 103,294
40 Capital Commitments 40 BFKiE
At the balance sheet date, the Group had capital commitments as follow: REHEB  REEE THIEAREE:
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$'000
BRTT BT T
Contracted but not provided for ERENEERL
— Properties under development —BRERPYE 2,362,278 1,549,091
41 Commitments under operating leases 41 BEBEHRE
At the balance sheet date, the Group had future aggregate minimum lease REFE R REBRE AT 2 @HOFRR
payable under non-cancellable operating leases as follows: REMNz & EHEFIBLENT
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
BRTT BT T
Land and buildings T REF
— not later than one year —%F—FR 20,095 14,218
— later than one year but not later than —E=FF
five years FRFA 15,459 10,844
35,554 25,062
Office equipment I NES L
— not later than one year —F—FNA 392 247
— later than one year but not later than —F_FF
five years FRFN 960 618
1,352 865
36,906 25,927
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41 Commitments under operating leases (continued) 41 BEHPKIE (o

At the balance sheet date, the Group had future aggregate minimum lease
receivable under non-cancellable operating leases, which typically run for a

REE R AEERE AR 2 2&H0 (—RHE
ERR—ERF) AR Z REBRERKFIRBERN

period of one to five years, as follows: Dk
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT
Land and buildings T RIEF

— not later than one year —F—FN 47,555 60,005

— later than one year but not later than — s
five years FRFNA 106,250 120,653
— more than five years —RFLAE 69,079 64,766
222,884 245,424

42 Notes to the consolidated cash flow statement
Reconciliation of profit before taxation to net cash outflow from operations

is shown as below:

BR B A e ) B4

42 FREHKRERME

B2 Be R FEEEN T

2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$'000
BHTT PEHE T IT

Profit before taxation R B A 4 A 553,492 225,542
Gain on bargain purchase EA Gl = (73,210)
Amortisation of intangible assets M EERE 12,269 14,002
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 42 « #28 & &5 2 & 64,625 43,633
Fair value (gain)/loss on investment properties &% A B (Yk) /EiE (403,691) 17,620
Gain on redemption of convertible bonds B [B] A AR (B 5 W 2 = (18,774)
Net finance costs BB AN F R 41,666 17,417
Gain on disposal of investment properties SR E M E R (453) =
Net loss/(gain) on disposal of property, plant  H & %1% - #22 & R & EE,

and equipment (Ma=) 558 674 (1,773)
Provision for/(write back of provision for) RGBS ERE (BRERRE)

long service payment liabilities 253 (386)
Share-based compensation VARG AR 7 5t 2 S B 1,804 2,851
Write back of impairment on unsold stocks of K HEWEFE

properties VENIENEIEE - (2,393)
Operating profit before working capital EBESFERIZ

changes g A 270,639 224,529
Increase in properties under development R AR N (1,223,505) (746,569)
Decrease/(increase) in stocks and contracting & & #iZh TR L,/

work-in-progress (35 n) 377.329 (911,806)
Increase in receivables and prepayments UK BR 3% K TS 2 48 D (678,232) (372,178)
Decrease/(increase) in amounts due from U FEFE AR AE RS TR IBR A

non-controlling interests (3n) 430 (894)
Increase in payables and accruals FE T BRI FEST B 2 AN 432,045 630,456
Increase in restricted deposits 2R 175 SR8 o0 (26,116) (4,301)
Exchange differences PE N =58 (3,676) (11,891)
Net cash outflow from operations K 7B R R (851,086) (1,192,654)
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43 R#EEm

201551 A8H ' IRIEA A B HHIA2014%12 98 2
N RHRER  HRIETIRE 2 A 857,449,996
A% A AR AR 19 K2 & $£1,472,960,0000% AL & 18 /& &G IR
BLERMDABE100T 2 HEEERND B EEIT- N T
AL RE N T ER & T8 12 - B RAGoleman International
Limited ([ Goleman |) 2 3B BT A Z B Hh a2 FT
Bz ARG EEER  WESEHEEREH
52K ° Golemani i@ E M B A &) B8 LU 5 5 508 1%
DR EMEREER - WEREDNEBETRER
TS o BB A S A HY - N B R PTG
BEMAEAGRUEB SRz ARBEARRIE
BEZRHERE W ETRRKRBREZRE
oA BREERBEBHAEBR 2 WBZET
LR

43 Subsequent events

On 8 January 2015, a total of 857,449,996 Rights Shares offered under
the Rights Issue and a total of 1,472,960,000 New Placing Shares at the
Placing Price of HK$1.00 per New Placing Share were issued pursuant to
the announcement and right issue prospectus of the Company dated 9
December 2014. Upon completion of the Rights Issue and New Placing,
all condition precedents set out in the acquisition agreement of the entire
issued share capital of Goleman International Limited (“Goleman”) were
satisfied and the acquisition was completed on the same date. Goleman,
through its subsidiaries, held 5 land parcels in Foshan and is engaged in
property investment business. The acquisition consideration is satisfied by
issuance of consideration preference shares. Up to the date of this report,
the Group is still finalising the fair value of the assets acquired and liabilities
assumed as well as the completion account as at the acquisition date which
is a condition precedent in determining the final acquisition consideration.
As a result, it is impracticable to disclose the financial impact of the
acquisition to the Group at this stage.

44 Principal subsidiaries 4 FEMELT

Place of
incorporation/ The Group's effective
registration/ percentage of interest held by Issued and
Company operation the Company Subsidiaries paid up capital  Principal activities
N B/ S S FREMGRRERERL BRTRAERE IERH
4% L)
Beijing Zhong Ji Xin He Real Estate Co., Ltd.* The People’s Republic of - 100% US$40,000,000  Property investment
(Note 2) China F£40,000000  MERE
FRPECEMEZRRAR (FE2) hEARAAE
Cogent Spring Limited Hong Kong = 100% HK$85,000,002  Property investment
&b 758500000 MERE
Datawin Trading Limited British Virgin Islands - 100% US$100,000  Investment holding
EBEE AR RBRAKE xe100000r  RAER
Ever Apex Construction (Macau) Company Macau - 100% MOP25,000  Registered Contractor services
Limited i RPI25000m  AETERE
KERE(RP) ARAA
Guangzhou Fengyu Real Estate Co., Ltd.* The People’s Republic of - 42% HK$80,000,000  Real estate development
(Notes 1&3) China #5#80,000,000C  EHEER
BNEREHERRAR (M1 R3) HhEARLRNE
HCCG Building and Civil Engineering (Macau) Macau - 100% MOP25,000  Building construction and civil
Limited R JBF9#25,0007 engineering
HEREERLIALIRE (RM)BRAR BFRERLIALIR
Hsin Chong - Hsin Chong Aster Hong Kong = 100% - Building construction and
Joint Venture (Note 4) B mechanical, electrical and

me-HantEge (M)

*  for identification purposes only
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44 Principal subsidiaries (continued) 4 EEMEBLTF (&)

Place of
incorporation/ The Group's effective
registration/ percentage of interest held by Issued and
Company operation the Company Subsidiaries paid up capital  Principal activities
247 B3/ SR FREMGREREREANL BRTRBERE TERE
F0F HELR
Hsin Chong - China Comservice JV (Note 4) Hong Kong - 100% - Building construction
e - BB REEE (i) 0 EFEs
Hsin Chong Aster Building Services Limited Hong Kong - 100% HK$5,000,000  Mechanical, electrical and
MERHEEFRERRAT Bk 75 5,000,0007T building services
KEIRREFTRE
Hsin Chong Construction (Asia) Limited Hong Kong - 100% Ordinary:  Building construction and civil
HEBER (BN BRAR BB HK$70,002,000 engineering
Nonwoting — BFEERTATIZ
deferred:
HK$10,000,000
LR
75170,002,0007T
ERFE
BB :
7%10,000,0007C
Hsin Chong Construction (BVI) Ltd. British Virgin Islands 100% - HK$150,000  Investment holding
RBRAE #5000 REER
Hsin Chong Construction Company Limited Hong Kong - 100% Ordinary:  Building construction and civil
HELERERAR B HK$85,002,000 engineering
Nonvoting ~ EFRERTALR
deferred:
HK$20,000,000
TR
751%85,002,0007C
ERFE
LR -
75120,000,0007T
Hsin Chong Construction Company Limited* The People’s Republic of - 100% RMB141,353,600  Building construction and civil
(Notes 1 &2) China AR¥ engineering
MELEREARLF (FE1k2) hEARANE 141353600 BTFRERTATE
Hsin Chong Construction (Macau) Limited Hong Kong - 100% HK$2  Construction management
HaeE (RN BRAR BE BT services
B ER IR
Hsin Chong Construction Management Hong Kong - 100% HK$1,000,000  Construction management
Services Limited 0 7511,000,0007 services

MELEERREARAA

*  for identification purposes only
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44 Principal subsidiaries (continued) 4 EEMEBLTF (&)

Place of
incorporation/ The Group's effective
registration/ percentage of interest held by Issued and
Company operation the Company Subsidiaries paid up capital  Principal activities
247 B3/ EEE FREMBREREREAL BRTRAERFT FEREK
N HELR
Hsin Chong Engineering (Macau) Limited Macau - 100% MOP25,000  Construction management
HELR(CRF)ERAR R B PI#25,0007T services
B ER R
Hsin Chong Property Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands 100% US$227,355,000  Investment holding
MEHERRERAT ERBEUES E£27355000r  REER
Hsin Chong Property Development Limited Hong Kong - 100% US$2,502,191  Provision of investment
HENERRERAA BB £4£2,502,1917 and asset management
consultancy services
Rt E REE R RE
Liaoning Huisheng Property Investment Limited*  The People’s Republic of - 100% US$122,050,000  Real estate development
(Notes 1&2) China F£122,0500000 FEHEERE
EEEREXERLA (M1 k2) hEARANE
Liaoning Tongji Property Investment Limited* The People’s Republic of - 100% US$147,259,920  Real estate development
(Notes 1&2) China F£147250920T  FHEER
FERBEXBRAR (MiH1k2) hEARARE
Rosy China Investments Limited British Virgin Islands - 100% US$1  Investment holding
RRELHES Fe1r  REZR
Rife Yard Limited Hong Kong - 100% HK$1,000  Real estate development
&% BE1000T  EHEER
Smart Lane Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands 100% US$1  Investment holding
RRRELHES Fe1r  REZR
Sorano Investments Limited British Virgin Islands - 100% US$1  Investment holding
ERRAES 1T REER
Everich Construction (Macau) Limited Macau - 60.4% MOP25,000  Provision of renovation and
EREE (R BB AR R JRF9#25,0007C fitting-out works
RUBHTRERNRELE
Hsin Chong Construction (Engineering) Limited ~ Hong Kong - 60.4% HK$22,000,000  Demolition work and addition
MERER (IR)ERAH BB 7#%22,000000  and alteration
FRIRENZLGETR
Hsin Chong Interiors (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong = 60.4% HK$5,000,000  Fitting-out, renovation and
MEZEARM (FA)ERAR 6 7 5,000,0007T addition and alteration

*  for identification purposes only
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44 Principal subsidiaries (continued)

44 FERELF (&)

Place of
incorporation/ The Group's effective
registration/ percentage of interest held by Issued and
Company operation the Company Subsidiaries paid up capital  Principal activities
247 B3/ SR FREMGREREREANL BRTRBERE TERE
F0F HELR
Laundrimate Service Limited Hong Kong - 60.4% HK$2  Provision of laundry services
ERERBERAA B BT REEKERS
Master Clean Service Limited Hong Kong - 60.4% HK$200,000  Provision of cleaning services
REREERAA b AE200000  BREDERIRHE
Optimum Engineering Limited Hong Kong - 60.4% HK$2  Provision of repair and
FETRARAR B BT maintenance services
REGERRERS
S-Club Limited Hong Kong - 60.4% HK$1  Sales of products, provision of
B BT copying services and
property holding
HEEM REVEERIK
RENZ
SecurExpert Solutions Limited Hong Kong - 60.4% HK$2  Provision of security and
HRREREBRAR BE BT consultancy services
R RERRS
Service Pro Limited Hong Kong - 60.4% HK$2  Provision of property services
HARBERAR BB BET  REWERS
Synergis Holdings Limited Bermuda / Hong Kong - 60.4% Ordinary shares:  Investment holding
MEEREEER AR BRE/B HK$33,589,000 AR
Convertible
preference shares:
HK$8,000,000
LR
75133,589,0007T
ERERR:
751%8,000,0007C
Synergis Management Services Limited Hong Kong = 60.4% HK$206,837  Provision of property
HEEEREERAF B 751206,8377L management services and
investment holding
REDEERRKERIRERR
Synergis Facility Management Limited Hong Kong - 60.4% HK$2  Provision of facility
MERMERERAT Bk BT management services
ReftR I E B IR

*  for identification purposes only
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e MBHRRME
44 Principal subsidiaries (continued) 4 FEMEBAT (&)
The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which, in the opinion of ERIRZAEENBRARAEEFRATELENR
the directors, principally affected the results or assets of the Group. To give SEEEREEZHNBRAR ESERA REEHE
details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result in o bt B8~ BRI B AR BN UK
particulars of excessive length.
Notes: Bt 5 -
1 Companies not audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers 1 WIFHBREFKEEAMERAERZ QA
2 A wholly foreign owned enterprise 2 —HINEBERE
3 A company controlled by the Group through a non-wholly owned subsidiary 3 BAKEZA—FEIIF2EMBRREHZ QA
4 Unincorporated joint operations 4 EB B ARG EER
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Five-Year Financial Summary

¥& 3z R
FEHmE
Year ended 31 December
HZE12A31BILFE
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT T PEHETIT ST T BT T
(Restated) (Restated) (Note)
(&=5) (=E=7)) (K7E)
Operating Results BEXR
Revenue Wz 14,010,505 11,505,979 8,810,112 6,381,128 3,847,823
Profit before taxation R & B V2 A 553,492 225,542 210,633 217,211 180,548
Taxation T8 (150,617) (32,127) (30,543) (27,583) (23,145)
Profit after taxation R 518 0m A 402,875 193,415 180,090 189,628 157,403
Non-controlling interests FEIE MR (15,317) (8,013) (82) (17,209) (21,057)
Profit attributable to equity RARERTEE A
holders of the Company FE 5= 387,558 185,402 180,008 172,419 136,346
Assets and Liabilities BEERAR
Total assets 1B E 13,193,323 11,143,153 7,210,745 6,365,099 2,522,595
Total liabilities waE (8,534,873) (6,901,401)  (5,057,147)  (4,412,904)  (1,708,179)
4,658,450 4,241,752 2,153,598 1,952,195 814,416
Note: The Group did not apply HKFRS 11 for year 2010. MisE: AEEWEN2010FEREBUBREENFE115 -
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MAJOR PROJECTS IN-PROGRESS

Major Projects
FEITREIEH

BRETPZEETE

Group’s Commencement

Anticipated

Description Interest Date Completion Date Client/UItimate Employer
KM

TEAT FiisEs FAIBH RMABT A R B#EE

BUILDING CONSTRUCTION

BFEis

Proposed Research and Academic Building for The Hong Kong 100%  February 2012 October 2014+ The Hong Kong University of
University of Science and Technology 201242 A 20144108+ Science and Technology

BB A SR R 2 A2 BERHERAR

Construction of Public Rental Housing Development at 100%  December 2012 February 2016 Hong Kong Housing Authority
Anderson Road Site D 20124F128 2016%F2 8 EEEEZEE

TEEBEMBRDARFRAEIEETRR

Construction of Public Rental Housing Development at 100% December 2012 May 2015 Hong Kong Housing Authority
Hung Shui Kiu Area 13 Phases | and 2 20124124 2015454 EHEEEZERE

HKBERBRFITARER R EZETZ

URA Project SYP/1/001 at Third Street/Yu Lok Lane/Centre Street at 100%  October 2012 January 2016 Maxjet Company Limited
Sai Ying Pun, Hong Kong* 20124F10A8 201641 A ekl YN

EAALRE=Y HER T MEEZEFBHEA SYP/1/001*

Tsuen Wan Adventist Hospital Extension* 100%  August 2013 December 2015 Seventh-day Adventist

EERTERERTIIE 201348 A 2015124 Corporation (HK) Limited

BEBEZEAE (FH)
BRAR

Construction of Public Rental Housing Development at 100% December 2013 September 2016 Hong Kong Housing Authority
Tung Chung Area 56 20134124 201649 A EEEEZES

ROBES6R A EE R EEETR

Construction of Public Rental Housing at Ex-Au Tau Departmental Quarters 100% December 2013 December 2015 Hong Kong Housing Authority
at Yuen Long 2013124 2015%F 128 BAFEZE®

AMERREEES ARXBERERRTE

Proposed Residential Development at STTL 525, Area 56A, Kau To Shan, 100%  October 2013 July 2015 Pembrooke Development
Sha Tin, New Territories* 2013410A 2015478 Investments Ltd

SO0 BRI R 52558 SES6AR SRR (E TR R IAR *

Proposed Residential Development at Kowloon Inland Lot No. 11227 100% January 2015 October 2016 Classic Gold Holdings Limited
J/O Sheung Lok Street and Sheung Shing Street, 2015514 20165104

Ho Man Tin, Kowloon
NBENMERS81122755% - A X A B EFEERE R ABREET
ERIEAR
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Major Projects
T2TRER

MAJOR PROJECTS IN-PROGRESS (continued)

BRETPEETE &)

Group’s Commencement Anticipated
Description Interest Date Completion Date Client/Ultimate Employer
KM
ITEAR FiisfEsa FMIBH RHART A EFR B#REE
BUILDING CONSTRUCTION — MACAU
BFEE-nn
Galaxy Resort & Casino Phase 2 in Cotai City, Macau 100% July 2012 May 2015 Galaxy Cotai Project Management
C004 — Main Contract 2012467 8 2015454 Limited
SOAREE BN RIREEI5 5 — BT A2 - JRPI B 2kt Co04 SRR TIRERBRAA
—HEEAL
CDSJ and USJ Green Campus in llha Verde 100%  April 2013 July 2015 Fundacao Catolica de Ensino
BEBASBMTE FERIETE 201347 2015578 Superior Universitario
REHERBESEHEES
Galaxy Resort & Casino Phase 2 in Cotai City, Macau Podium ABWF 100% May 2013 May 2015 Galaxy Cotai Project Management
(Package 3) 2013458 2015458 Limited
SOMREE BN RIRGISE — TR ORPIR M A ERIE TR SOMRATIRERFRAA
(A#93)
Upgrade of Macao Peninsula Waste Water Treatment Plant 45%  February 2014 December 2015 CESL Asia—Investments &
HRPIN 85 KRR ik E T2 2014428 2015%F12 3 Services, Limited
Rt & B AR AR (D B PR A A
Galaxy Resort & Casino Phase 2 in Cotai City, Macau CO04N157 Structural 100% January 2014 May 2015 Galaxy Cotai Project Management
Steelwork of Retail Deck 20141 A 2015554 Limited
SROMREE BN RIRGEIS S — BT 12 - R P RR 2 ik SOMRATIZERHRAA
HETAHAEIIR
Link Bridge of Galaxy Macau Lot 1 Phase 2 to Grand Waldo LBO08 100%  August 2014 March 2015 Perfect Assets Real Estate Limited
Main Contract for Link Bridge 2014484 201543 A FREFXARAF
EEIOME R (F28) B & BRI1T ARIB2.2 BE T2
Sportland, Henggin 100% June 2015 September 2019 SRR BRI E B R A A
BEELEE 2015564 2019479
CIVIL ENGINEERING WORKS
TARIE
Express Rail Link Contract No. 826 — Huanggang to Mai Po Tunnels 30% March 2010 May 2016 MTR Corporation Limited
BRAmREEEESORTS260— EMEKBRKIEIEA 2010434 2016454 BEHEEARAA
Express Rail Link Contract No. 802 100%  February 2010 September 2015 MTR Corporation Limited
— Nam Cheong Property Foundation Removal/Reprovisioning 2010424 2015694 BREEKBRAR
BRER R EEA NRFS02-FEEMFEM AR EEEAE
Construction of MTR Express Rail Link Contract 8108, 22.5% January 2011 May 2016 MTR Corporation Limited
West Kowloon Terminus Station South 20114E1 A 201645 A BAHEARAR
BEERS =R B A 4810878 fLae A, (FF) dE TR
South Island Line (East) Contract No. 908 — Wong Chuk Hang Depot Superstructure 100% March 2012 July 2015 MTR Corporation Limited
HEBR (RR) BEA RS F085 —HMAER 2012437 201557 NG
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MAJOR PROJECTS IN-PROGRESS (continued)

Major Projects
TE2TRRER

BERETPZEETE 8

Group’s Commencement Anticipated
Description Interest Date Completion Date Client/UItimate Employer
FKRME
IEAR FisEa BIAM R TEHY EF BRREE
CIVIL ENGINEERING WORKS (continued)
+ARIE(E)
Replacement and Rehabilitation of Water Mains, Stage 4 Phase 1 100%  April 2011 April 2015 Water Supplies Department
— Mains in Tuen Mun, Yuen Long, North District and Tai Po 20114F4 8 201554 8 KIEE
FRREEKE TIRFAEERE1H
—HP A B RRHEKE TR
Sewerage in Kau Lung Hang San Wai, Kau Lung Hang Lo Wai and 60% June 2012 December 2016 Drainage Services Department
Tai Hang 201246 A 20165124 RIEE
NEIHE  WERZEERFTITKKERS
Shatin to Central Link, Sung Wong Toi and To Kwa Wan Stations and 40%  August 2012 April 2018 MTR Corporation Limited
Tunnels, Contract 1109 20124788 201844 BRHEAR AR
DHAEFRIRE N EEREE TR (S54M/H5%1109)
Lam Tsuen Valley Sewerage — Village Sewerage, Stage 2, Phase 1 57%  October 2012 January 2016 Drainage Services Department
MNRTKIRE R o —F —EERE BB KKRE R4 20124F108 20165F1 8 RE
Lam Tsuen Valley Sewerage — Village Sewerage, Stage 2, Phase 2 57%  October 2012 August 2016 Drainage Services Department
MNRITKIRE R A — 5 —EERE — MBS KIRE R4 20124F108 2016478 8 RG=E
Replacement and Rehabilitation of Water Mains, Stage 4 Phase 1 and 83% November 2013 February 2016 Water Supplies Department
Stage 4 Phase 2 — Mains in Northern and Eastern New Territories 20134114 201652 A KIGE
B REEKE TRFARRE 1R BAPEER 280
—F R REFTARKE TR
Shatin to Central Link Contract No. 1129, Advance Works for NSL 100% January 2014 December 2015 MTR Corporation Limited
DHERREZESNRITE11295  FlLARATHI T2 201418 201548128 EREEARAR
Foundation and ELS Contract for Harmony Redevelopment at 100% July 2014 March 2016 Hysan Development Co., Ltd.
Hysan Avenue, Hoi Ping Road and Sunning Road, Causeway Bay 201457 R 201643 A FEEEFRAA
MEENFEAESEBRAMETRE
Foundation Works, Drainage Diversion and Road Works for Temporary 100%  February 2015 May 2016 Lai Sun Development Company
Carparking for The Hong Kong Ocean Park Marriott Hotel 201542 A 2016454 Limited
BREEFAESFBEEMETIR BHERARAA
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Major Projects
T2TRER

MAJOR PROJECTS IN-PROGRESS (continued)

BRETPZEETE &)

Group’s Commencement Anticipated
Description Interest Date Completion Date Client/Ultimate Employer
KM

ITEAR FiistEs FMIBH RHART A EFR B#REE
CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT SERVICE
BERAERE
Venetian Macau Capital Works (A&A) Projects — Sands 100% May 2011 December 2015 Venetian Macau Limited
BREET ARSI KA TR 20114F5 8 201548128 BEET NRPIRRD B IR A 7
Venetian Macau Capital Works (A&A) Projects — Parcel 1&2 100%  April 2011 December 2015 Venetian Cotai Limited
BB AR ZS s —, = - I R @ T2 20114F4 A 201547128 BURHT SR B AR A R
Venetian Cotai Parcel 3 100%  August 2012 N/A Venetian Cotai Limited
BAFEHT A BR k3R = 2012478 A NiE A R HT A B 2R 1D B BR A &)
Sands Cotai Central Capital Works (A&A) Projects —Parcel 5&6 100%  August 2012 December 2015 Venetian Orient Limited
BURHT ABS IR A S H AL - INE R K E) T2 2012484 2015%F128 RGBS ABRA A
Venetian Cotai Parcel 5, Sands Cotai Central — Tower 5B (Resumption) 100%  October 2013 N/A Venetian Orient Limited
BUEHT AR bR A - SBIE S 2013104 TERA RO BEHABRAR
INTERIORS AND SPECIAL PROJECTS
EARERREHRE
URA Project SYP/1/001 at Third Street/Yu Lok Lane/Centre Street 100%  October 2012 January 2016 Maxjet Company Limited

at Sai Ying Pun, Hong Kong* 20124F10A4 201641 A ESv 1 YN
TR LERE /MY R/ EH-TEEZ /A B SYP/1/001*
Proposed Commercial Development at Nos. 34 Wong Chuk Hang Road, 100%  April 2014 September 2015 Best City Enterprise Limited

Aberdeen, Hong Kong Main Contract Works 20145478 2015494 W ERRAF
BEFEMREMRIEEAERETE
Proposed Commercial Development at Nos. 2 — 22 Tang Lung Street, Hong 100%  April 2014 November 2015 Choice Glory Limited

Kong Main Contract 2014541 2015114 HRARAT]
B RBEE 227 EAERETE
Main Contract for Major Renovation Works at Butterfly Plaza 100% November 2014 May 2016 The Link Management Limited
4k 5 R BT TA2 201411 4 2016458 BEEEERDA
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MAJOR PROJECTS IN-PROGRESS (continued)

Major Projects
TE2TRRER

BERETPZEETE 8

Group’s Commencement Anticipated
Description Interest Date Completion Date Client/UItimate Employer
KM
TEAT FriikfEs FIBH RHART A R B#EE
INTERIORS AND SPECIAL PROJECTS (continued)
ERRERNHEEREE (8)
Main Contract for Podium Renovation at Lee Gardens One, 100%  September 2013 July 2014+ Perfect Win Properties Limited
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong 201349 A 20144F7 A+ ERBXEARAT
) $8 ) 1) (B — HA K =2 s S B TA2
External Facade Works and Fitting Out Works to Guestroom Floors 100%  January 2015 April 2015 Grand Invest & Development
for Renovation and Addition & Alteration of Macau Tai Pa Hotel 2015414 2015544 Company Limited
at Macau SAR BHRREERARAQA
SRPI AT EIME BT R B RS R E T
Main Contract Works and MVAC Installation Works for Renovation of 100%  March 2015 October 2016 CDW Building Limited
CDW Building at Castle Peak Road & Mei Wan Street, Tsuen Wan 2015438 20164104
ZEF LA REREHBLBAERH RSGE T2
ELECTRICAL AND MECHANICAL
BEIR
Extension of Tsuen Wan Adventist Hospital - ACMV, Electrical, 100%  August 2013 December 2015 Seventh-day Adventist
Fire Services and P&D Installation® 2013487 20154128 Corporation (HK) Limited
EEATBREEIRE-ZHER BER HHRGEHKRGRE! EEBRZEEE (BH)AR
NG
Design & Construction of Tin Shui Wai Hospital 100%  February 2013 November 2015 The Government of the Hong
— Plumbing Services, Air — Conditioning and Steam Plant Installation 201342 4 20154F11A Kong Special Administrative
Rt RRERKE S — 4K ZARERARLE Region
BB BT R BURF
New World Centre Remodeling and Palace Mall Remodeling Project 100% June 2014 February 2018 NWS Holdings Limited
(Package Code No. 100408B-1) Design, Supply and Installation of 2014476 A 201842 A FEIZEEARAA
H2 and H2 Podium MVAC — Podium Portion Nominated
Sub-Contract
Ftt RO REY R OEBEE (A4 : 100408-1)
—H2RH2F AR 2 Rt HERTEREESARL
Development of Hong Kong Science Park Phase 3 Main Contract Works 100% June 2012 September 2015 Hong Kong Science and
for Phase 3a and 3b — MVAC and Electrical Installation 2012438 201597 A Technology Parks Corporation
Domestic Sub-Contract BAREERAF]
EAREEREIRE=H3ak3b—ERABRAKRERLE
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Major Projects
T2TRER

MAJOR PROJECTS IN-PROGRESS (continued)

BRETPZEETE &)

Group’s Commencement Anticipated
Description Interest Date Completion Date Client/Ultimate Employer
KM

ITEAR FiistEs FMIBH RHART A EFR B#REE

ELECTRICAL AND MECHANICAL (continued)

wEIRE(E)

Central Police Station Conversion and Revitalisation Project Works Contract 100%  December 2012 January 2016 The Jockey Club CPS Limited
for Plumbing and Drainage (Package 601), 20124F 124 201641 A BEESEXMREBRAR
MVAC (603) and FS (604) Installation

RIREERERE RE(LET 8l — 43K (54601)
mEZE (603) KOHF 24t (604) &8

Proposed Residential Development at STTL525 Area 56A, Kau To Shan, 100%  October 2013 July 2015 Pembrooke Development
Sha Tin, New Territories — Plumbing and Drainage Installation 20134F10A4 2015474 Investments Limited
Domestic Sub-Contract?

R BRI ERS255% - S6ARE #HE(EEIHE —RHIK R &

New Campus Development of Chu Hai College of 100% July 2014 December 2015 Chu Hai College of Higher
Higher Education at Tuen Mun Town Lot 489, HK 2014573 2015%F124 Education Ltd.

— MVAC and Electrical Installation Domestic Sub-Contract REER

TR E BT i P 3 ER 4892 R [E 1 B
—BREARERRESFEHN

Air-Conditioning and Ventilation Systems Term Maintenance Contract 100% July 2014 June 2017 Hong Kong Housing Authority
(Contract No. 20139012) (Kowloon West, Hong Kong, Tai Po, North, 201478 201746 A EBEEE
Shatin, and Sai Kung Regions) 2014/2017 for Hong Kong Housing
Authority Estates, Areas and Buildings

201422017 EBAEEZERE TEPMA REFHERFL A
R R G EHREE L (A4S :20139012) (NLEERE - B K
E-itE -YHRRERR)

Proposed Office Development at No.14-30, King Wah Road, North Point, 100%  September 2014 December 2016 Henderson Land Development
HK — ACMV Installation Nominated Sub-Contract 2014497 20165124 Company Limited

b AREE40GHERTIEERER —EABREES HEL BEKFHWERRAA

Urban Renewal Project at Sham Shui Po (K21) — Electrical, ELV and 100%  August 2013 February 2016 Hong Kong Housing Society
MVAC Installation 2013484 2016%F2 A EEEEmE

kTR ERZFTEK2)-ER KBRERBREHARE

The Wholesale Conversion of The General Garment Factory Building at No. 100% June 2013 July 2015 Golden Master Holdings Ltd.
100— 110 Kwai Cheong Road, K.C.T.L. 134, Kwai Chung, 20136 A 2015457 A SEEERRAQA
New Territories — MVAC and Electrical Installation

BAEBRERANE (il ¥R ZRZEEFK100-1105%K.C.TL 134)

HETRR-—=RBAKRERLTE
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MAJOR PROJECTS IN-PROGRESS (continued)

Major Projects
TE2TRRER

BERETPZEETE 8

Group’s Commencement Anticipated
Description Interest Date Completion Date Client/UItimate Employer
KM
TEAT FriikfEs FIBH RHART A R B#EE
ELECTRICAL AND MECHANICAL (continued)
BEIRE (B
Proposed A&A Works of Food Factory at No.3 Dai Shun Street, 100%  September 2014 March 2016 Lei Garden Restaurant Group
Tai Po Industrial Estate, New Territories (T.PT.L.1,SEC.D,S.S.1) 20144798 201643 8 R RER
— Building Services Installation Nominated Sub-Contract
AR TEBAIEEBR R MRS RME TR - EERR
BEAHEH
Proposed Pharmaceutical Manufactory Factory at Tai Po Industrial Estate 100%  September 2013 June 2015 Synco (H.K.) Ltd.
— Building Services Installation Nominated Sub-Contract 201399 A 201546 A R R R AR
ABITEPRECRETHR - EFBRARERZEEEDHED
Construction of Shopping Centre at Yau Tong, Development 100% July 2009 August 2015 Hong Kong Housing Authority
Phase 4 (Building Contract) - ACMV Installation Sub-contract 200947 A 201548 A EBEEZE®
(Design and Construction)
BEREEDTOBRENS (BEESLK)
—ZRBRLED HEH (Rt RiEE)
Hong Kong Science Park, Building 16W - Fitting Out Works 100%  April 2014 September 2014+ Hong Kong Science Parks and
EBRREIWAE 2 KiET2 201444 A 20144F9 A+ Technology Corporation
EARRERAR]
Provision of Maintenance Services for AHU & PAU at 100%  November 2014 June 2017 Hong Kong Hospital Authority
Wai Ming Block for Caritas Medical Centre, Kowloon West Cluster, 20144114 201746 A EABREER
Hospital Authority (Contract No: 5110208495)
REREE BN ERRENARER ERERMARERE RS
(& %455 : 5110208495)
Provision of Maintenance Services for Fire Damper, Ventilation Fan, 100%  November 2014 June 2017 Hong Kong Hospital Authority
VAV at Wai Ming Block for Caritas Medical Centre, Kowloon West 201411A4 20174F6 A BEBRERR
Cluster, Hospital Authority (Contract No: 5110208547)
RERERRBNEABAENAE B EREZ
RURT AR - ARG R # 2R RERS
(A HKI4R5% : 5110208547)
* Part of the contract has been sub-contracted to group companies
BHEHNESHTEEARNRA
# Sub-contract value being awarded by group companies or joint venture
EEANRASAELERTZA AR
+ Awaiting PC certificate
FRTIHR
193 2014 FH HELEEBRRDA



Major Properties
FEME

Description

ks

Uses

R#

Approximate

gross area

geER

Status

kiR

Lease term

F1

Percentage of
Group's interest
EREFRE
EREst

Properties Held for Investment/Own Use/Sale as at 31 December 2014

R2014E12A31AZRE BR/HEWE

Hsin Chong Center
107-109 Wai Yip Street,
Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong
MEFR L
EENEBREEERE072109%

Carparks in Lung Mun Oasis

43 Lung Mun Road,

Tuen Mun, New Territories, Hong Kong
BEME 2B

BB A EPIREPT 435

Car Park Nos. P250, P251, P252,
P253, P254, P255, P256 and P257,
Sun Hing Garden, No. 2 On Po Lane,
Tai Po, New Territories, Hong Kong
24/64, 299th shares of and
in Tai Po Town Lot No. 26
BBMARNBERE 2R AT E
P250 * P251 ~ P252 ~ P253 ~ P254
P255  P256 )2 P2575% B fiL
RIT H0ER2657 5£64,29917 2 2417

Basement Level 1 & Level 1t0 6
New Times Plaza
No. 25 Maliandao Road,
Xicheng District,
Beijing,
People’s Republic of China

B E R T A [ S A B2 55
HTEEERE YL
E—E R F—EENE

Level 7to 15
New Times Plaza
No. 25 Maliandao Road,
Xicheng District,
Beijing,
People’s Republic of China
L R T A [ S A R 255
HTEEERE YL
+EE+RE

HSIN CHONG CONSTRUCTION GROUP LTD

Office
i3

Carpark
B

Carpark
B

Commercial

GRS

Office/
Residential

A/ EE

ANNUAL REPORT 2014

107,000

59 carparks
S9fEE N

8 carparks

S{E=E L

38,214 @

12,659 @

194

Head Office

B

For Sale

urf S

Rental
HE

Rental
HE

For Sale

HE

Medium
H HA

Medium

o8

Medium
i HA

Medium
R HA

Medium

8

100%

100%

60.4%

100%

100%



Major Properties

TENE

Approximate Percentage of
Description Uses gross area Status Lease term  Group's interest
EEMEFR{S
LV 3= 30 B& BHRmR iR FH ERast
Properties Held for Investment/Own Use/Sale as at 31 December 2014 (continued)
#20145 1283182 8RR BAHEME (§)
Basement Level 2 and 3 Carpark 328 carparks Rental Medium 100%
New Times Plaza By 328{EEfz HE H
No. 25 Maliandao Road,
Xicheng District,
Beijing,
People’s Republic of China
EE R I R S i B BR 255
MEZEBEDT O
ME—ERIE=E
Estimated
Approximate Percentage of Year of
Description Uses gross area Status Lease term  Group's interest Completion
EREFG
E 3200 i} B RmER kiR 4 ERESL R ERER
Properties Under Development as at 31 December 2014
R2014F12A31AZ B R IE
South of Ganjiang Road, Residential 380,000 @ Construction Medium and 100% 201510 2016
west of National Highway 102, = and Design long 20155 520165
Dafanhe Village and Xintun Village, in Progress F A ] =
Fanhe Town, BER
Tieling County, Rt
Liaoning Province,
People’s Republic of China Ground Floor 6,000 @ Construction Medium and 100% 201510 2016
B L i 2 % N Retails and Design long 20155 220165
AJUAR BT A 1028 8 HHEE in Progress FER R
VAR )T B LA A 3 £ 3 TEHH #iER
RHETH
Commercial 215,000 @ Construction Medium and 100% 201510 2016
[EES and Design long 20156 220165
in Progress F A ] =
BER
R EITH
Residential/ 1,417,000 © Master Medium and 100% N/A
Commercial Plan in Progress long A
=/ H% Rl REK
EIT 3

o Gross floor area of square feet #21E & (FI7R)
@ Gross floor area of square metres 4212 & & (7 /5 K)

Cl Gross site area of square metres #8182 1 (75 K)

195
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Corporate Information

NG

Board of Directors

EFe

Audit Committee

FERERAY

Remuneration Committee

FH=RE

Nomination Committee

REZRE

Executive Committee

BiTER®

Company Secretary
ATERE

Auditor
4 L

Financial Calendar

Announcement of interim results
Payment date for interim dividend

Announcement of annual results

Annual General Meeting for 2015
Ex-dividend date for proposed final dividend
Payment date for proposed final dividend

Wilfred WONG Ying Wai
(Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)

THE (FEHETEAEH)

Joseph CHOI Kin Hung

ZHOU Wei

A

Clifford King CHIU*

BLE

ZHANG Xiaoying”

GRS

YAN Jie*

afg

Joseph CHOW Ming Kuen*

JEI R

CHENG Sui Sang*

EIm

GAO Jingyuan*

mRE"

LEE Jai Ying*

FaE"

" Non-executive Director
t O HHTEE
#  Independent Non-executive Director

" OBUIHPITEE

CHENG Sui Sang (Chairman)
B¥nE (/)

Clifford King CHIU

B2E

Joseph CHOW Ming Kuen
JEIEA#E

Joseph CHOW Ming Kuen (Chairman)
JEEAME (/%)

Wilfred WONG Ying Wai
FHfE

Clifford King CHIU
B

GAO lJingyuan

LEE Jai Ying (Chairman)
FRE(ZE)

Wilfred WONG Ying Wai
THE

CHENG Sui Sang
¥

Wilfred WONG Ying Wai
FTHE

Joseph CHOI Kin Hung
ZHOU Wei

IEpes

WONG Long Kee
T

PricewaterhouseCoopers

ERRUE SR ETSF

20 August 2014
3 October 2014
19 March 2015
22 May 2015
27 May 2015
11 June 2015

HSIN CHONG CONSTRUCTION GROUP LTD. ANNUAL REPORT 2014

Principal Bankers

FEERBIT

Reference Banks and
Financial Institutions

ERBITRAB R

Registered Office
HEBEE

Principal Place of Business
in Hong Kong
EETEETRE

Principal Share
Registrar and
Transfer Agent

FERGBRELE

Hong Kong Branch
Share Registrar and
Transfer Office

FERMHBFRELTE

Stock Code
B iR 5%

Board Lot
BFHEEEM
Share Price
&=

Website
Mt

Email Address
E it

HMEAR

AR RS

P HARR B R % A HR
AR FEE
2015 R AF RS
BRAHR B 2B FH
BRKREAR SR H H

196

The Hongkong and Shanghai

Banking Corporation Limited
B8 LBECRITARADA
Hang Seng Bank, Limited
BAERITAERDA
The Bank of East Asia, Limited
RERITARDA
China CITIC Bank International Limited
FIEIRIT (B BRAF)

East West Bank

EERIRIT

Bank of Shanghai (Hong Kong) Limited
EBRIT(BEB)BERAR

CTBC Bank Co., Ltd.

PRI ERITRMDAERAR]
Chong Hing Bank Limited
BIERITBR QA

Clarendon House

2 Church Street

Hamilton, HM 11

Bermuda

Hsin Chong Center

107-109 Wai Yip Street

Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong
EENEERE

B ZE47107-1095%

HEP L

MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited
The Belvedere Building

69 Pitts Bay Road

Pembroke HMO08

Bermuda

Computershare Hong Kong
Investor Services Limited

Shops 1712-1716

17th Floor, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wan Chai, Hong Kong

BERRBSELARAA

EBEBFE2EABRISINR

BRI 7HE1712-17165% 48

00404

2,000 shares

2,000 fi%

Year High HK$1 21
2FHEm BE1.21T
Year Low HK$O.86
2FHE  BE0.86T

www.hsinchong.com

info@hcg.com.hk

201448 420H
2014410A3H
2015434 19H
2015458224
2015854274
201566 A11H



HSIN# &
CHONG

Hsin Chong Center

107-109 Wai Yip Street

Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong
Tel : (852) 2579 8238

Fax: (852) 2516 6596

Website : www.hsinchong.com

BEBNEEYE
{BZ#107-109 5%
HEHL

& 1 (852) 2579 8238
fBHE : (852) 2516 6596
#93t : www.hsinchong.com
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